
AB
SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES

WEDNESDAY 13 JANUARY 2016
7.00 PM

Bourges/Viersen Room - Town Hall

AGENDA
Page No

1. Apologies

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations

At this point Members must declare whether they have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest, or other interest, in any of the items on the agenda, 
unless it is already entered in the register of members’ interests or is a 
“pending notification “ that has been disclosed to the Solicitor to the Council. 
Members must also declare if they are subject to their party group whip in 
relation to any items under consideration.

3. Minutes of Meeting Held on 5 November 2015 3 - 8

4. Call In of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions

The decision notice for each decision will bear the date on which it is published 
and will specify that the decision may then be implemented on the expiry of 3 
working days after the publication of the decision (not including the date of 
publication), unless a request for call-in of the decision is received from any two 
Members of a Scrutiny Committee or Scrutiny Commissions..  If a request for 
call-in of a decision is received, implementation of the decision remains 
suspended for consideration by the relevant Scrutiny Committee or 
Commission.

5. Combined Report of the Cabinet Member for Integrated Adult Social 
Care and Health, and the Service Director for Adult Services and 
Communities

9 - 64

6. Cambridgeshire And Peterborough Health And Care System 
Transformation Programme

65 - 88

7. Draft Peterborough Health and Wellbeing Board Strategy 89 - 116

8. Adult Social Care Charging Policy Review 117 - 126

9. Peterborough Renal Haemodialysis Capacity Consultation 127 - 130

Public Document Pack



10. Older Peoples' and Adult Community Services Contract Transfers to 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group

131 - 132

11. Forward Plan of Executive Decisions 133 - 160

12. Work Programme 2015/16 161 - 166

13. Date of Next Meeting

Tuesday, 15 March 2016

There is an induction hearing loop system available in all meeting rooms.  Some of the 
systems are infra-red operated, if you wish to use this system then please contact 
Philippa Turvey on 01733452460 as soon as possible.

Emergency Evacuation Procedure – Outside Normal Office Hours

In the event of the fire alarm sounding all persons should vacate the building by way of the nearest escape 
route and proceed directly to the assembly point in front of the Cathedral.  The duty Beadle will assume 
overall control during any evacuation, however in the unlikely event the Beadle is unavailable, this 
responsibility will be assumed by the Committee Chair.

Committee Members:

Councillors: B Rush (Chair), J Stokes, K Aitken, R Ferris (Vice Chairman), F Fox, Ayres and 
A Shaheed

Substitutes: Councillors: P Thacker, N Shabbir, J Whitby and D Fower

Further information about this meeting can be obtained from Philippa Turvey on telephone 01733 
452460 or by email – philippa.turvey@peterborough.gov.uk



AB
MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES 

HELD IN THE BOURGES / VIERSEN ROOMS, TOWN HALL
ON 5 NOVEMBER 2015

Present: Councillors B Rush (Chairman), J Stokes, K Aitken, F Fox,
A Shaheed, R Ferris  and J Knowles

Also present David Whiles
Dr Graham Warwick

David Heason
Stephen Graves

Jane Pigg, 
Jo Bennis
Kyle Cliff

Jessica Bawden

Healthwatch
Head of Service for Renal Services, 
University Hospitals of Leicester
NHS England
Chief Executive of Peterborough and 
Stamford Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust
Company Secretary
Chief Nurse
Assistant Director Commissioning & 
Contracting Borderline and 
Peterborough, Local Commissioning 
Group
Director of Corporate Affairs, C&PCCG

Officers Present: Dr Liz Robin
Paulina Ford

Director of Public Health
Senior Democratic Services Officer

1. Apologies 

No apologies were received.  

2. Declarations of Interest and Whipping Declarations 

There were no declarations of interest or whipping declarations.

3. Minutes of Meetings Held on 17 September 2015 

The minutes of the meetings held on 17 September 2015 were approved as an accurate record 
with the exception of a change of title for Dr Graham Warwick from Consultant Nephrologist to 
Head of Service for Renal Services, University Hospitals of Leicester.  The Senior Democratic 
Services Officer to amend the minutes before publication.

4. Call-in of any Cabinet, Cabinet Member or Key Officer Decisions

There were no requests for Call-in to consider.

5. Peterborough Renal Haemodialysis Capacity – Update Report

The report was introduced by the Head of Service for Renal Services, University Hospitals of 
Leicester.  The report provided the Commission with an update following the last report which 
was submitted to the Commission on 17 September 2015.  Following a letter from the 
Commission regarding the lack of consultation on the change in service to the University 
Hospitals of Leicester the tender process had been paused.  Also in attendance was David 
Heason, Supplier Manager from NHS England.

3



Comments and questions raised by Members:

 Had there been a public consultation and if so what questions were asked? Had patients 
been asked if they would be happy to move off the Peterborough City Hospital site to a 
satellite unit within 6 miles of Peterborough City Hospital.

 Members were concerned at the lack of evidence that a consultation had taken place, that 
no wider public consultation had taken place and that only existing patients had been 
engaged with to ask their views.

 When the service first moved into the Peterborough City Hospital site had the projected 
rise in costs been taken into consideration.  

 Lot 2 was still being referred to even though at the last meeting of the Commission a 
recommendation had been made by the Commission that  Lot 1 was their preferred option

 Members felt that a formalised set of questions should be put out for consultation and that 
this should have been completed before the tender process had commenced.

 Will the survey that was undertaken with the Peterborough dialysis patients be taken into 
consideration when assessing the tenders before a decision is made.

 Was the tender process finance driven?
 How far would Lot 2 be from Peterborough City Hospital if this was the preferred option? 
 Members were concerned that patient access to the new unit had not been fully taken into 

consideration.
 Had a building been identified for Lot 2?
 If Lot 2 were decided upon how would the building be staffed and what medical staff would 

be available on site.
 Members were concerned that running two units would not be cost effective.
 Clarification was sought as to the exact wording within the tender document regarding the 

location of the satellite unit mentioned in Lot 1.
 Had NHS England prepared an economic case as to what would happen if Lot 2 was the 

outcome of the tender process and how this would affect Peterborough City Hospital 
financially.

Response to comments and questions raised by Members from the Head of Service 
for Renal Services, University Hospitals of Leicester and the Supplier Manager from 
NHS England

 A consultation had been undertaken with 83 patients to assess what would be in the 
patient’s best interest and what their desired level of service would be. Evidence of the 
consultation was in the form of hand written notes of the interviews that had taken place 
and these could be provided.  The feedback from patients would feed into the tender 
process.  The consultation process for Peterborough had been the same as the one 
undertaken for Northamptonshire patients.

 The consultation had however not involved the wider public and this was currently being 
considered. Questions asked covered the quality of the service, place of the service and 
satisfaction of the service. They were also asked if they would be happy to move off the 
Peterborough City Hospital site to a satellite unit within 6 miles of the Peterborough City 
Hospital site.  The vast majority of patients had favoured staying on the Peterborough City 
Hospital site.

 Members were informed that the reason the service had gone out to tender was not due to 
dissatisfaction of the service but due to affordability.  The tender process had gone off the 
procurement framework to provide an opportunity for all providers to bid including 
Peterborough City Hospital.  There was a desire to remain on the hospital site and the only 
barrier was a financial one.  

 There had been a renal dialysis service in Peterborough for twenty years but the Head of 
Service for Renal Services had not been involved in the Service Level Agreement when it 
moved to the current Peterborough City Hospital site.
Procurement regulations prohibited a change in a tender that had already gone out to 
market.  Whilst the Commissions preference for Lot 2 would be noted this would not change 

4



the evaluation process of the tenders which would be done in a fair and transparent process 
in line with guidance.  A decision would be made not only on price but also on efficiency, 
location and most economically advantageous.  There was a set criteria to score against 
and this would be followed.   The key was to find a sustainable service.

 Finances would not drive the decision and it would be a blend of criteria that would drive 
the decision.  Consideration would be given to patient quality, benefits for the local health 
care population and financial consideration.  The highest score overall would win the tender 
process.  There would be a high weighting on the opinion of the patients but it would have 
to be an affordable solution.

 The tender had specified that Lot 2 would need to be within 6 miles of Peterborough City 
Hospital.

 Access for patients and staff would be an important consideration and discussions would 
also take place with the Clinical Commissioning Group who were responsible for patient 
transport.

 The consultation process would have to run alongside the tender process to avoid a delay 
in developing a solution to expand the renal haemodialysis capacity in Peterborough.

 Agreement was sought from the Commission to unfreeze the tender process and go out to 
formal consultation at the same time.

 The outcome of the consultation process would then be fed into the tender process.  
 It would not be possible to say if an existing building had been identified for Lot 2 until the 

tenders had been opened and the same would apply to Lot 1.
 It was quite common for the dialysis units to be a free standing unit away from the main 

hospital.
 A standalone dialysis unit would be staffed on a day to day basis by qualified nursing staff 

and health care assistants.  There would be no doctors present but medical staff would 
visit the unit to review patients at regular intervals.

 The satellite unit referred to in Lot 1 could be located anywhere within 6 miles of the 
Peterborough City Hospital.  The exact wording in the tender document could be provided 
to the Commission.

 All organisations were responsible for their own budget and were required to show value 
for money.  The NHS would hold all providers to account for their actions.

The Chairman recommended that members of the Commission meet with University Hospitals 
of Leicester to agree the wording for a consultation paper as soon as possible to avoid any 
further delay and that the tender process should be allowed to continue.  All Members of the 
Commission present unanimously agreed to this recommendation.

Members requested that the wording in the consultation document be reflective of the wording 
that had been included in the tender documents to ensure clarify regarding Lot 1 and Lot 2.

RECOMMENDATIONS

The Commission noted and commented on the report and made the following 
recommendations:

1. The Commission agreed to unfreeze the tender process, and;
2. That members of the Commission would meet with the Head of Service for Renal Services 

and other relevant people from the University of Leicester Hospitals at the earliest 
opportunity to discuss and agree the wording for the consultation paper.  The Head of 
Service for Renal Services to contact the Chairman to advise of a suitable date to meet.

6. Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust – Overview of Trust 
Activity

The report was introduced by the Chief Executive Officer of Peterborough and Stamford 
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust and was accompanied by the Company Secretary and the 

5



Chief Nurse.  The report provided the Commission with an overview of current issues and 
requirements at Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust.  Members were 
informed that an inspection from the Care Quality Commission in May 2015 had given the 
hospital an overall rating of “good” which placed the Trust in the top third of hospital providers.  
This was a significant improvement from the previous rating of “requires improvement”.  Key 
areas of the report highlighted were quality, performance and finance.

Observations and questions were raised and discussed including:

 Members referred to page 18, paragraph 5.1.6 and sought clarification as to the meaning 
of “never event”.  Members were informed that there was a national list of “never events” 
which referred to things that should never happen to a patient.   One such event had 
happened to a patient but no harm had come to the patient.

 Members referred to page 18, paragraph 5.2.1 and sought further details regarding the  
enforcement from Monitor and wanted to know how long the enforcement was in place and 
what was the requirement to enable it to be lifted.  Members were informed that the length 
of enforcement was up to Monitor.  Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals NHS Foundation 
Trust had been under enforcement for two key elements:

1. A & E Performance – failure to deliver A&E performance against the required 4 
hour target for being seen, treated and admitted or discharged.

2. Financial sustainability – in place for three to four years.
The Trust had achieved the standard for A&E for five continuous months and the required 
performance had therefore been achieved but Monitor had requested that this needed to 
be maintained throughout the winter months.  Monitor met with the Chief Executive Officer 
on a monthly basis  to monitor performance.  The enforcement could be lifted at any time.

 If the renal dialysis service were to leave the hospital what effect would this have on the 
hospital.  Members were informed that if no other use was found for the area vacated in 
the short term there would be a shortfall in rental income and this would be added to the 
hospital deficit.  This would mean having to go to Monitor to ask for further funding to cover 
the increased deficit.

 Members noted that the hospital had a current budget deficit of £37.2m.  Could there be a 
time in the future when there would be not deficit.  Members were advised that reducing 
the deficit was a constant challenge and there was a requirement to come up with a 
financial sustainability plan. However at some point further funding would be sought from 
the Department of Health.  Cost improvements and efficiencies were continually being 
sought and the aim was to reduce the deficit further over the next three years.  A large part 
of the deficit was due to the PFI mortgage.

 If the hospital required a further loan would it have to be through the PFI?  Members were 
informed that historically organisations like the hospital had gone to the Department of 
Health and received an annual gift in that it did not attract interest.  Earlier this year the 
Department of Health proposed that future loans should be interest bearing but each 
organisation would be assessed individually to determine how much of the loan would 
attract interest.  The Trust was advised that it would only attract interest on 40% of the loan 
and the remaining 60% would be interest free.

 Historically there had been problems with the complaints procedure.  What had been put 
in place to resolve these.  Members were informed that a task and finish group involving 
external stakeholders had been set up to look at the issues.  The outcome of this is an 
improved 30 day turnaround of complaints and an expanded substantive complaints team.  
The complaints procedure was now more robust and there were more face to face 
meetings at the initial stage of the complaint.  There was also better and more open 
challenge around a set of key performance indicators which were reported on monthly 
through a complaints review team.

 Members asked the new Chief Nurse if she had put any new initiatives in place since taking 
on the role eight months ago.  The Chief Nurse responded that resolving the complaints 
issue had been a key priority and ensuring that the patients and their families were more 
confident in the care given to them.  In addition to this the following areas of work had been 
undertaken:

6



o Work with ward teams towards an accreditation scheme and giving the ward 
managers more ownership of their ward areas.

o Specials and increased bed capacity.
o Reducing the falls rate.
o Reducing Clostridium difficile rates and pressure ulcer rates.

The Chairman congratulated the Chief Nurse on her achievements during her first eight months 
in post.

 Members queried the introduction of parking charges at Stamford hospital.  Members were 
advised that the  two groups of people that used the car park were members of the public 
and staff.  It cost money to provide parking and at Peterborough City Hospital there were 
charges already in place for both staff and the public.  The introduction of parking charges 
would make it more equitable for staff and cover the cost of provision of parking.  There 
had been a growth of non-hospital related parking at Stamford and it was thought that this 
would reduce the issue. A consultation was currently being undertaken.  Staff charges 
would be equitable with Peterborough staff.

The Chairman acknowledged the provision of excellent services at the hospital and thanked 
the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Nurse and Company Director for attending and responding 
to questions asked.  

ACTION

The Commission noted the report.

7. Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group Performance Report 
September 2015

The report was introduced by the Director of Corporate Affairs, C&PCCG.  The report provided 
the Commission with an update on the CCG’s performance against the targets that it was 
measured against for the financial year 2015/16. The Assistant Director Commissioning & 
Contracting Borderline and Peterborough, Local Commissioning Group was also in attendance 
to take questions.  Key issues highlighted were:

 Venous thromboembolism (VTE) Risk Assessment
 Stroke Targets
 Ambulance Performance
 Referral to Treatment (RTT) in Ear Nose and Throat (ENT) and Ophthalmology

Observations and questions were raised and discussed including:

 Members noted that the impact of the implementation of Community ENT which went live 
in April 2015 had not reduced the waiting list in the hospital as expected.  Members were 
advised that the new service was referring more patients to the Trust than expected and 
there was some work being done around this to try and understand why.

 Members referred to the poor performance of the ambulance service and sought an 
explanation of what R2 performance and A19 performance was.  Members were advised 
that they represented the amount of time it took to reach an incident.

 Was the CCG working with the ambulance service to try and improve performance?   
Members were informed that work was being undertaken with them through a system 
resilience group as part of the urgent care programme.

 Members sought assurance that the ambulance personnel were being looked after as 
employees and that they were able to take appropriate breaks.  Members were informed 
that the performance standards were national standards but there was an  expectation that 
anyone employed through the NHS would be treated well.  The ambulance service had 

7



recently undertaken a recruitment campaign which had seen an increase in staff which 
would ultimately reduce the pressure on staff.

 Members referred to the performance tables in appendix 1 and sought clarification as to 
why the speciality ‘Trauma & Orthopaedics’ was showing as RED throughout the tables.  
Members were informed that this was one of the largest areas with the highest activity and 
significant spend.  This provided a challenge for the Trust to cope with the amount of activity 
in this area of speciality.  A triage service had been put in place in the community to try and 
reduce this.

 Members noted that Hinchingbrooke hospital did not have many red indicators compared 
to the other providers.  Members were informed that this did not have as many waiting lists 
in comparison to the others.  This was due to the fact that it did not have a large emergency 
department which allowed them to concentrate on other areas of work.

 Members noted that reserves of £8.8m were being used to offset areas of overspend.  
Were measures being taken to put money back into the reserves?  Members were informed 
that the CCG did not keep a large amount in reserve but there was a requirement to keep 
1% surplus however this was unlikely to be met this year and that it would be a struggle 
going forward.

ACTION AGREED

The Commission noted the report.

8. Forward Plan of Executive Decisions

The Commission received the latest version of the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions, 
containing Executive Decisions that the Leader of the Council anticipated the Cabinet or 
individual Cabinet Members would make during the course of the following four months.  
Members were invited to comment on the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions and, where 
appropriate, identify any relevant areas for inclusion in the Commission’s work programme.

ACTION AGREED

The Commission noted the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions.

9. Work Programme 2015-2016

Members considered the Committee’s Work Programme for 2015/16 and discussed possible 
items for inclusion.

ACTION AGREED

To confirm the work programme for 2015/16 and the Senior Democratic Services Officer to 
include any additional items as requested during the meeting including a further report to the 
Commission at the next meeting on the outcome of the Peterborough Renal Haemodialysis 
Capacity tender process.

The meeting began at 7.00pm and finished at 8.58pm CHAIRMAN

8



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES Agenda Item No. 5

13 JANUARY 2016 Public Report

Combined Report of the Cabinet Member for Integrated Adult Social Care and 
Health, and the Service Director for Adult Services and Communities

Contact Officer(s) – Adrian Chapman, Service Director
Contact Details – adrian.chapman@peterborough.gov.uk Tel: 01733 863887  

UPDATE REPORT ON INTEGRATED ADULT SOCIAL CARE AND HEALTH

1. PURPOSE

1.1 This report provides an overview of the work of the Adult Social Care service which forms part 
of the Adults and Communities Department, and incorporates both the Cabinet Member’s 
progress report and the Service Director’s performance report.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The Scrutiny Commission is asked to note and comment upon the progress made since March 
2015, and the priorities, challenges and opportunities facing the service over the coming period. 

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 

3.1 There are a number of local and national indicators that relate to Adult Social Care. These are 
referred to within the Local Account which is included as an appendix to this report.  

4. BACKGROUND

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

In March 2015 the council concluded a restructure of its senior management arrangements. 
This process created the role of Corporate Director for People and Communities, a role which 
includes the statutory functions of Director of Children’s Services and Director of Adult Social 
Services. The Corporate Director (Wendi Ogle-Welbourn) is supported by two Service Directors 
– the Service Director for Adult Services and Communities (Adrian Chapman), and the Service 
Director for Children’s Services and Safeguarding (Lou Williams).

Alongside these internal changes, 2015 has seen the commencement of fundamental long term 
reform of Adult Social Care with the implementation of the Care Act 2014 (from 1st April 2015) 
and the Better Care Fund (Peterborough’s plan receiving approval in February 2015).  The 
Care Act in particular is delivering the most fundamental changes to health and social care for a 
generation or more, and both this and the Better Care Fund are discussed in more detail later in 
this report).

In April 2015 Uniting Care assumed the role of health integrator and commenced delivery of the 
reform of community health services which has begun to lay the foundations for delivery of the 
ambitions for integrated working set out within the Better Care Fund. The Committee will be 
aware that the Uniting Care contract has since transferred to the Clinical Commissioning Group, 
and again this and the overarching business model for Uniting Care are discussed in more 
detail later.

The council has also established closer working relationships with Cambridgeshire County 
Council around delivery of Adult Safeguarding, in particular in developing a shared model for 
the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) as piloted by Peterborough from 1 April 2015.

9

mailto:adrian.chapman@peterborough.gov.uk


4.5 All of this has been addressed within the context of increasing demand and financial challenge 
faced by the council. 

5. KEY ISSUES

5.1

5.2

The new structural arrangements described above provide a unique opportunity to think 
differently about the way services are delivered, alongside our commitment to becoming a 
commissioning council. With this in mind, we have used the opportunity to identify the key 
priorities that will deliver services effectively and sustainably, each building on the good work 
already being delivered across the service.

The key workstreams that have been identified so far are:

 To improve and enhance our relationship with providers and build capacity
 To review and transform safeguarding and quality assurance practice to ensure it is robust 

but proportionate
 To support the improvement of quality in the care system
 To ensure that entry into the Adult Social Care system is easy, straightforward and effective 

for all of our residents and partners who need it
 To make effective use of the Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub, ensuring that only 

appropriate cases are referred to it and that there is a full multi-agency response
 To ensure opportunities for integration across health and wider social care systems are 

identified and pursued
 To measure and monitor performance, both quantitative and qualitative, robustly to ensure 

that potential issues and risks are identified early and, where possible, prevented
 To create a stronger focus on reablement and preventative work through creative and 

innovative projects, including making full use of digital technologies

5.3

5.3.1

5.3.2

Each of these is summarised in more detail below.

Provider Relationships
Our reliance on care providers across the whole market is fundamental to the effective delivery 
of safe adult social care. We need to ensure that our relationship is built on trust and 
transparency and is a mutually supportive one, whilst at the same time providing proportionate 
challenge where necessary. We have reviewed the ways in which providers are engaged and 
have started direct dialogue with some of our key providers to better understand how they might 
see relationships working more effectively. We are keen to engage directly with providers in 
arenas appropriate to them, and have launched a new provider forum which will give 
opportunities for providers across both adults and children’s services to engage directly with the 
council and with each other.

We need to build capacity in the adult social care system and by engaging with providers they 
will have the information they need to build their businesses and create new ones where they 
see we have the need.  The cost of placements for adults with the most complex needs has 
increased significantly and this is partially due to the lack of market competition.

Safeguarding and Quality Assurance
The council currently operates two safeguarding units – one for adult services and one for 
children’s services. Whilst the safeguarding legislation may be different, we believe the 
principles sitting behind it focussed on protecting the most vulnerable are consistent with one 
another. It therefore follows that we build on the new integrated council structure by also 
merging these two units to create a single safeguarding and quality assurance team. This will 
provide single leadership, a shared vision, added resilience and capacity, and consistency to 
our provider partners and service users. We are now in the process of integrating these two 
teams which will become fully operational early in 2016.  This unit will also be responsible for 
delivering the councils Deprivation of Liberty and Court of Protection functions.

10



5.3.3

5.3.4

5.3.5

5.3.6

Quality Improvement
Up to now, the way we work with providers to support improvement and development has been 
inconsistent – if a contractual issue has led to the need for improvement our contracts team led 
by Serco may intervene, if the issue has emerged as a result of a safeguarding concern then 
our quality team may provide support. We believe this doesn’t ensure a fully joined-up and 
contextualised approach to dealing with concerns – it inherently builds in additional layers of 
reporting and complexity which don’t make it easy for providers to navigate through and has a 
direct impact on our ability to build and maintain a good relationship with the market. We are 
therefore in the process of bringing these functions together into a single commissioning 
function that includes strategy, quality improvement and contract compliance. This will enable 
us to better identify and respond to needs and concerns in a more joined-up way.

Navigating Through the Adult Social Care System
It can be difficult to find the right entry point to access information or services about adult social 
care or related services, especially if you are vulnerable or in crisis. The council is delivering a 
major transformation programme (Customer Experience) that will make it clear and 
straightforward for residents and our partners to access information, advice or support they 
need quickly. This might mean services being accessed in the community or via a new 
customer service centre model. Additionally, and as part of this programme, we are also 
determining the right way of delivering our services – some will move into the new ‘front door’ 
arrangements so that issues can be dealt with at first contact, others will be commissioned 
differently, some will be delivered collaboratively with our partners or by community groups, and 
others may be retained or spun out.

Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub
Peterborough operates a local Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub (MASH) as part of countywide 
MASH arrangements. There is a need to review the current pathway for social care contacts to 
ensure that the MASH is dealing with appropriate cases only and doesn’t simply become 
another triage tool with the potential resultant impacts associated with backlogs and waiting 
lists. With this in mind, we are also looking closely at the effectiveness of the Children’s MASH 
arrangements, and recognise that there may be significant merit in bringing the two together, 
not least to share processes and capacity. We are also keen to enter into discussions with 
police colleagues and with the county council to determine the most sustainable MASH 
arrangements for all partners to ensure the most vulnerable are protected from harm. With this 
in mind we have commissioned a review of the MASH arrangements across Peterborough and 
Cambridgeshire and the outcome of that work, expected in early April, will inform its future 
design.

Health and Social Care Integration
It is widely recognised that an integrated health and social care service is more likely to deliver 
the best outcomes for people who need those services. As Members will know, the Portfolio 
Holder’s remit is ‘Integrated Adult Social Care and Health’ in recognition of this. The current 
health and social care landscape is complex and not always aligned, resulting in inefficiency 
and variable outcomes. Partly driven by the principles of the Better Care Fund (referred to later 
in this report), we have recognised that there may be a different way of delivering some of our 
Adult Social Care operational services through alignment with our health partners. Already 
there are some highly effective examples of where this works well, but these are not universal 
across the services. The transformation programme referred to above includes a major project 
to review and redesign social care and other tier 3 services to build on the potential and 
willingness in place for collaboration.

11



5.3.7

5.3.8

Performance Management
It is clearly vital that we can effectively monitor real-time data and information to ensure our 
services are safe and responding appropriately to the right issues. This process also needs to 
inform our commissioning work and the deployment of our resources especially where we are 
able to prevent crisis before it happens. Although there has been both national and regional 
work on this issue, we want to ensure we have clear visibility of our performance in 
Peterborough and that we also gather local data and information that can be converted to 
intelligence to inform our collective decision making. We have therefore produced a local 
performance framework built on the regional model that will achieve this for us and our 
partners, and this is discussed in more detail later in this report.

Reablement and Prevention
As a council we are committed to achieving a stronger focus on preventative work in ways that 
are innovative, challenging, sometimes non-traditional, and which make full use of new 
technologies. We believe there are ways of achieving this that don’t rely solely on a council or 
health response, and so are developing a programme of work that identifies opportunities for 
voluntary sector partners and communities to do more. Whilst this will require some investment, 
it will undoubtedly deliver better outcomes at less cost and will prevent much higher costs from 
being incurred later on. We are also piloting new assistive technologies, and have a special 
focus on the impacts and outcomes achieved through reablement and therapy services.

5.4

5.4.1

5.4.2

Implementing the Care Act 2015

Alongside these important areas of work, we continue to implement all relevant aspects of the 
Care Act.

Part 1 of the Care Act came into law on 1 April 2015. The approach we have taken so far to 
implementing the Act is via integration into our core priorities which can be demonstrated as 
follows:

i. Improved educational attainment and skills for our children & young people
The Care Act requires the council to explore all aspects of wellbeing for individuals 
including the outcome of accessing and engaging in work, training, education or 
volunteering.  We will be working with the local colleges to deliver these outcomes and 
also to promote career opportunities within care and support, working to develop a 
skilled social care workforce within the city.

ii. Supporting our Culture and Leisure Trust to continue to deliver our culture, arts 
and sport in the city
The Care Act reinforces the impact on wellbeing of making use of necessary facilities or 
services in the local community including public transport and recreational facilities or 
services.  This is one of the wellbeing outcome domains that the council will be enabling. 

iii. Safeguarding children and vulnerable adults
The Care Act brings clear duties to safeguard vulnerable adults.  The council already 
works in partnership with other local organisations but will be building on this, 
embedding what we do already and continuing with our plans to improve and embed the 
Multi Agency Safeguarding Hub.

iv. Keeping our communities safe and cohesive and healthy
The Care Act supports the council’s existing programme of community capacity building, 
and we intend to continue to invest in building capacity within our communities to 
support vulnerable residents.

 

12



v. Pursuing the Environment Capital agenda to position Peterborough as a leading 
city in environmental matters
The Care Act supports our identified principles of support being provided closer to home, 
and access to public transport. Our information and advice service, which became 
operational in February in preparation for the Care Act, also signposts to advice on 
energy efficiency for those who would find this beneficial.

vi. Growth, regeneration and economic development of the city to bring new 
investment and jobs
The Care Act supports the development of social enterprises, a key aspect of our 
transformation of day opportunities which we transformed earlier this year.  We have 
already commenced development in this area including a catering business and car 
washing service.  We will support our service user to further expand on enterprises such 
as these.

5.4.3 The final priority – to achieve the best health and wellbeing for the city – underpins the 
principles of the Care Act and our overall operating model.

5.4.4 The Care Act places a number of general duties on the council, and these are summarised in 
the following section. Below each of the duties, a short summary of the council’s response to 
date is included.

i. Promoting Individual Wellbeing
Local authorities have a duty to promote wellbeing when carrying out any of their care and 
support functions in respect of a person. This may sometimes be referred to as the 
‘wellbeing principle’.  The wellbeing principle applies in all cases where a local authority is 
providing non-assessed ‘universal’ services available to the local population as a whole, 
as well as when carrying out a care and support function, or making a decision in relation 
to a person.

 ‘Wellbeing’ is a broad concept, which may include any or all of the following:

 personal dignity (including treatment of the individual with respect)
 physical and mental health and emotional wellbeing
 protection from abuse and neglect
 control by the individual over day-to-day life (including over care and support 

provided and the way it is provided)
 participation in work, education, training or recreation
 social and economic wellbeing
 domestic, family and personal
 suitability of living accommodation
 the individual’s contribution to society

Council response to date: we have been working closely with partners across the health 
system to develop and establish a wellbeing service which recognises and invests in 
services across the public and not for profit sectors to provide appropriate support to 
individuals and families that need it. Additionally, the council’s restructure has brought 
together a wide range of previously separate community services including housing and 
community safety alongside adult social care services which means we are able to take a  
whole-person view of an individual’s situation and ensure the best solution possible is 
provided.

ii. Preventing Needs for Care and Support
It is critical to the vision in the Care Act that the care and support system works to actively 
promote wellbeing and independence, and actively seeks to prevent people reaching a 
crisis point.  It is vital, therefore that the care and support system intervenes early to 
support individuals, helps people retain or regain their skills and confidence and prevents 
need or delays deteriorating wherever possible.

13



Council response to date: we continue to develop our preventative services, most 
significantly our enablement, reablement and therapy services which serve to enable 
people to either maintain or return to independence following for example a period of 
hospitalisation. This enables people to remain as functionally independent as possible and 
helps prevent further episodes of dependence. Our enablement and reablement focus is 
on optimising an individual’s independence within their limitations, rather than resolving 
health care issues. The objective is to facilitate individuals to do for themselves rather 
than the conventional home care approach of carers performing scripted duties without 
considering what the client could and would like to achieve for themselves. Our service 
was inspected by the Care Quality Commission in 2015 and was rated good.

We also operate a team of social work staff within the Hospital to support effective and 
timely discharge into safe and appropriate care arrangements or to return home, and the 
transformation work described earlier making it easier to access information and advice 
early is a significant step towards achieving a robust preventative model.

iii. Promoting Integration of Care and Support with Health Services
Integration, cooperation and close partnership working seeks to improve patient and 
service user experience and outcomes by minimising barriers between organisations and 
services, and by delivering care that is tailored to meet the needs of those in need of care 
and support, their carers and families. The assessment process is one of the most 
important elements of the care and support system. The assessment is one of the key 
interactions between a local authority and an individual, whether an adult needing care or 
a carer. The process must be person-centred throughout, involving the person and 
supporting them to have choice and control. Another vital part of the care and support 
process for people with ongoing needs is the ‘care and support plan’ or ‘support plan’ in 
the case of carers. The individual concerned will be given every opportunity to take joint 
ownership of the development of the plan.  The plan ‘belongs’ to the person it is intended 
for, with the local authority role to ensure the production and sign-off of the plan to ensure 
that it is appropriate to meet the identified needs.

Council response to date: we continue to enjoy positive and productive working 
relationships with a wide range of relevant agencies and organisations across 
Peterborough and Cambridgeshire, including with the police, social landlords and care 
providers. Of most relevance though is our relationship with partners across the health 
services. We have a number of positive examples of collaboration with health partners – 
for example, the co-located team of Adult Social Care staff based in the Hospital who 
work alongside clinical and other hospital staff to manage the transfer of care service 
described above, and our active involvement in the rigorous systems resilience planning 
process to ensure the health and social care system runs safely and effectively. We are 
now starting to build on this approach by seeking more ways to integrate to create a 
joined-up health and social care system for Peterborough. This is discussed in more detail 
later in this report. We have also revised our assessment and eligibility criteria for access 
to council funded care and support, and have produced new guidance and procedures for 
care and support planning to focus on holistic support plans including for non-council 
funded services. 

iv. Providing Information and Advice
Information and advice is fundamental to enabling people, carers and families to take 
control of, and make well-informed choices about, their care and support and how they 
fund it.  Not only does information and advice help to promote people’s wellbeing by 
increasing their ability to exercise choice and control, it is also a vital component of 
preventing or delaying the need for care and support.

14



The local authority must ensure that information and advice services cover more than just 
basic information about care and support, including:
 prevention of care and support needs
 finances
 health
 housing
 employment
 what to do in cases of abuse or neglect of an adult

The Care Act also states that local authorities must provide independent advocacy to 
facilitate the person’s involvement in the care and support assessment, planning and 
review processes where an individual would experience substantial difficulty in 
understanding, retaining or using information given, or in communicating their views, 
wishes or feelings and where there is nobody else appropriate.

Council response to date: good quality, accurate and timely information, advice and 
guidance is a fundamental component of the council’s Customer Experience programme 
as described above. We recognise that by giving people the chance to help themselves 
more through the provision of information it will deliver better outcomes (i.e. issues will be 
resolved much earlier) and will enable us to focus effort and resource on those with more 
complex needs. 

For this to be effective the information we offer has to be relevant and be ‘pushed’ to our 
service users as they won’t necessarily know what they want until they find it. We are 
already providing more information as a result of the Care Act, and have a dedicated 
officer whose role is to ensure that information is timely, relevant and available in the most 
appropriate ways. We plan to embed this role and function and build it alongside the new 
‘front door’ arrangements which we hope will provide a single database of information that 
can be accessed in different ways across Peterborough and Cambridgeshire.

v. Promoting Diversity and Quality in Provision of Services
High-quality, personalised care and support can only be achieved where there is a vibrant, 
responsive market of service providers. The role of the local authority is critical to 
achieving this, both through the actions it takes to directly commission services to meet 
needs, and the broader understanding and interactions it facilitates with the wider market, 
for the benefit of all local people and communities.

Interruptions, and the possibility of interruptions, to care and support services causes 
uncertainty and anxiety for people receiving service, their carers, family and friends.  It is 
vital, therefore that the care and support systems remain robust, and that provisions are 
made to minimise the impact on the individuals concerned.  

Council response to date: we have worked hard over the past few months to build 
relationships with our care providers who are an integral part of the health and social care 
system. Peterborough has a number of providers who between them offer some 
exemplary care services, both residential and domiciliary. We have produced a Market 
Position Statement to help care providers understand our needs now and in the future so 
that they can plan effectively and be best positioned to meet those needs. We have also 
held the inaugural care provider forum as referred to above bringing all providers together 
with key council and health colleagues to learn from one another. Additionally, we have 
developed a procedure for responding to financial failure of social care providers to 
ensure there is continuity of service.

15



5.4.5

5.4.6

5.4.7

Alongside these general duties, there are some specific and important requirements contained 
within the Care Act, including:

i. Support for Carers 
Carers play a significant role in preventing the needs for care and support for the people 
they care for, which is why it is important that local authorities consider preventing carers 
from developing needs for care and support themselves.  We value the role that carers 
play and will look to provide support to prevent breakdown of carer relationships.

Our carers’ support service is provided via a commissioned service run by the Carers 
Trust. We have developed a new carer’s self-assessment, carer’s eligibility criteria and 
carers support plan, and are in the process of reviewing our Carers Partnership Board, 
with a view to developing it as a more strategic and influential Board supplemented by 
regular forum-style events.

ii. Safeguarding
Safeguarding means protecting an adult’s right to live in safety, free from abuse and 
neglect. It is about people and organisations working together to prevent and stop both 
the risks and experience of abuse or neglect, while at the same time making sure that the 
adult’s wellbeing is promoted including having regard to their views, wishes, feelings and 
beliefs in deciding on any action.

The Care Act introduced for the first time a legislative framework for safeguarding adults.  
As part of the response to the changes introduced by the Act the council established an 
adult social care procedure within the MASH. The Care Act expanded the coverage of 
adult safeguarding to include domestic abuse and self-neglect. 

Since April the council has received a large volume of safeguarding referrals, in part due 
to the inclusion of these new categories, but also in part due to the publicity that came 
with the legislative requirements. The council has increased its resources within the 
MASH in response and has latterly commissioned a review of the MASH model as 
referred to above.

The independent Safeguarding Adults Board held a conference focussing on self-neglect 
in September and the council has commissioned training for social care staff as part of its 
membership agreement with RiPfA (Research in Practice for Adults) around self-neglect 
and making safeguarding personal.  

Part 2 of the Care Act was due to come into effect in April 2016, covering the financial aspects 
of the Act relating to those who currently self-fund and introducing a cap on care costs. 
However, in July 2015 the Secretary of State announced that these changes would be delayed 
until 2020.

The council produces monthly stakeholder newsletters around progress in delivery of the Care 
Act reforms and these can be found at appendix 1.

5.5

5.5.1

5.5.2

Better Care Fund

The £3.8bn Better Care Fund (formerly the Integration Transformation Fund) was announced 
by the Government in the June 2013 spending round, to ensure a transformation in integrated 
health and social care.

Peterborough City Council was notified in February 2015 that the submission for £11.9m of 
funding had been approved and funding would begin in April 2015. The Better Care Fund (BCF) 
in Peterborough is an agreement between the Clinical Commissioning Group, the City Council 
and Cambridgeshire County Council which sets out a plan to build on integrated working to 
improve outcomes for adults with health, care and support needs. 

16



5.5.3

5.5.4

The BCF contributes to Peterborough’s vision for integration by focusing on initiatives that will 
help to prepare the system for a bigger change in the medium term by:

 Protecting existing social care services
 Supporting the development of 7 day working and data sharing, and
 Supporting the development of closer working, including development of joint 

assessments with an accountable lead professional

The plan contains five work streams for which a summary of progress is given below:

i. Data Sharing – This work stream seeks to ensure better sharing of patient records at the 
point of delivery across health and social care.  A combined summary view of health and 
social care records was being developed by Uniting Care and the council was working to 
ensure a summary of the social care record could be fed in to this and that the ‘One View’ 
summary would be accessible by our staff to help inform decision making and support 
planning. Despite the Uniting Care contract ending, we still anticipate this work progressing 
as planned although at this stage it is too early to confirm the detail.

ii. Seven day working – This work stream seeks to ensure availability of health and social 
care services across the weekend in addition to Monday to Friday. So far the council has 
put social worker resource into the hospital at the weekends and Uniting Care had 
developed the Joint Emergency Team (JET) which links into the GP out of hours service to 
provide additional professional response outside of core hours. We anticipate the JET 
continuing via the CCG.

iii. Person Centred Systems – As part of this workstream the council is working with health 
colleagues to develop multi-disciplinary Neighbourhood Teams aligned to GP practices. 
This would create a joint locality health and social care team able to work cohesively as a 
single unit. Work is also underway to realign reablement and intermediate care teams.

iv. Information, Communication and Advice – As part of this work stream the council is 
leading on the development of an information and advice hub which can be accessed by 
the public and by health and social care professionals alike. This is in line with the vision of 
‘no wrong front door’. This work also overlaps with work being carried out in the Customer 
Experience programme.  

v. Ageing Healthily and Prevention – This workstream pulls in expertise from Public Health 
to address the modifiable lifestyle factors that can support residents to stay healthier for 
longer and maintain independence in the event of health conditions developing. Joint work 
around dementia and falls is underway, alongside a targeted campaign to promote assistive 
technology and expansion of reablement services.

5.6

5.6.1

Mental Capacity and Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards

The Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) established a process for oversight of decisions 
made to deprive people without mental capacity of their liberty within hospital or care home 
settings. In broad terms the DoLS process provides a professional assessment, conducted 
independently of the hospital or care home in question, of whether:
 The person suffers from an impairment of the mind as diagnosed by a section 12 medical 

practitioner
 The person lacks capacity to decide whether to be accommodated in the hospital or care 

home in question for the purpose of care and treatment, and
 It is in their best interests to be deprived of their liberty in the ways proposed by the 

hospital or care home setting

17



5.6.2 In 2014, the Supreme Court handed down a long awaited ruling in respect of conjoined cases of 
P v Cheshire West and P & Q v Surrey on the meaning of 'deprivation of liberty' for people 
who lack the mental capacity to make their own decision on their residence and their care 
package. The result was a widening of the definition of deprivation of liberty to clearly include 
the following groups:
 Those lacking capacity to consent who are accommodated within a care home who would 

not be free to leave alone, irrespective of the fact they might appear content with their 
presence in the setting

 Those lacking capacity to consent who are accommodated in other settings, for example 
supported living or extra care, where similar levels of restriction are applied. For this group 
the DoLS administrative process cannot be applied and instead an application must be 
made to the Court of Protection

 Young people aged 16-18 lacking capacity to consent who are accommodated in any 
setting where restrictions are placed upon them which are greater than those which might 
be generally placed upon young people of that age.

5.6.3

5.6.4

5.6.5

Following the judgement the council has continued to receive unprecedented volumes of 
applications for deprivation of liberty safeguards relating to care and support of people lacking 
mental capacity. In 2014/15 the council received 414 applications and granted 294 at a cost of 
£251,888. To October this year we had received 370 applications.   

A number of individuals in non-residential settings have been identified as requiring an 
application to the Court of Protection as a result of the supreme court judgment. Training in the 
Court of Protection process has been provided to the social work teams and applications for 
these individuals are due to commence.

The Law Commission has published a consultation in response to the pressures being faced by 
all Local Authorities. This proposes significant changes to the framework for supporting those 
who lack capacity, although any changes are unlikely to be made effective until 2017. Despite 
this we have increased capacity in the DoLS service to cope with demand and prevent waiting 
lists and backlogs, and proposals to introduce additional investment in this service are included 
in the council’s budget proposals.

5.7

5.7.1

5.7.2

5.7.3

Quality Assurance and the Local Account

The council has finalised the annual report for Adult Social Care in 2014-15 (the Local 
Account). This is attached for information at Appendix 2.  The Local Account sets out the 
achievements in the year and summarises the performance against the national Adult Social 
Care Outcomes Framework.

Our Quality Assurance service is currently also responsible for assessing, monitoring and 
overseeing the improvement in the quality of care provided by the care market, for monitoring 
comments and complaints received about care services (both internal and external), and for 
monitoring formal safeguarding and other concerns raised about care providers to ensure 
trends are identified early.

Managing safeguarding and supporting quality improvement are two separate functions that 
arguably work more effectively where they are delivered separately, albeit that there will always 
need to be a close link between the two disciplines. As a result, we are in the process of 
creating (i) a new quality assurance service and (ii) a new quality improvement service. The QA 
service will lead on all safeguarding concerns relating to individuals or care settings across both 
adults and children’s services, whilst the QI service will provide support for service 
improvements and will support market development, again across both adults and children’s 
services. Alongside the QI service we plan to integrate the council’s commissioning functions 
for people services, in order that the process to develop and commission the market is informed 
by the outcomes of QI interventions, and vice versa.

18



5.8

5.8.1

5.8.2

5.8.3

5.8.4

Other Transformation initiatives

Single Consolidated Savings Plan
As with all areas of the council Adult Social Care has been required to deliver savings in line 
with funding pressures. The department originally identified 17 initiatives which amounted to a 
savings target of £8.766m. The plan has since been updated to include a Customer Experience 
target of £200k and an additional amount to cover budget pressures in 2015/16 of £300k, 
bringing the target to £9.266m.

Business cases and leads are established for all initiatives and delivery is being tracked weekly 
through a Delivery Board. The fy15/16 initiatives are largely made up from driving further 
efficiencies and savings from existing services. This approach has diminishing returns and so 
work has started on developing structural savings and revenue opportunities for fy16/17. Some 
of these initiatives are being developed with partners. We are on track to meet the £9.266m 
commitment.

The initiatives that form part of this programme of work are detailed below.

Review of Placements
Over the past year we have reviewed commissioned care packages. This has covered all client 
groups including Mental Health, Learning Disability, Sensory Impaired and Older People. The 
project was set up to achieve efficiencies and deliver better outcomes for the individuals and to 
promote independence.

Currently working with a team of three dedicated social workers on the project, the project team 
have achieved efficiencies and better outcomes on over 100 packages of care and support.

Assistive Technology
Continuing to work with Cross Keys Homes regarding the delivery of a lifeline service, the 
project has matured to cover much more within its scope. The project’s main aim has been to 
embed within service delivery the promotion and take up of Assistive Technology that aims to 
improve greater independence, self-determination and preserve dignity.  

Jointly working with the CCG, the council is supporting a pilot to trial epilepsy sensors. The use 
of epilepsy alarms and other assistive technology equipment for patients can bring significant 
improvements in their quality of life and efficiencies as well as benefits to the clinical services 
that are stretched already.  

Working with the Occupational Therapy service within the council, the assistive technology 
project has also been reviewing all double-up (2:1 support) care packages. Through appropriate 
training and efficient moving and handling equipment, the Occupational Therapy service has 
reduced the need for 2 carers to 1 carer when lifting and handling. 

Adult Social Care’s latest initiative, working jointly with Alcove (a new business start-up), aims 
to enable people to live independently using the latest state of the art assistive and wireless 
integrated technology in the home.

Learning Disability Day Services
As a result of the strategic review of day services undertaken by the council during 2014/15 the 
in-house day and employment support services for adults with a learning disability were 
transferred to City College Peterborough from 1 September 2015.

19



5.8.5

5.8.6

5.8.7

In transferring the service the council agreed with City College Peterborough that the day 
opportunity and employment support service would be transformed in line with the outcomes 
agreed by the Cabinet during the period up to 31 March 2016. The outcomes agreed by the 
Cabinet were that support should be focused on promoting and maintaining independence and 
be community based. To achieve these outcomes City College Peterborough are reviewing how 
the service is delivered and the accommodation it requires. A formal consultation paper will be 
published shortly. In addition the review has delivered efficiencies across both the council/City 
College managed services and through outcome-driven commissioning from the Independent 
Sector.  

Mental Health Wellbeing and Recovery Contract
Redesign of the current service is underway to enable the scope of the service to include a 
reablement function for people with mild to moderate mental health needs. This will 
complement the CPFT reablement service, being developed under the Section 75 Agreement 
and is scheduled to commence in early 2016.
Additionally, under the designation of the Crisis Care Concordat 2014, Peterborough City 
Council through CPFT have employed a Mental Health social worker to complete care 
assessments and design care plans for those residing in HMPYOI Peterborough. The social 
worker has been in place since May 2014 and has been working in conjunction with the prison 
Healthcare, Mental Health and Diversity teams to ensure the correct care and support is in 
place for those that are assessed as in need.  

Mental Health Advocacy
The council commissions both statutory mental health advocacy (also known as the IMHA 
service) and generic mental health advocacy to assist eligible clients with dealing with issues 
that could and do lead to deterioration of their mental health, such as welfare benefits, housing 
and similar. Both contracts are block contracts and have undergone thorough review, leading to 
a forthcoming tender of all advocacy services commissioned by the council.

Provision of Care and Support in Extra Care Schemes in Peterborough
The council has recently undertaken a tendering exercise for the provision of Personal Care 
and Support within the five extra care housing schemes in Peterborough to deliver effective and 
efficient support within extra care housing. The schemes were originally commissioned by NHS 
Peterborough at different times and with different service specifications leading to differences in 
the support available in the schemes. The new contract ensures compliance to the council’s 
contracting rules alongside developing a more consistent approach across all schemes. The 
details of the successful provider for each scheme is as below:

Scheme New Provider
Friary Court Axiom Crossroads Care
The Pavilions Axiom Crossroads Care
The Spinney Axiom Crossroads Care
St Edmunds Hales Group Ltd
Bishopsfield Hales Group Ltd

5.8.8 Homecare 
Retendering older people and generic homecare contracts aims to secure the required quality 
and capacity of support services to deliver improved outcomes whilst achieving the best 
possible value through offering a larger volume of business to a reduced number of providers. 
Three geographical zones will be tendered with one lead provider operating in each zone, with 
specialist homecare provision (mental health and learning disability) remaining under the 
existing framework.

The National Living Wage announcement will have an impact on homecare costs over the next 
five years, and work is being undertaken to understand the impact on the council.

20



Extensive market engagement has been undertaken with local homecare providers and those 
not currently operating in Peterborough, and there has been engagement with social care staff 
and with people receiving homecare services to inform the specification.

The first draft of the service specification and tender paperwork has been drafted, but providers 
have recently stated that they would like more time to prepare for potential consortium and/or 
sub contractual arrangements and understand the impact of the National Living Wage. The 
tender timeline has therefore been revised to enable this to happen. It is planned that the tender 
will now go live in the new year.  

5.9 Performance Management

5.9.1

5.9.2

5.9.3

National Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework
The Department of Health produces an annual Outcomes Framework which measures quality 
of care using performance data, providing relevant and timely information on the outcomes for 
people using social care services and their carers. The product enables the council to compare 
performance with other councils and identify areas of particular concern or success.

Eastern Region Performance Scorecard
Whilst the national product is a valuable tool to ensure service users are receiving the best 
services possible, it is generic in nature as it is applied nationally. The regional Association of 
Directors of Adult Social Services has therefore commissioned the development of an Eastern 
Region Performance Scorecard, which takes its steer from the national Framework but drills 
down into more relevant areas of concern or priority for the eastern region.

The Scorecard focuses on four priority areas:
 Care Management: volumes, user satisfaction and workforce metrics
 Commissioning and Service Delivery: admissions to and volumes in different settings, 

market quality measures and customer experience
 Integration: delays from hospitals, Better Care Fund metrics and prisons data
 Safeguarding and DoLS: volumes, Making Safeguarding Personal and customer 

experience

The Scorecard will report quarterly and will include historical data where known to show trends.

To date, 8 out of the 11 councils in the region have submitted returns for quarters 1 and 2, and 
the team responsible for developing the Scorecard, led by Peterborough’s Tina Hornsby, are in 
the process of producing a detailed analysis for Directors.

Peterborough’s Performance Dashboards
To provide an even more relevant and focussed performance framework, we have developed 
our own performance dashboards which combine a number of the most helpful national 
measures with some bespoke local measures.

A monthly performance challenge meeting, comprising managers across all services and 
chaired by the Service Director, discusses areas of concern and develops responses, 
mitigations and action plans.

From the latest performance dashboards, the following are of most significance:
i. conversion rates (contacts converted to support) have fallen significantly, which could 

indicate that our front door arrangement of early help and advice, right first time, is 
having an impact

ii. reablement services are having a positive impact on more people, reducing the need for 
costly or complex care and improving our service users’ experience

iii. however, the number of people receiving long term support is fairly static, which could 
indicate growth in demand

iv. user satisfaction is lower than previously, and this is addressed later in this report
v. delayed discharges attributable to adult social care are very low, and this indicates that 

our co-located team at the hospital is effective

21



vi. the Better Care Fund target to reduce non-elective submissions has not yet been met. 
The work of the various workstreams is being heightened to ensure the target is met

vii. the number of safeguarding concerns received by the council has increased since the 
introduction of the Care Act, as described earlier. The changes we are making to both 
our QA and QI functions will help to better understand this trend and respond 
accordingly

viii. the number of outstanding Section 42 enquiries (in response to indications of abuse or 
neglect) is higher than we would like, and the Performance Challenge meeting has 
agreed an additional short-term focus in this area to deal with this

ix. the number of outstanding DoLS cases remains too high, although the proposed 
investment in this service will deal with this issue

5.10 Service User Feedback

An important part of measuring and maintaining quality and of improving services is the 
feedback we receive from our service users. We measure this in a number of ways:

 Monitoring comments and complaints received, and ensuring we learn from them
 Analysing the results of the nationally-managed ASC Survey
 Analysing the results of the nationally-managed Carers Survey
 Analysing the results of the local reablement services surveys

5.10.1 Complaints and Compliments
At time of writing, 64 complaints have been received about adult social care services since April 
2015. Of these 17 were informal complaints (i.e. comments made by service users), around half 
related to a delayed or failed service, and around one third related to complaints about a care 
provider. In the same period last year 65 complaints were received.

A full analysis of complaints is provided to the Performance Challenge meeting each quarter 
which enables a thorough review to be undertaken and for any trends to be identified.

The service also receives a number of formal compliments each year and these too are 
reviewed to ensure we extend good practice.

5.10.2 Adult Social Care Survey
The Adult Social Care Survey is run annually by the Health and Social Care Information Centre. 
We have recently received the results of the latest survey which was completed in 2014/15.

Our initial analysis reveals the following:
 The quality of life score for Peterborough was the same as the Eastern region and just 

0.1% lower than the average for England
 There was a decline in the overall satisfaction with the care and support services 

received by service users in 2014/15, with Peterborough’s rate being 5.5% lower than 
the England average

 Higher satisfaction was reported by service users in comparison with the England 
average in relation to:
- Care and support services helping them have a better quality of life
- Control over their daily life, and care and support services helping them in this
- Getting food and drink
- Having a clean and comfortable home
- Feeling safe, and care and support services helping them in feeling safe

 However, lower satisfaction was reported by service users in comparison with the 
England average in relation to:
- Feeling clean and presentable
- Social contact
- Spending time doing things valued or enjoyed
- How having help makes service users think and feel about themselves
- How the way service users are helped and treated makes them think about themselves

 The percentage of service users who found it very or fairly easy to find information and 
advice about support, services or benefits was 1% higher than the England average

22



 The general health of service users is lower than the England average, as is the 
percentage of service users reporting no pain or discomfort, and not being anxious or 
depressed

 Slightly more service users than the England average thought their home met their 
needs, although less reported they could get to all the places that they wanted

 More service users receive regular practical help, either from a member of their 
household or someone living in another household than the England average, and a 
smaller percentage of service users and families now purchase additional or ‘top-up’ 
care.

Whilst there are no significant variations in these results, the Adults Performance Board is 
drafting an action plan to focus on areas where improvements need to be made, and this will be 
monitored at the monthly Performance Challenge meeting.

5.10.3 Carers Survey
The bi-annual Carers Survey is also run by the Health and Social Care Information Centre, and 
we have recently received the results from the 2014/15 survey.

Our early analysis shows that, of those carers who have received support or services in the last 
12 months, 41.9% stated that they were extremely or very satisfied with support and services, 
compared with the England average of 41.2%. 

Carers were asked to indicate which support or services the person cared for had used in the 
last 12 months. The percentage of carers accessing the following support or services was lower 
than the England average:

 Support or services allowing you to take a break from caring at short notice or in an 
emergency (-2.5%)

 Day centre or day activities (-9.1%)
 Lunch club (-0.5%)
 Lifeline alarm (-5.6%)

Carers were asked to indicate which (if any) support or services they had used to help them as 
carers in the last 12 months.  These were within one percentage point of the England average 
in each case, with the exception of ‘support from carers groups or someone to talk to in 
confidence’ where Peterborough’s results were 2.3% lower than the England average.

There was a decline noticed in each of the quality of life questions since the last carers’ survey 
in 2012/13 and with the exception of personal safety, the results were lower than the overall 
England figures:

 How you spend your time (-5.6%)
 Control over your daily life (-6.7%)
 Getting enough sleep or eating well (-2.0%)
 Worries about your personal safety (-0.5%)
 Social contact (-8.8%)
 Encouragement and support in your caring role (-3.1%)

Of those respondents who had tried to find information and advice about support, services or 
benefits in the last 12 months, 65% had found it very or fairly easy to find, slightly lower than the 
England average of 65.5%.  88.9% of those who had received information found it to be very or 
quite helpful. This was higher than the 87.9% England average.

Of those carers who were aware of discussions about the support or services provided to the 
person cared for in the last 12 months, 35.7% always felt involved or consulted, lower than the 
England average of 40.6%.

As with the User Survey, the Adults Performance Challenge meeting is developing an action 
plan to focus on areas that require improvement, especially relating to the need for more social 
contact.

23



5.10.4 Local Surveys
We are particularly keen to understand the experience of service users that have been 
supported through our reablement services. Whilst we believe the outcomes of successful 
reablement are far more positive and sustainable than, for example, hospitalisation or 
placement into a care setting, reablement isn’t always the service user’s first choice, and so 
measuring the impact the service has had on this group of users is extremely valuable.

At the end of each period of reablement, a decision is made on whether the individual is able to 
manage their own care or if they need ongoing support. It is at this point that they are asked to 
complete the survey.

The following results were recorded for the first two quarters of 2015/16:

 Question Response 
option(s) 
measured

Q1
15/16

Q2
15/16

% point
difference

A1 Did you feel you had enough 
information about the 
Reablement Service prior to you 
being seen by them?

Yes 70.4%
(19 out of 27)

83.8%
(31 out of 37)

13.4%

A2 When you were admitted to the 
service did the staff talk to you 
about how long you would be 
expected to remain in the 
service?

Yes 92.6%
(25 out of 27)

86.5%
(32 out of 37)

-6.1%

A3 Did you feel you were involved 
in planning your support?

Yes 88.9%
(24 out of 27)

97.3%
(36 out of 37)

8.4%

A4 Did you feel you were involved 
in identifying your goals or 
aims?

Yes 85.2%
(23 out of 27)

97.3%
(36 out of 37)

12.1%

A5 By working towards your 
Reablement goals, do you feel 
better able to manage your 
everyday activities? 

Yes 81.5%
(22 out of 27)

90.6%
(29 out of 32)

9.1%

A6 Did the staff arrive at times of 
the day that accommodated 
your needs?

Yes 100%
(27 out of 27)

93.9%
(31 out of 33)

-6.1%

A7 Were you kept informed by the 
service about any changes in 
you care?  E.g. your visit will be 
late?

Yes 95.5%
(21 out of 22)

91.7%
(22 out of 24)

-3.8%

B1 Did staff treat you with dignity 
and respect?

Yes 100%
(27 out of 27)

100%
(33 out of 33)

0%

B2 Do you feel the staff were 
competent to meet your needs?

Yes 96.3%
(26 out of 27)

97.0%
(32 out of 33)

0.7%

C1 Did you feel you were 
encouraged to prepare your own 
light snacks and drinks?

Yes 95.7%
(22 out of 23)

82.6%
(19 out of 23)

-13.1%

C2 Did you feel you were 
encouraged to wash and dress 
yourself?

Yes 96.3%
(26 out of 27)

96.3%
(26 out of 27)

0%

24



D1 How do you feel about the care 
you received when you were 
with the service?

Excellent/ 
Good

92.6%
(25 out of 27)

97%
(32 out of 33)

4.4%

D2 Were you aware of how to 
report any concerns/complaints 
in relation to any aspect of the 
care you received from the 
Reablement Service?

Yes 85.2%
(23 out of 27)

90.6%
(29 out of 32)

5.4%

These are encouraging results and provide a strong mandate for continuing to develop 
reablement services as a preferred option wherever feasible.

5.11 Future Priorities

5.11.1 Our Adult Social Care service has undergone significant change since the implementation of 
the senior management restructure in March 2015. However, this work is not yet complete and 
so much of the focus for the coming year will be to continue with this programme. Specifically:

 The establishment and complete integration of the new quality assurance and quality 
improvement services

 The integration of health and social care where it is appropriate and adds value and 
benefit

 The delivery of the Customer Experience programme to make it easier for people to 
access adult social care information, advice or support in a timely manner

 The continued development of our relationships with the care provider market and the 
building of capacity

 The development of our workforce to ensure they are the best they can be

5.11.2

5.11.3

The Customer Experience programme also gives us opportunities to think differently about the 
way some of our specialist services are delivered. For example, we are keen to explore how we 
can bring together all of our reablement services into a single delivery vehicle that would bring 
efficiencies and reduced duplication as well as the opportunity to sell those services to other 
councils. Such a delivery vehicle could include Occupational Therapy, Reablement, Assistive 
Technology and the Care and Repair Home Improvement Agency. This is currently being 
modelled before fuller proposals are drafted.

We also need to consider the impacts of growing demand on our services caused by both 
population growth and demographic change. This coupled with the impact of the Living Wage 
and lack of capacity in the system for those with more complex needs adds significant pressure 
to our services, and throughout 2016/17 we will be working hard to plan for and mitigate these 
pressures whilst continuing to support those people most in need and to protect our care 
market from failure.

6. IMPLICATIONS

6.1 This report sets out details of the work being carried out across all of Adult Social Care which 
will deliver improvements, efficiencies and better outcomes for Peterborough’s residents and for 
our workforce and partners. Some of the programmes of work are ambitious (e.g. integration 
with health) and so we will ensure the Scrutiny Commission are kept informed and engaged 
throughout the process.

7. CONSULTATION

7.1 Not applicable.

8. NEXT STEPS

8.1 There are no immediate steps to be considered arising from this report. 

25



9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

9.1 None

10. APPENDICES

 Appendix 1 – Care Act Newsletters
 Appendix 2 – Local Account 2014-15

26



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Safeguarding Adults 

 

Introduction…This year has seen the biggest reform to 
social care in over 60 years, with the introduction of the 
Care Act from April 2015. It modernises the law, 
recognising the right of people to make their own 
decisions about their care and support.  

There are new rights for carers, and from April 2016 the 
introduction of a cap on the amount that people spend 
on their social care costs, will mean that care and 
support, and the way people pay for it, will be clearer 
and more consistent.   

There are many changes that are required as a result of 
the Care Act and Peterborough Adult Social Care 
(ASC) is working hard to ensure that the core themes 
presented in the Care Act are reflected in the services, 
processes and information available to people in 
Peterborough. 

Peterborough ASC has set out a full review process of 
its services to ensure that they are Care Act compliant 
and are actively looking into improving the co-
production opportunities for its people, carers, staff and 
partners. 

We are excited about this review and welcome any 
questions to ascinfo@peterborough.gov.uk. 

Many thanks, Debbie McQuade, Assistant Director 
Adult Operations. 

 

What we have done so far… We have made some changes already to 

ensure we are compliant with the Care Act, please see the following; 

eligibility for care and support, advocacy services, adult safeguarding and 

deferred payments as they set out what is new and what this means for 

people of Peterborough. 

What we will do next… We have a structured plan in place that identifies 

all of the remaining areas that we need to review. We have set up a series 

of working groups to undertake these tasks and we will involve staff and 

service users as soon as possible, please see more about co-production on 

page 2. We will also continue to work closesly with Carers, so far we have 

had amazing support from over 70 local carers that have been integral to the 

new carers assessment tool that has been designed. 

The picture and information below sets out the group structure which will 

guide the process for change: 

 

The Care Act Review Group… will be responsible for the steering, 

guidance and delivery of the ASC Care Act compliance programme. 

They will drive forward the activities that are required to ensure that 

the council becomes fully compliant with the Care Act and in the 

spirit that it suggests.  

The Care Act work streams… these groups will focus on the 

review of current services, policy, procedures and processes in order 

that to find a good balance between best practice, what is required in 

Peterborough and ensuring alignment with the Care Act.  

 

Eligibility for care and support  

We have developed assessment and support plan 

documents to incorporate the new national eligibility 

criteria.  We have redesigned our support plan 

documentation to ensure we consider all aspects of 

support, both informal and formal in order to meet 

support needs in an efficient and person centred 

way. We are aware that support planning will evolve 

throughout this year as our commissioning programme 

moves forward and a wider range of services, and 

preventative offerings become available.    

What does it mean for the people of Peterborough? 

Anybody receiving an assessment from 1 April 2015, 

will have a new set of criteria explored with them, 

around their wellbeing.  This criteria is more flexible 

than the previous FACS eligibility criteria which has 

been in place since 1994.  It looks at what a person’s 

difficulties and disabilities means for them and how it 

affects the quality of their lives. 

We have a requirement to review all existing service 

users under the new wellbeing focussed eligibility 

criteria before 1 April 2016, so service users can expect 

to see a change at their next review. 

Page 1 

Advocacy services  

We have worked with a range of voluntary sector providers to expand the 

range of advocacy services that will be available from April to meet 

immediate demand for advocacy.   We have also commenced work to 

procure a co-ordinated advocacy service.   

What does it mean for the people of Peterborough? 

For those people who struggle to take a central role in the process of care 

and support planning or safeguarding, there will be clear responsibilities for 

us to ensure they are supported.  Where a suitable representative is not 

available from family or friends, or an alternative informal arrangement, the 

council will arrange for an advocate to ensure their interests are reflected 

strongly in all decisions made about them.   

 
 

27

mailto:ascinfo@peterborough.gov.uk
aad280
Typewritten Text
Appendix 1 (i)



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Adult Safeguarding 

A new process for Adult Safeguarding enquiries has been 

developed in partnership with Cambridgeshire County Council 

and Cambridgeshire and Peterborough NHS Foundation Trust.  

What does it mean for the people of Peterborough? 

The new processes should ensure a quicker, more person 

centred and personalised response to safeguarding concerns.  

All referrals will be subject to multi-agency discussions in order 

to agree the best agency to lead. Enquiries will reflect what the 

person wants and should be led by the agency or worker best 

able to safeguard that particular individual from the harm 

identified. 

Deferred Payments  

Peterborough has offered deferred payments to care home 

residents for a number of years now, however the Care Act 

introduces a universal deferred payments scheme that all 

councils must now offer, which allows councils to charge interest 

on the amount loaned to people to pay their care fees. All care 

home residents will now have the opportunity to defer the sale of 

their former home if they choose.  

What does it mean for the people of Peterborough? 

As we already offered deferred payments in Peterborough, there 

will be no immediate impact on1 April 2015.   

Page 2  

What is Co-production? 

The Care Act encourages that a co-production approach is used when service development or 
change is required. It suggests that co-production should be an integral part of designing care 
services and guides authorities to consider an authentic approach to developing its services in 
line with what its stakeholders require and request. 

The Care Act 2014 states; ‘Local authorities should pursue the principle that market shaping 
and commissioning should be shared endeavours, with commissioners working alongside 
people with care and support needs, carers, family members, care providers, representatives 
of care workers, relevant voluntary, user and other support organisations and the public to find 
shared and agreed solutions. 

Co-production is important for a variety of reasons and The Think Personal Act Local group 
suggest the following reasons why social care services should co-produce; 

 Everybody is equal 

 The outcomes are meaningful and positive 

 People who use your services, carers and families are seen and recognised as assets 

 Your service will improve 

 It is a fun and productive way of working together 

 You have the opportunity to see different perspectives that may differ from your own 
 

The people involved in co-production activities will also benefit from the experience as it has 
been found that participants can experience the following, all of which contribute to a sense of 
wellbeing: 

 Increase in confidence,  

 Learn new skills,  

 Gain a sense of purpose  

 Build new relationships 

 Develop a sense of contributing  
 

Peterborough Adult Social Care is keen to get started in working in this way. We want to start 
by encouraging more involvement from staff as we review the further Care Act changes that 
are needed. At the same time we are making the arrangements for extending the request for 
help to a wider network of people including our service users, carers and partners. 

For more information on Co-production please see the links below: 

Co-production video 

Co-production what is it and how to do it 

Co-production Care Act guidance 

For more information… 

Care Act legislation 

 

 

 

Care Act factsheets 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Care Act information videos 

 

 

 

 

 

28

http://www.scie.org.uk/socialcaretv/video-player.asp?v=havewegotcoproductionnewsforyou1
http://www.thinklocalactpersonal.org.uk/_library/COPRODUCTION/Co_production_what_it_is_and_how_to_do_it.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/366104/43380_23902777_Care_Act_Book.pdf
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/23/contents/enacted
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/care-act-2014-part-1-factsheets
http://www.skillsforcare.org.uk/Standards/Care-Act/Learning-and-development/learning-and-development-videos.aspx


1 
 

Supported self-assessment process 

A work stream has commenced to look at enhancing our approach 

to this aspect of the Care Act. Currently we send a blank copy of the 

assessment form to the person prior to conducting a telephone 

assessment or a face to face assessment visit. This allows the 

person to familiarise themselves with the questions prior to the 

assessment being undertaken. However, the group is looking at 

what other options are available and have sessions booked in with a 

service user group to encourage co-production in this area. 

 

 

The new directory is now 

available in hard copy, 

and as an e-book or pdf 

online here  

 

Next phase of Care 

Act delayed till 2020 

You may now be aware of the 

recent announcement that there 

will be a delay until 2020 for part 

two of the Care Act which means 

that a number of proposed 

financial changes will not be 

introduced.  

For further information please 

click here.  

In the last issue: 

The last issue was an 

introduction to the Care Act 

and what we had done so far. 

A variety of issues including: 

articles on co-production, 

adult safeguarding, deferred 

payments, advocacy services 

as well as information on 

eligibility criteria was included. 

This is available on the 

council website.  

 

If you would like further 

information about ASC  

please contact:  
 

ascinfo@peterborough.gov.uk  

Welcome to the second 

issue of the Care Act Update 
which shows some of the 
continuing work that 
Peterborough Adult Social 
Care (ASC) is doing to 
ensure that the core themes 
presented in the Care Act 
are reflected in the services, 
processes and information 
available to people in 
Peterborough. 

We are pleased with the 
progress to date and are 
keen to keep the work 
progressing. 

Many thanks, 
Debbie McQuade, Assistant 
Director Adult Operations. 
 

Developing transition processes and procedures  

The Care Act identifies three specific groups of people who may require 

Transition Assessments and Transition plans: 

     Young people (under 18) with care and support needs who are 

approaching adulthood 

     Young carers (under 18) who are themselves approaching adulthood 

      Adult carers of young people preparing for adulthood 
   
The Care Act lays out requirements about what this assessment should 

focus on (such as training, work, living arrangements as well as health and 

social care).  Currently work is being carried out to establish processes 

and procedures for undertaking Transition Assessments and Transition 

plans. Specific areas being looked at are health, social care, leaving care 

and mental health. 

 

 

 29

http://www.carechoices.co.uk/region/east-of-england/cambridgeshire/peterborough/
http://www.carechoices.co.uk/region/east-of-england/cambridgeshire/peterborough/
http://www.communitycare.co.uk/2015/07/17/government-shelves-care-act-funding-reforms-2020/
https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/healthcare/professionals-area/adult-social-care-providers/
mailto:ascinfo@peterborough.gov.uk
aad280_1
Typewritten Text
Appendix 1 (ii)



2 
 

 

 Ordinary residence  
 
Ordinary residence is a term used to identify the local authority responsible for the provision and funding of 
care and support for adults who are eligible for services under the Care Act 2014. There is no statutory 
definition of ordinary residence, however, for those with mental capacity, case law refers to this being a 
person’s ‘abode in a particular place or country which he has adopted voluntarily and for settled purposes’.  
 
Establishing ordinary residence is therefore a key requirement in determining whether the duty to meet 
needs is triggered. For most people, determining their ordinary residence is usually quite straightforward, 
and they will receive care and support to meet their eligible needs from the local authority in which they 
live. However, not everyone’s ordinary residence status is as easy to decide, and will depend on a range 
of factors, including fact, degree, intention and attitude.  
 

Where the ordinary residence determination of a person presenting to Peterborough Adult Social Care is 

not straightforward, reference will need to be made to the Care Act guidance. Further advice can also be 
obtained initially from either the Financial Assessment Manager or the Client Income Team manager, or if 
the circumstances of the case are particularly difficult, then advice from Legal Services will be sought.   

Carers update: 

We have given continued dedication to this workstream and working 

with Carers to ensure that Peterborough can provide Carers all that is 

required within the Care Act. The following demonstrates the excellent 

progress made to date: 

We have co-produced and consulted on a newly designed Carers 

Assessment Form which aligns directly to our Carers’ Eligibility Check 

and Support Plan.  The main focus of this work has been to allow 

carers to express their feelings and needs, and to describe the impact 

their caring responsibilities have on their wellbeing. We are also 

identifying ways carers can be supported so they can provide, and 

continue to provide, care.  The next step is to gain final approval from 

the Carers Partnership Board prior to implementation. 

We are also finalising the Support for Carers Procedure and Guidance 

document to replace the interim version which was issued on the 1st 

April 2015.  This document will offer greater depth of understanding as 

well as some practical examples and also information on emergency 

support for carers. We will also be introducing: new letter templates to 

support the Carers process; practical Carers Assessment Guidance 

document which describes areas that carers may like to consider 

when completing their Assessment Form, and updates to the Carers 

webpage on the council’s website.   

 
Prevention 

The Care Act encourages that Prevention is an integral part of the social care agenda. Peterborough 

Adult Social Care is actively promoting Assistive Technology to enable citizens to remain independent 

and safe. Each week there is a new product advertised to staff and the appetite is growing to utilise 

different types of equipment such as a bed occupancy sensor or property exit sensor over more 

traditional options. If you want to find out more about what available, please contact 

ascinfo@peterborough.gov.uk.  

 

 

 

For more information… 

Care Act legislation 

 

Care Act factsheets 1-13 

 
 

Care Act information videos 

 

 

30

mailto:ascinfo@peterborough.gov.uk
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/23/contents/enacted
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/care-act-2014-part-1-factsheets
http://www.skillsforcare.org.uk/Standards/Care-Act/Learning-and-development/learning-and-development-videos.aspx
http://www.skillsforcare.org.uk/Standards/Care-Act/Learning-and-development/learning-and-development-videos.aspx


 
 

Page | 1  

 
 

 

In this issue: 

 Self-neglect awareness 

 Building community 

capacity 

 Assistive technology 

 Eligibility 

 Safeguarding principles 

 

 

  

 

Welcome to the third edition of the Care Act update for 

Peterborough. 

The Adult Social Care department has a number of updates for you to be 

aware of since the last eNewsletter published in July. For previous editions, 

please visit the Care Act newsletter area available on the Peterborough 

City Council website. 

Supporting people who self-neglect 

The Care Act 2014 statutory guidance has formally recognised self-

neglect as a category of abuse and neglect, which could lead to the 

raising of a safeguarding concern. People who self-neglect can now be 

supported by safeguarding adults approaches if appropriate as well as 

receiving more general support from practitioners. 

The term ‘self-neglect’ refers to an unwillingness or inability to care for 

oneself and/or one’s environment. It encompasses a wide range of 

behaviours, including hoarding, living in squalor, and neglecting self-

care and hygiene.  However, this is a difficult issue to address in 

practice, not least because people who self-neglect may not recognise 

the risks that their lifestyle presents. There are questions around 

personal choice and how to provide help and support to someone who 

may not want it. Practitioners also need to work to make safeguarding 

personal, and it is important to understand each individual’s situation 

and wishes and establish ways to work effectively with them. 

Self-neglect, particularly where people with mental capacity refuse care 

and support, has emerged as a matter for widespread concern, and has 

featured in a number of serious case reviews. Its inclusion as part of the 

definition of abuse and neglect in the statutory guidance to the Care Act 

2014 has heightened interest in how beneficial outcomes can be 

achieved. A Practice Tool is being developed by Research in Practice 

for Adults (RiPfA) to support practitioners in identifying and working with 

these individuals. 

 

 

For more information… 

Care Act legislation             

  
 

Care Act factsheets 

 

Care Act information videos     

 

 

If you would like further information about Adult Social Care, please email 

ASCinfo@peterborough.gov.uk 

 

Back to top 

31

https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/healthcare/professionals-area/adult-social-care-providers/#careact
https://www.ripfa.org.uk/
https://www.ripfa.org.uk/
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/23/contents/enacted
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/23/contents/enacted
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/care-act-2014-part-1-factsheets
http://www.skillsforcare.org.uk/Standards/Care-Act/Learning-and-development/learning-and-development-videos.aspx
http://www.skillsforcare.org.uk/Standards/Care-Act/Learning-and-development/learning-and-development-videos.aspx
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/23/contents/enacted
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/care-act-2014-part-1-factsheets
http://www.skillsforcare.org.uk/Standards/Care-Act/Learning-and-development/learning-and-development-videos.aspx
mailto:ASCinfo@peterborough.gov.uk
aad280_2
Typewritten Text
Appendix 1 (iii)



 
 

Page | 2  

 
 

Prevention using Assistive Technology 

What is Assistive Technology? 

There are two types of assistive technology available, both of which manage risk and promote 

independence within the home environment. These are:  

 Standalone equipment 

 Telecare (Lifeline) 

Standalone equipment are independent devices which do not link through to a call centre or central alarm 

system. This equipment relies on the service user’s/carer’s ability to respond appropriately and act 

accordingly. Such devices can be used to alert the service user that it is time to take medication, support 

with orientation and alerting carers to potential problems such as falls, seizures, incontinence and 

wandering.  

Telecare helps to manage risk and promote independence by means of unobtrusive wireless sensors 

placed around the home to detect possible problems such as smoke, gas, flood or detects when they are at 

risk e.g. a fall/seizure. Sensors automatically raise a local, audible alarm, as well as alerting a carer, key 

holder or the monitoring centre as appropriate. Assistive technology is equally valuable within care home 

settings to support residents to have as much freedom as possible, for example use of bed sensors to 

detect whether a resident is disturbed can limit the number of times a care worker must make a physical 

check on a sleeping resident and ensure  

help is readily available if it is required. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

How can Assistive Technology help? 

Assistive technology is particularly useful for individuals with cognitive 

impairment, dementia and learning disabilities. It can monitor the person 

and environment and provide prompts and reminders for the individual. It 

can increase independence and confidence, manage or minimise risk, 

enable the service user to live at home for longer, increase peace of mind, 

reduce input for carers and reduce carer stress.  

Adult social care have been very active in promoting the benefits of 

Assistive Technology with staff over the recent months sharing information 

on the various pieces of equipment that are available. Assistive 

Technology is an integral part of the adult social care offer and we expect 

to see an increase in the use of Assistive Technology to support service 

users. 

 

What is the aim of Assistive 

Technology? 

The aim of Assistive Technology is to 

take a holistic approach and work to 

find the simplest solution tailored to 

meet the needs of the individual. We 

work closely with family, carers, health 

and social care professionals and 

professional care agencies in order to 

find a solution.  

 

 

Building Community Capacity 

Building Community Capacity is described as the process for helping a community to support itself. 

Community Capacity is in an important priority which is described by Research in Practice for Adults 

Research (RiPfA) as, “research suggests that when a community has strong social capital or assets 

wellbeing improves and deteriorating ill health lessens”. You may view the complete RiPfA update, 

including the policies developed around this feature online. The council recognises the development of 

community capacity as a key work stream for its Customer Experience Programme and will be sharing 

updates on progress in future editions of this newsletter. 

 

Back to top 

32

http://us2.campaign-archive2.com/?u=88dc07a14d45a57ba3140ab9a&id=0ba275e557&e=c96348f06e
http://us2.campaign-archive2.com/?u=88dc07a14d45a57ba3140ab9a&id=0ba275e557&e=c96348f06e


 
 

Page | 3  

 
 

Eligibility definition 

The national eligibility criteria set a minimum threshold for adult and carer care and support. All local 
authorities must, at a minimum, meet needs at this level. 
 
An assessment is used to identify how an individual’s needs affect their ability to achieve relevant desired 
outcomes, and how this impacts on their wellbeing. The overall aim of adult care and support is to help 
people meet their needs to achieve the outcomes that matter to them in their lives and which in turn 
promote their wellbeing. It is important to distinguish between the two ways in which outcomes are 
discussed within the Care Act and guidance:  

 

 

Desired outcomes (of the individual): 

these are the outcomes a person wishes to 
achieve in order to go about their day-to-day 
life and in a way that maintains or improves 

their wellbeing. Types of outcomes vary 
because each individual will have different 

interests, relationships, demands and 
circumstances. Assessments should focus on 

the outcomes of each individual.

Eligibility outcomes: 

these are listed within the eligibility 
regulations table below. These outcomes 

set out the minimum criteria that local 
authorities must meet in order to comply 
with the national eligibility threshold for 

adults needing care and support and carers 
needing support. These are the outcomes 
that the eligibility determination should be 

based on.

What outcomes are listed in the eligibility regulations? 

Outcomes for adults  

 Managing and maintaining nutrition 

 Maintaining personal hygiene 

 Managing toilet needs 

 Being appropriately clothed 

 Being able to make use of the adult’s home 
safely 

 Maintaining a habitable home environment 

 Developing and maintaining family or other 
personal relationships 

 Accessing and engaging in work, training, 
education or volunteering 

 Making use of necessary facilities or services 
in the local community, including public 
transport, and recreational facilities or services 

 Carrying out any caring responsibilities the 
adult has for a child. 

Outcomes for carers  

 Carrying out any caring responsibilities the 
carer has for a child 

 Providing care to other persons for whom the 
carer provides care 

 Maintaining a habitable home environment in 
the carer’s home, whether or not this is also 
the home of the adult needing care 

 Managing and maintaining nutrition 

 Developing and maintaining family or other 
personal relationships 

 Engaging in work, training, education or 
volunteering 

 Making use of necessary facilities or services 
in the local community, including recreational 
facilities or services 

 Engaging in recreational activities. 
 

Full notes about each of the outcomes listed below can be found in the statutory guidance. 

Back to top 

33

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/366104/43380_23902777_Care_Act_Book.pdf


 
 

Page | 4  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Safeguarding 

The central focus of Local Adult Safeguarding Boards (LASBs) is to create assurance that local safeguarding 

arrangements are effective in protecting adults who, as a result of their need for care and support, are unable 

to safeguard themselves from risk or experience of abuse and neglect. 

The local safeguarding board known as the Peterborough Safeguarding Adults Board and is one of the key 

mechanisms for ensuring effective partnership working across agencies to safeguard adults at risk of abuse 

and neglect in Peterborough. 

Six safeguarding principles are set out below: 

 

The Board is currently revisiting the procedures followed by partner agencies to safeguard adults with care 

and support needs and further updates will be shared in later editions of this newsletter. Updates from the 

board are also produced and available online.  

Accountability
Accountability and transparency in safeguarding practice.

Partnership
Local solutions through services working with their communities. Communities have a part to play in 

preventing, detecting and reporting neglect and abuse.

Protection
Support and representation for those in greatest need.

Proportionality
The least intrusive response appropriate to the risk presented.

Prevention
It is better to take action before harm occurs.

Empowerment
People being supported and encouraged to make their own decisions and informed consent.

What if I am not eligible? 

Where people are not eligible for funded services via Adult Social Care this doesn’t mean that no help is 
available. In the first instance information and advice will be provided that will give guidance to other 
potential options of support that might be available.  
Providing people with the right information at the right time can be a preventative measure and also be part 
of the solution.  
Information, advice and guidance might include referring to universal services, signposting to other agencies 
or community groups or supporting a person to access independent financial advice amongst other things. 
 
 

Consideration will be given to preventative measures that may be appropriate for the individual and advice may be 

given to where to find support that may prevent the individual’s needs developing including guiding towards self-help 

options and possible local services. There are a variety of services that are delivered by other agencies within the 

voluntary sector or other community provision that might be a good fit or what the individual needs.  

Consideration will be given to preventative measures that may be appropriate for the individual and advice may be 

given to where to find support that may prevent the individual’s needs developing including guiding towards self-help 

options and possible local services. There are a variety of services that are delivered by other agencies within the 

voluntary sector or other community provision that might be a good fit or what the individual needs.  

 

Back to top 

34

https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/healthcare/safeguarding/safeguarding-adults/safeguarding-adults-board/
https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/healthcare/safeguarding/safeguarding-adults/safeguarding-adults-board/


 
 

P a g e  | 1 

For previous editions, please visit the Care Act newsletter area 
on the Peterborough City Council website. 

  

 

In this issue: 

 Improved access to reablement 

 Advocacy service consultation 

 Carers Assessment  

 Transferring from hospital to home 

 Interim safeguarding guidance 

 Advocacy referrals 

 

Improved access to reablement 

On 1 November 2015 we introduced a new pathway into reablement services for people with 

support needs who do not currently have a Care and Support Plan.  

 

Access to reablement is mainly through the multidisciplinary hospital discharge process and the 

Information and Advice Team. The Information and Advise Team can be contacted on: 

 Telephone: 01733 747474 

 Email: adultsocialcare@peterborough.gcsx.gov.uk 

 
 

Have your say on the integrated advocacy service consultation 
 
A 90 day consultation was launched in 
November to gain the views of residents, 
service users and professionals about the 
approach of Peterborough City Council and 
Cambridgeshire County Council jointly 
commissioning a singular advocacy service for 
Peterborough and Cambridgeshire.  

 
You can have your say on 
the consultation for the 
respective area to which 
you live or work by 
completing one of the 
surveys below: 
 

  online survey for Peterborough  

 online survey for Cambridgeshire 

 
The consultation closes on Saturday 20 February 2016. 

 

 

Welcome to the fourth edition of the Care 

Act update for Peterborough. 

If you would like further information about Adult Social 

Care, please email ASCinfo@peterborough.gov.uk 

 

Back to top 

On first contact the 
adult undergoes a triage 
process to enable us to 

develop an 
understanding of their 

situation and clarify 
their wellbeing 

outcomes.

Before 1 November the 
adult would have also 
undergone a formal 

assessment, but this is 
now deferred until the 

reablement intervention 
is approaching 

conclusion. 

This way we and the 
adult achieve a better-

informed understanding 
of longer-term outcomes 

and support needs.

35

https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/healthcare/professionals-area/adult-social-care-providers/#careact
mailto:adultsocialcare@peterborough.gcsx.gov.uk
https://www.surveymonkey.co.uk/r/PCCadvocacy
http://www.smartsurvey.co.uk/s/G2KX0/
mailto:ASCinfo@peterborough.gov.uk
aad280_3
Typewritten Text
Appendix 1 (iv)



 
 

P a g e  | 2 

For previous editions, please visit the Care Act newsletter area 
on the Peterborough City Council website. 

  

 

Updated Carers Assessment 

As communicated in July, we have been working closely with carers in Peterborough to co-

produce a Carers Assessment form. This work has resulted in a Care Act compliant, coproduced 

Carers Assessment and Carers Assessment guidance document. The new form has been 

designed to: 

 identify a carer’s needs and how these 
impact on their wellbeing 

 identify the outcomes that a carer 
wishes to achieve in their day-to-day life 

 support the carer’s involvement (or any 
other person they might want involved) 
in the assessment process by taking a 
preventative approach and looking at 
their strengths 

 determine whether a carer’s needs are 
eligible for support from the local 
authority 

 understand how the provision of support 
may assist the carer in achieving their 
desired outcomes 

 align directly to the council’s Carers 
Eligibility Check and the Carers Support 
Plan; and be Care Act 2014 compliant. 

 

The new and improved Carers Assessment has been made available as a printable 

form and as a secure online electronic form. 

Printable and electronic forms can be accessed via the Peterborough City Council 

website, alternatively, the online form can be accessed directly by visiting 

www.peterborough.gov.uk/carers-assessment. 

 

Transferring from hospital to home – new guideline from NICE 

NICE (National Institute for Health and Care Excellence) have published a new guideline which 

focuses on what should happen in hospital, from admission and throughout someone’s stay, so 

that their discharge isn’t rushed or unplanned. The guideline aims to improve people's experience 

of admission to, and discharge from, hospital by better co-ordination of health and social care 

services. 

The guideline highlights three identified areas of focus for implementation of the transition between 

hospital settings and community/care home settings for adults with health and social care needs, 

which are: 

 improving understanding of person-centred care 

 ensuring health and social care practitioners communicate effectively 

 changing how community and hospital based staff work together to ensure co-
ordinated, person-centred support 

View the full guideline - Transition between inpatient hospital settings and community or care 

home settings for adults with social care needs.  

 

 Back to top 

36

https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/healthcare/professionals-area/adult-social-care-providers/#careact
https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/upload/www.peterborough.gov.uk/healthcare/professionals-area/CareActJuly2015.pdf?inline=true
https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/upload/www.peterborough.gov.uk/healthcare/adult-social-care/LookingAfterSomeone-CarersAssessmentGuidanceNov2015.pdf?inline=true
https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/healthcare/adult-social-care/looking-after-someone/#carersassess
https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/healthcare/adult-social-care/looking-after-someone/#carersassess
http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/carers-assessment
https://www.nice.org.uk/
http://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng27/chapter/Implementation-getting-started#the-challenge-improving-understanding-of-personcentred-care
http://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng27/chapter/Implementation-getting-started#the-challenge-ensuring-health-and-social-care-practitioners-communicate-effectively
http://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng27/chapter/Implementation-getting-started#the-challenge-changing-how-community-and-hospitalbased-staff-work-together-to-ensure-coordinated
http://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng27/chapter/Implementation-getting-started#the-challenge-changing-how-community-and-hospitalbased-staff-work-together-to-ensure-coordinated
http://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng27
http://www.nice.org.uk/guidance/ng27
https://forms.peterborough.gov.uk/356691


 
 

P a g e  | 3 

For previous editions, please visit the Care Act newsletter area 
on the Peterborough City Council website. 

  

 

 

Advocacy referrals 

Community Care recently reported that advocacy 

referrals are way below the expected level, leaving 

advocacy experts fearing people are being left without 

support to challenge council decisions about their care 

and support.  

The Care Act 2014 advises people are legally entitled to 

independent advocacy, and we as a council have a legal duty to offer an advocate to anyone who 

has substantial difficulty being involved in: 

 assessments 

 care planning 

 reviews  

 safeguarding cases  
 lacks a suitable friend or relative to represent them. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 Back to top 

Interim safeguarding guidance for professionals 

Since 1 April 2015, there has been an interim process and procedure for raising safeguarding 

concerns and undertaking enquiries.  

Adult safeguarding referrals from professionals should be raised using the Cambridgeshire and 

Peterborough Adult Safeguarding Referrals Form. In addition, you will need to complete the 

consent to information sharing form and ask them (or an appropriate representative) to sign the 

consent form. 

May we please remind professionals to refer any person identified as requiring an 

advocate to the below current advocacy providers as and when required: 

Did you know? 

Between 1 April and 30 

November 2015, we recorded 

1,248 initial contacts identified as 

safeguarding concerns. In total, 

208 have so far progressed to a 

safeguarding enquiry. 

 

37

https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/healthcare/professionals-area/adult-social-care-providers/#careact
https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/healthcare/professionals-area/adult-social-care-providers/#SGPP
https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/healthcare/professionals-area/adult-social-care-providers/#SGPP
https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/upload/www.peterborough.gov.uk/healthcare/professionals-area/ASCProviders-InterimSafeguarding-CambsPboroAdultSafeguardingReferralForm.pdf?inline=true
https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/upload/www.peterborough.gov.uk/healthcare/professionals-area/ASCProviders-InterimSafeguarding-ConsentInfoSharingForm.pdf?inline=true
http://www.ageuk.org.uk/peterborough/
http://www.disabilitypeterborough.org/
http://www.voiceability.org/services/peterborough
http://www.pohwer.net/peterborough.html
http://pfmind.org.uk/
http://www.pcvs.co.uk/
http://cambsdeaf.org/


This page is intentionally left blank

38



LOCAL ACCOUNT 2014/15

ANNUAL REVIEW OF ADULT SOCIAL CARE

39

aad280_4
Typewritten Text
	Appendix 2



2

CONTENTS
What is the Local Account? 3

What has been happening nationally and locally? 4

Finance 5

Our performance in 2014/15 6

Keeping you safe 7

Making sure you have a good quality of life 10

Supporting you to be independent 16

Listening to you 21

Tell us what you think 24

40



3

WHAT IS THE LOCAL ACCOUNT?
The Local Account is a report about the 
performance of Peterborough City Council’s 
Adult Social Care Department during the year 
2014/15.

It is an important part of the Council’s 
commitment to being open and transparent.  

It will inform you about what we have done over 
the past year and what we plan to do in 2015/16 
to improve services.  

The report is organised around the four 
outcomes in the Department of Health’s Adult 
Social Care Outcomes Framework, shown on 
the right.

Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework

The four outcomes in the Department of Health’s Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework are:

•  Keeping you safe (Safeguarding adults whose circumstances make them vulnerable and 
protecting them from avoidable harm)

•  Making sure you have a good quality of life (Ensuring quality of life for people with care and 
support needs)

•  Supporting you to be independent (Delaying and reducing the need for care and support)

•  Listening to you (Ensuring that people have a positive experience of care and support)

Wendi Ogle-Welbourn,  
Corporate Director:  People and Communities

I am excited to be leading the new People and 
Communities Directorate.  We have many challenges 
ahead of us, but also have built some sound 
foundations for enhancing care and support across 
Peterborough.
2014/15 saw the opening of the new Dementia 

Resource Centre and the redesign of our Adult Social Care service to 
ensure that more enquiries are dealt with at the very first point of contact.  
During 2015/16 we will continue to embed the new Care Act and work 
closely with colleagues in the NHS to ensure a co-ordinated approach to 
health and social care.  I do hope that you enjoy reading this Local Account 
and welcome your feedback.

Councillor Wayne Fitzgerald,  
Cabinet Member for Adult Social Care

During 2014/15 we have continued to implement 
a major transformation programme within Adult 
Social Care.  This has included transforming our 
day opportunities for adults under 65, moving away 
from the traditional model of day services to a 
more modern range of support options.  This Local 

Account details some of the work we have been undertaking.

41



This year has seen the biggest reform to social 
care law in over 60 years, with the introduction 
of the Care Act from April 2015.  The Care Act 
has created a single modern law that makes it 
clear what kind of care people should expect.  It 
sets out the new duties for local authorities and 
partners and new rights for service users and 
carers.  The Act recognises the rights of people 
to make their own decisions about their care 
and support, with an emphasis on individual 
wellbeing. 

There are many changes that are required as 
a result of the Care Act and Peterborough City 
Council is working hard to ensure that the core 
themes presented in the Care Act are reflected in 
the services, processes and information available 
to people in Peterborough.  For example, we 
have improved our service to try to resolve as 
many queries as possible at the very first point 
of contact.  If all you need is a simple piece 
of information or some advice, we now have 
specially trained staff at the end of the telephone 
to help you. For more information please call 
01733 747474.

In early 2015 the council had a senior 
management restructure which has resulted in 
a much more streamlined organisation.  Adult 
Social Care is now situated in the ‘People 
and Communities’ directorate, which includes 
Children’s Social Care, Housing and Community 
Services.  This will ensure that a much more  
co-ordinated response can be provided.

Also, the council is working closely on a 
programme called the Better Care Fund.  The 
Better Care Fund was introduced to drive 
transformation of local services to ensure people 
receive better and more integrated care and 
support. Peterborough is working closely with 
Cambridge on a series of projects that intend to 
improve areas such as data sharing, seven day 
working, person centred systems, information 
and prevention. The approach taken is to 
work collaboratively to ensure that teams from 
different health and social care settings work 
together seamlessly. The focus is to make an 
individual’s journey through the health and social 
care systems as simple as possible ensuring the 
right information is available and that services 
provide joined up care for those that need it.

WHAT HAS BEEN HAPPENING
NATIONALLY AND LOCALLY?

4

42



5

FINANCE
In 2014/15 Peterborough City Council allocated £44 million (29% of its budget) to Adult Social Care.  This is shown on the pie chart on the left.  
The pie chart on the right shows how Adult Social Care allocated this money.

Peterborough City Council Budget 2014/15 Adult Social Care Budget 2014/15

Chief Executives
£7,114,000

5%

Children’s Services 
£29,367,000

20%

Operations
£14,641,000

10%

Strategic Resources
£54,623,000

36%

Adult Social Care
£44,147,000

29%

Commissioning and 
service delivery

5.73%

Physical support
31.27%

Sensory support
1.56%

Support with
memory and cognition

0.74%

Learning disability support
44.09%

Mental health 
support
7.15%

Carer support
0.07%

AT Equipment
0.08%

Social care 
activities
6.92%

Early
intervention

2.40%

43



6

OUR PERFORMANCE IN 2014/15
THINGS WE DO WELL

  The proportion of people who use services who said 
that those services made them feel safe and secure 
was 89.1% against 83.6% in 2013/14

  The proportion of adults with learning disabilities 
in paid employment was 8.5%, against 8.4% in 
2013/14

  There were 484.2 permanent admissions to 
residential and nursing care homes per 100,000 
population for people aged 65 and over against 578 
in 2013/14

  Delayed transfers of care from hospital attributable 
to adult social care were 1 per 100,000 population 
against 2.8 per 100,000 population in 2013/14

  The overall social care quality of life score was 19 
against 18.9 in 2013/14

  The proportion of people who use services who have 
control over their daily lives was 78.4% against 76% 
in 2013/14

  The proportion of adults with learning disabilities who 
live in their own home or with their family was 81.1% 
against 72.3% in 2013/14

  The proportion of people using social care who 
received self-directed support was 98.6.2% against 
53.2% in 2013/14 

  The percentage of people who received a short 
term service where the result was either no ongoing 
support or support of a lower level was 72.2% 
against 65% in 2013/14

  The proportion of carers who find it easy to find 
information about services was 65%, the same as in 
2013/14 

THINGS WE ARE IMPROVING
  The proportion of people receiving direct payments 
was 25.4% against 12.4% in 2013/14 

  The proportion of people who use services who felt 
safe was 64.5% against 63.9% in 2013/14 

  The proportion of carers who reported they were 
included or consulted on decisions about the person 
they care for was 70.5% against 67.7% in 2012/13 
(survey carried out every two years)

  The proportion of adults in contact with secondary 
mental health services who live independently with 
or without support was 32.4% against 16.7% in 
2013/14

  The proportion of adults in contact with secondary 
mental health services in paid employment was 6.2% 
against 4.3% in 2013/14

THINGS WE WANT TO DO BETTER
  The proportion of people who use services who 
find it easy to find information about services was 
74.2% against 74.9% in 2013/14 

  There were 20.7 permanent admissions of younger 
adults (aged 18-64) to residential and nursing care 
homes per 100,000 population against 18.1 in 
2013/14 

  The proportion of older people (65 and over) who 
were offered reablement services following discharge 
from hospital was 1.7%, the same as in 2013/14

  Delayed transfers of care from hospital were 14 per 
100,000 population against 13.6 in 2013/14

  Older people (65 and over) who were still at home 91 
days after discharge from hospital into reablement/
rehabilitation services was 70.8 against 73.8 in 
2013/14

  The proportion of people who use services who 
reported that they had as much social contact as 
they would like was 42.0 against 42.4 in 2013/14

  Overall satisfaction of people who use services with 
their care and support was 59.2% against 64.7% in 
2013/14 and overall carer satisfaction was 41.9% 
against 42.2% in 2012/13

  Carers who stated that they had as much social 
contact as they would like was 29.7% against 48.7% 
in 2012/13

  The overall carer quality of life score was 7.3 against 
8.3 in 2012/13

Improving the areas where we do less well is a 
key focus for our work during 2015/16.

44



ADULT SAFEGUARDING

Peterborough City Council is dedicated to 
ensuring the safeguarding of adults at risk is a 
key priority when we are providing services to 
the public.  We are committed to preventing 
abuse and responding promptly when abuse is 
suspected.  We believe everyone has the right to 
live a life free from abuse and neglect.

An adult at risk is someone aged 18 or over, 
who has care and support needs, who may 
be in vulnerable situations and at risk of abuse 
or neglect.  They may be unable to protect 
themselves from harm or from being exploited by 
others.  The Care Act has now brought in some 
new categories of abuse, including self neglect.

KEEPING YOU SAFE

A new process for adult safeguarding 
enquiries has been developed in partnership 
with Cambridgeshire County Council and 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough NHS 
Foundation Trust.  The new processes should 
ensure a quicker, more person centred and 
personalised response to safeguarding 
concerns.  All referrals will be subject to multi-
agency discussions in order to agree the best 
agency to lead. Enquiries will reflect what the 
person wants and should be led by the agency 
or worker best able to safeguard that particular 
individual from the harm identified.

SAFEGUARDING OUTCOMES 
MEASURES PILOT

In June 2014 the council took part in a national 
pilot to assess the effectiveness of safeguarding 
processes and to look at the experience of the 
adult at risk and their family.

Social workers who had not been involved in 
the particular safeguarding investigation visited 
the adult at risk or a family member and asked a 
series of questions.

The results were sent back to a government 
body who collated them.  In the future this 
process will feed into a performance indicator:

“I feel safer as a result of the investigation”.

(Safeguarding adults whose circumstances make them vulnerable and protecting them from avoidable harm)

7

“I felt that there was nothing that could 
have been done better, relating to 
the safeguarding investigation.  I fully 
understood why my grandmother needed 
to be visited alone by the social worker 
first, so that she could fully ascertain issues 
relating to capacity.  I was happy that a 
thorough investigation was completed to 
ensure that my grandmother was not the 
victim of financial abuse”.

(grandchild)

45



KEEPING YOU SAFE

The Multi-Agency 
Safeguarding Hub 
(MASH) involves 
staff from a range of 
agencies such as the 
Police, Probation, 
Women’s Aid, Health 
and Mental Health 
working alongside 

Children’s and Adult Social Care, education and 
others. 
 
When a professional, family member or member 
of the public is concerned about the safety of 
an adult or a child, the MASH brings agencies 
together to provide a collaborative, multi-agency 
response to ensure that children, young people 
or vulnerable adults are safe.  

Through the MASH staff from across these 
agencies will be able to share data in a secure 
environment so that our collective support for 
the most vulnerable children and adults living in 
Peterborough is more effective. 

The benefits of the MASH are:

•  By working together prevent duplication and 
ensure children and adults receive the best 
possible service available

•  By working together share information, 
specialist skills and provide a much more 
integrated service 

NURSE EDUCATOR

A local initiative during 2014 was the introduction 
of the post of ‘Nurse Educator’.  This post, 
funded by health, has a remit of working with 
local care homes to identify staff training needs 
and to put in place the required training.

The Nurse Educator, a qualified nurse, has 
concentrated on supporting care home staff 
to keep residents safe and healthy in the care 
home and to reduce emergency admissions to 
hospital.  

Since coming into post the Nurse Educator has 
visited 37 care homes and delivered over 300 
training sessions.  Care home staff speak very 
highly of the supportive way in which the Nurse 
Educator has worked with them.

DEVELOPMENT OF THE MULTI-AGENCY SAFEGUARDING HUB (MASH) 

(Safeguarding adults whose circumstances make them vulnerable and protecting them from avoidable harm)

8

46



KEEPING YOU SAFE

9

The Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) 
came into force in April 2009 to protect people 
who lacked mental capacity to consent to care 
or treatment.

The safeguards apply to people in hospitals and 
people in care homes.

In March 2014 a Supreme Court ruling provided 
clarification on ‘depriving someone of their 
liberty’, resulting in many more people falling into 
the category of requiring a DoLS.  Peterborough 
City Council, like all other councils in England 
and Wales, has seen a sharp increase in the 
number of DoLS applications received.  In the 
year 2013/14 the council received a total of 25 
DoLS applications and all were completed within 
the prescribed timescales.  During 2014/15 a 
total of 414 applications were received, creating 
significant pressure on the small team.

The council has responded by training in house 
staff as Best Interest Assessors and by recruiting 
external Best Interest Assessors to undertake 
the investigations in to the applications.  It is 
anticipated that the demand will continue to 
increase through 2015/16.

THE SITUATIONS IN WHICH 
A DEPRIVATION OF LIBERTY 
SAFEGUARD SHOULD BE 
REQUESTED ARE:

•  A patient being restrained in order to admit 
them to hospital

•  Medication being given against a patient’s 
will

•  Staff having complete control over a 
person’s care or movements for a long 
period

•  Staff making all decisions for a person

•  Staff deciding whether a person can be 
released into the care of others or refusing 
this

•  Staff restricting a person’s access to their 
friends or family

(Safeguarding adults whose circumstances make them vulnerable and protecting them from avoidable harm)

DEPRIVATION OF LIBERTY SAFEGUARDS

47



MAKING SURE YOU HAVE

CO-PRODUCTION

The Care Act encourages a co-production 
approach when service development or change 
is required. 

The people involved in co-production activities 
will benefit:

• Increase in confidence

• Learn new skills 

• Gain a sense of purpose 

• Build new relationships

• Develop a sense of contributing

A GOOD QUALITY OF LIFE
ELIGIBILITY FOR CARE AND SUPPORT 

The Care Act brings with it new processes for 
assessing people’s eligibility to receive social 
care services.  The new criteria focuses on how 
people’s wellbeing is affected by their situation 
and needs.

Peterborough City Council has developed care 
and support planning documents to incorporate 
the new national eligibility criteria.  

Support plan documentation has been 
redesigned to ensure all aspects of support, 
both informal and formal, are considered in order 
to meet support needs in an efficient and person 
centred way. Support planning will evolve further 
during 2015.

Anybody receiving an assessment from 1 April 
2015 will have a new set of criteria explored with 
them, around their wellbeing.  

It looks at what a person’s difficulties and 
disabilities means for them and how it affects the 
quality of their lives.

Peterborough City Council has a requirement 
to review all existing customers under the new 
wellbeing focused eligibility criteria before 1 April 
2016.  The council wants to be able to involve 
the people of Peterborough in helping design 
services.  This is called ‘co-production’ and 
volunteers are welcomed in this area.

(Ensuring quality of life for people with care and support needs)

10

“For far too long people’s needs 
assessments have been driven by the 
service on offer that can be provided in a 
particular area … such an approach fails 
to recognise the richness and complexity 
of people’s lives and fails to support or 
promote truly person-centred care”

 (Care Quality Commission)

48



MAKING SURE YOU HAVE
A GOOD QUALITY OF LIFE

11

INFORMATION AND ADVICE 

The Care Act emphasises the need for providing 
comprehensive information and advice about 
care and support services in the local area.  
Peterborough City Council has put in place 
a new Customer Services Team with five 
dedicated staff to answer telephone calls from 
customers and carers looking for social care 
information, support or advice.  The team can 
be contacted on 01733 747474.  In many cases 
needs can be addressed at this first contact.  
The team also has immediate access to social 
workers and occupational therapists should 
more in depth work be identified at this first call.

During early 2015 a complete overhaul was 
undertaken of the council website.  The Adult 
Social Care pages have been rewritten to make 
them more user friendly and to better meet 
the requirements of the Care Act.  To view the 
website go to www.peterborough.gov.uk

INFORMATION ON CARE AND 
SUPPORT SERVICES

The council produces an annual hard copy 
directory with lots of information about local 
services.  To request a copy please call  
01733 747474.

Electronic versions can be accessed by visiting 
www.carechoices.co.uk/region/east-of-
england/cambridgeshire/peterborough/

(Ensuring quality of life for people with care and support needs)

49

http://www.peterborough.gov.uk
http://www.carechoices.co.uk/region/east-of-england/cambridgeshire/peterborough/
http://www.carechoices.co.uk/region/east-of-england/cambridgeshire/peterborough/


Adult Social Care work on a whole range of issues including supporting people with their finances. 

MAKING SURE YOU HAVE
A GOOD QUALITY OF LIFE

12

INDEPENDENT FINANCIAL ADVICE

The Care Act requires councils to provide access 
to independent financial advice.

If you are concerned about debts or need advice 
information can be found by searching on the 
Peterborough Care Directory at  
www.peterboroughcaredirectory.org.uk

Or by telephoning Customer Services on  
01733 747474.

CASE STUDY: SUPPORTING A CUSTOMER WITH FINANCIAL 
DIFFICULTIES

A referral was made to the Client Income Service about a lady who lacked mental capacity 
to manage her own finances. Her relationship had irretrievably broken down, and she had 
significant financial concerns, including debt, mortgage arrears and threats of legal action for 
monies owed. It became apparent that she had been financially abused. Her home was in a 
state of disrepair, and her wellbeing was seriously affected by these issues. The Client Income 
Service quickly applied to the Court of Protection to become her deputy, allowing the council to 
act on her behalf in managing her property and (financial) affairs. The application was approved 
and the Council set about dealing with the considerable financial problems she had faced. 
Creditors were contacted, repayment plans arranged, and in some cases the debts were 
written off.

As a result of these actions, her home was secured, the disconnection of her utility supplies 
was prevented, and her debts were addressed. Urgent and remedial property repairs were 
also arranged including fitting a new central heating system and hot water boiler, installation of 
UPVC windows, re-decorating and re-carpeting her home, and landscaping and re-fencing her 
garden. The customer was supported to be involved in all decisions about these matters. 

Her finances are now well-managed, monthly mortgage payments are routinely being repaid, 
additional welfare benefits have been successfully claimed, and a mobility vehicle has been 
applied for. Apart from her ongoing housing costs, the lady should be debt-free by the end of 
2015, and she is now happy, secure and settled.

(Ensuring quality of life for people with care and support needs)

50

http://www.peterboroughcaredirectory.org.uk 


MAKING SURE YOU HAVE
A GOOD QUALITY OF LIFE

13

SUPPORTING CARERS TO CARE

The Care Act brings in many more rights 
for carers.  For the first time carers will be 
recognised in the law in the same way as those 
they care for.  Carers can request an assessment 
and if they are assessed as being eligible for 
support the council will agree a support plan 
with the carer.

During 2014/15 a range of events and activities 
were arranged in Peterborough for carers.  
These included:

•  In April 2014 a Carers Conference was held.  
Over 90 carers attended and this was the 
first event to give an overview of the Care 
Act from speakers from the Department of 
Health.

•  In June 2014 the council celebrated Carers 
Week and offered a drop in at a local pop-
up shop.

•  In August 2014 a new service was 
commissioned for carers in Peterborough 
from Carers Trust. Carers Trust have 
organised several drop in sessions in the 
city for carers.  They provide breaks for 
carers through ‘GP Carers Prescriptions” 
and work closely with Adult Social Care to 
provide information, advice and support to 
carers.

•  In October 2014 a Carers Conference was 
held.  Over 80 carers attended and looked 
at the Care Act and what the local offer 
would include.  They also talked about 
doorstep crime and how to avoid scams

•  In November 2014 a Carers Rights Day 
was held looking at carer’s rights.  About 
40 carers attend this event which covered 
power of attorney, financial and health and 
wellbeing.  

Also during 2014 a Peterborough City Council 
employees’ carers support was set up, 
recognising that the workforce at the council 
includes carers.  The group meets every 
two months and offers support, advice and 
information to workforce carers.

(Ensuring quality of life for people with care and support needs)

51



MAKING SURE YOU HAVE
A GOOD QUALITY OF LIFE

14

CASE STUDY - IMPROVING QUALITY OF LIFE THROUGH  
OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY 

Following a hospital admission, the customer 
had been staying in her armchair for most of 
the day and had not been into her kitchen for 
months.  She wanted to be able to do more 
things for herself and to engage in the activities 
of normal living.  The council also wanted to 
be able to reduce her care package from two 
carers to one carer.  

The Occupational Therapist assessed the 
pieces of equipment that the customer was 
using and established that some of them were 
not needed.  These were able to be returned 
to the equipment store to be cleaned and 
reissued to someone else.  The Occupational 

Therapist worked with the customer and the 
formal carers to set some clear goals.  She 
also worked with the carers to enable them to 
feel more confident in supporting the customer.  

The lady is now able to be fully engaged in 
meal preparation and is confident moving 
independently around her front room with 
a walking aid.  This has reduced her risk of 
increased pressure sores and decreased the 
number of carers in the property at any one 
time.  She has reported that this has increased 
her sense of identity and self-esteem and 
overall physical and mental wellbeing.

(Ensuring quality of life for people with care and support needs)

CASE STUDY – SENSORY IMPAIRMENT
Mr L has a dual sensory loss and lives alone. He has support workers visit every day to help with daily tasks but approached the Sensory Team 
because he was concerned that he could not hear his doorbell to let the support staff in the house. Mr L is self-employed and works from home. He 
also needed the security of knowing that he would be alerted if the smoke alarms activated or someone rang his telephone system. 

A Bellman & Symfon 868 pager system was installed in the property. This provides Mr L with a discreet vibrating warning on a pager that he carries 
in his pocket and ensures that he is aware of alerts around his home, during the day and at night.

52



MAKING SURE YOU HAVE
A GOOD QUALITY OF LIFE
(Ensuring quality of life for people with care and support needs)

PREPARING FOR ADULTHOOOD - 0-25 DISABILITY SERVICE

Transition to adulthood for people with 
disabilities

The council has set up a special team for young 
people with disabilities to ensure that Children’s 
Social Care and Adult Social Care work closely 
together. 

When a young person with disabilities or a young 
carer approaches their 18th birthday, they may 
ask for an assessment. A parent or carer may 
also ask for an assessment as the child they are 
caring for approaches 18.

The service aims to:

•  support people to ‘get a life - not a service’ 
with suitable care and support

•  offer a consistent and timely approach 
within a multi-skilled workforce

•  support people to make a contribution to 
the communities in which they live

•  enable people to access universal and 
natural support

•  encourage people to achieve their goals and 
ambitions 

•  support people in achieving a healthy 
lifestyle

•  treat people as partners, with dignity and 
respect

•  enable and support people to be safe but 
not restricted

•  help people to develop networks in their 
local area

THE 0-25 DISABILITY SERVICE

The 0 to 25 Disability Service works in 
partnership with a range of local services and 
agencies including children’s and adult’s social 
care services, education, health and housing 
services to provide information, advice and 
support to help disabled young people develop 
a transitions pathway and prepare for life as they 
become an adult.

15

53



SUPPORTING YOU TO

16

BE INDEPENDENT
Peterborough City Council aims to support people to remain independent and in their own homes 
for as long as possible.  We also want to provide opportunities for people to improve their health and 
wellbeing.

CASE STUDY:  ENABLING A LOCAL LADY TO BE ABLE TO STAY AT HOME

Mrs R is an 83 year old lady who was living in her home with home care and significant support from her family. Mrs R had several admissions to 
hospital after falls and on discharge stayed in an interim bed within one of the local residential homes. Mrs R’s family were unhappy about the level 
of care and wanted where possible for Mrs R to return home with an increased care package. 

A local councillor was contacted by the family as they felt that they had waited a considerable time for a re-assessment. The newly allocated 
worker met with Mrs R and family, discussed all the options and applied to the Quality Assurance and Expenditure Panel to request funding for Mrs 
R to have live-in care at home. 

The worker presented her case very articulately to the members of the panel and successfully achieved funding for live-in care at a higher rate than 
the family were anticipating.  They started on direct payments a few weeks later and this enabled Mrs R to have 24 hour support in her own home.

DEMENTIA RESOURCE CENTRE

In the summer of 2014 the new Dementia 
Resource Centre opened its doors in 
Peterborough.

The centre, run by The Alzheimer’s Society, is 
open five days a week and offers a one stop 
shop for dementia care and support.  The centre 
offers a range of support groups and activities 

for people with dementia and their loved ones 
and carers including walking groups, gardening 
clubs and arts and crafts groups.  

Additionally there are groups specifically for 
black and minority ethnic communities and 
people with dementia who are under 65.

(Delaying and reducing the need for care and support)

54



SUPPORTING YOU TO
BE INDEPENDENT

17

Peterborough City Council is creating a range of 
mini enterprises to enable people with disabilities 
to be able to work and integrate into society.

GREEN FINGERS HORTICULTURAL 
SERVICES

A new enterprise has been developed 
in Peterborough for people with learning 
disabilities. 

The Green Fingers group meets at local 
allotments three mornings a week where 
members look after four allotments, learning 
and developing horticultural skills and growing a 
range of plants and produce. 

Robert and Daniel (pictured left) are also 
developing a gardening service.  They recently 
cleared the frontage at a local base where their 
workmanship was praised. 

THE FRIENDLY FRUIT COMPANY

The Friendly Fruit Company is a service provided 
every Friday, delivering prepared and packaged 
fruit to office workers at a reasonable price. 

The fruit is bought, prepared and delivered by 
people with a learning disability and a small 
profit is made, which provides a wage for the 
workforce.

In the winter months the Friendly Fruit Company 
provided delicious homemade soups and has 
recently branched out to offer some baked 
goods.

The service has been well received by office 
workers and is going from strength to strength. 

(Delaying and reducing the need for care and support)

“I am writing to you to praise two young men that are tidying 
up the gardens …… as we arrived the young men were busy 
weeding the drive, they got up to say hello to us and moved 
stuff out our way to get by. They were polite, kind and were 
taking pride in their work. They had carried out a grand job as 
I’ve never seen that drive looking so good”.

(Local business)

55



PATHWAYS JOB CLUB 

Anyone who has ever had to look for a job 
knows it can be hard work at the best of times. 
It is doubly hard if you have any sort of disability.  
Employers seeing the word ‘disability’ on an 
application form may think that they will be 
employing a raft of problems - and not a person 
who can be a very good employee. 

Staff at 49 Lincoln Road have been working hard 
over the last six months to make it easier for 
adults with a learning disability to apply for jobs 
by encouraging attendance at the Pathways Job 
Club.

Through the hard work of staff at 49 Lincoln 
Road, coupled with some grant money, a 
purpose built space has now been created 
where people can attend to apply for jobs and 
work on their digital CVs.
 

SUPPORTING YOU TO
BE INDEPENDENT
(Delaying and reducing the need for care and support)

18

One of the major barriers encountered 
by the people we support is to get 
prospective employers to look beyond a 
written CV and the person’s disability. I 
believe the best way to do this is to sell the 
personality of the potential employee and 
this is where digital CVs come in.  

Andy Jones,  
Pathways Job Club supporter

56



SUPPORTING YOU TO

(Delaying and reducing the need for care and support)

BE INDEPENDENT

CASE STUDY – WORK CHOICE

The Work Choice Service supports individuals with disabilities and 
long term health conditions to find paid sustainable employment.

Rehana and Katrina came onto the Work Choice Programme 
in late 2014. Both were volunteering, and were looking for paid 
employment, ideally in catering.

Employment Advisors from Work Choice supported both ladies 
with updating their CVs, interview skills, travel training, benefit 
advice and confidence building.

The Employment Engagement Officer then met with a local 
sandwich shop owner and Rehana and Katrina were invited for 
interview.  Both were offered positions in March 2015.  Advisors 
continue to provide support within the work place if required.

The team is currently working with a local college to secure 
apprenticeships to allow Rehana and Katrina to learn more and 
gain qualifications alongside their employment. 

19

“Get good experience. 
Get on well with the team. 
Thank you to everyone who 
help me get the job”

Rehana’s Comments 

“I like work here. Have 
more money. I am happy 
at the job”

Katrina’s Comments 

57



SUPPORTING YOU TO

(Delaying and reducing the need for care and support)

BE INDEPENDENT
ASSISTIVE TECHNOLOGY AND TELECARE

An area the council is developing is ‘telecare’. 
Telecare is technology that provides individuals 
and their relatives and carers peace of mind, by 
providing round the clock access to help and 
support at the touch of a button.  In February 
2015 Peterborough City Council, working with 
Cross Keys Homes, trialled a new service to 
support people to stay in their own homes, 
through the use of telecare products. 

Operating through Cross Keys Homes’ Lifeline 
system, a small base unit is installed in the 
home and connected to the Control Centre 
through the telephone line. Customers wear a 
special button either as a pendant or wristband. 
When pressed, this button automatically 
contacts a 24-hour Control Centre.  Fully-trained 
operators will instantly know who the caller is 
and where they are calling from. They will assess 
the situation and decide what type of help is 
needed. This could be one of the emergency 
services, a family member or a friend.

Lifeline can benefit anyone who feels vulnerable 
or needs support living at home, not just older 
people. Lifeline will work in the home and 
garden providing peace of mind 24-hours-a-day.  

As well as the emergency pendant, Lifeline 
can also include a range of other equipment, 
including bed sensors and falls detectors, and 
many other products to support people through 
their day. All the equipment ensures that if an 
incident occurs, there is someone there quickly 
to respond. 

Since February, Cross Keys Homes have 
installed over 40 Lifelines through this trial with 
Peterborough City Council, and will continue 
to work with the Council to develop the service 
and measure the outputs of the trial which is 
due to end in March 2016.  

20

58



CARE QUALITY COMMISSION INSPECTION OF REABLEMENT AND SHARED LIVES

In early 2015 the Care Quality Commission 
(CQC) undertook an announced inspection.  
They visited the services over two days.

LISTENING TO YOU
(Ensuring people have a positive experience of care and support)

The CQC found that both services were:
• Safe • Effective
• Caring • Responsive
• Well led

The council has a range or methods of collecting 
information from customers about their 
experiences of Adult Social Care services. These 
include an annual service user survey and a 
carers survey every two years.

The Reablement Service send Service User 
Surveys to all customers at the end of their 
Reablement. 

To the Reablement Team. Thank for you 
for the care and facilitation that you have 
given to my parents. Your professionalism, 
energy, sensitivity and kindness has 
been impressive. There have been many 
challenges to overcome and together you 
have found solutions. We can never thank 
you enough. Your ‘can do’ attitude has 
certainly helped. Together you are superb!

(reablement survey comments)

21

“People told us that the workers were capable and 
knowledgeable and able to meet their needs”.  

CQC Inspector

“I was very impressed at the care and attention of the 
workers”.

CQC Inspector

Reablement and Shared Lives 
Peterborough City Council

CQC overall rating

Good

11 May 2015

See the report >

59

http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-565306581
http://www.cqc.org.uk/location/1-565306581


ADVOCACY

Under the Care Act 2014, as part of the 
assessment process, the council may have a 
duty to offer you support from an independent 
advocate. This person cannot be involved in 
your care and support in a paid capacity and 
must be appropriately trained and supported 
to fulfil this role. Advocacy services help you to 
say what you want and to get the services you 
need. They will work to empower you to have a 
voice and to make choices by providing support, 
information and representation as required. 
 
Advocacy support can be provided by a 
wide range of people including friends or 
family or someone working for a charity or 
community group. Sometimes people prefer 
to have someone they know support them, 
sometimes people choose to receive support 
from a professional, independent advocate.   
Five voluntary sector agencies have been 
commissioned to provide advocacy to adults 
with social care needs living in Peterborough. 
They can provide flexible advocacy support 
including assisting you to be involved with adult 
social care processes. The agencies are:

Age UK 
Advocacy support for people over 65
Phone: 01733 564185
Email: reception@ageukpeterborough.org.uk
Website: www.ageukpeterborough.org.uk

Peterborough and Fenland Mind 
Advocacy for people with a mental health issue 
or illness
Phone:  01733 530650
Email:  wellbeing@pfmind.org.uk
Website:  www.pfmind.org.uk

Disability Peterborough (DIAL) 
Advocacy support for people with a physical 
disability
Phone:  01733 265551
Email:  dialpeterborough@btconnect.com
Website:  www.dialpeterborough.co.uk

Carers Trust 
Advocacy for carers 
Phone:  01733 645234
Email:   carers@carerstrustpeterborough.org
Website:  www.carerstrustcambridgeshire.org

PCVS   
Advocacy support for people with a learning 
disability
Phone:  01733 342683 or 01733 311016
Email:  pcvs@pcvs.co.uk
Website:  www.pcvs.co.uk/advocacy/

LISTENING TO YOU
(Ensuring people have a positive experience of care and support)

22

60

http://www.ageukpeterborough.org.uk 
http://www.pfmind.org.uk
http://www.dialpeterborough.co.uk
http://www.carerstrustcambridgeshire.org
http://www.pcvs.co.uk/advocacy/


COMPLAINTS

The council recognises complaints as a good 
way to identify problems and improve services.   
Complaints and concerns raised are closely 
monitored and learning is shared.  

During 2014/15 Adult Social Care received 64 
formal complaints and 26 informal concerns. 

Complaints were about subjects such as:

•  Conduct of social workers

•  Poor information and communications

•  Standard of care at independent sector care 
providers

•  Poor transition care between children’s and 
adults services

•  Unhappy with the Deprivation of Liberty 
Safeguards process or reports

•  Delay in Continuing Healthcare assessments

•  Unhappy about changes to day 
opportunities

•  Appointments being cancelled at late notice

•  Lack of clarity on cost of care on discharge 
from hospital

To make a complaint about Adult Social Care, 
you can either telephone the complaints team on 
01733 296331 or write to the address below:

The Central Complaints Office
Customer Services Centre
Bayard Place
Broadway
Peterborough
PE1 1FZ
ASCcomplaints@peterborough.gov.uk

LISTENING TO YOU
(Ensuring people have a positive experience of care and support)

23

61



The Adult Social Care Department at Peterborough City Council is always 
keen to hear what local people think about the services we deliver.

If you have a comment, suggestion, compliment or complaint, please do 
contact us:

CONTACT DETAILS:

Freepost RTCH-TLLZ-JGEC
The Quality Assurance Manager
Adult Social Care
Peterborough Town Hall
Bridge Street
Peterborough
PE1 1HF

TELL US WHAT YOU THINK

24

62



25

63



T
his page is intentionally left blank

64



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES Agenda Item No. 6

13 JANUARY  2016 Public Report

Report of the Programme Director of the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough 
System Transformation Programme
                                     
Contact Officer(s) – Dr Fiona Head, Director of the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough System 
Transformation Programme
Contact Details – 07415 241076 or fiona.head@nhs.net

CAMBRIDGESHIRE AND PETERBOROUGH HEALTH AND CARE SYSTEM 
TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME

1. PURPOSE

1.1 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Health and Care System Transformation Programme last 
presented information to the Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues on 21 July 2015.  This 
paper updates the Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues on this planning process.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 Scrutiny Committee members are asked to discuss the progress of the programme to date and 
to make comments.

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 

3.1 Links between the System Transformation Programme and the Sustainable Community 
Strategy are set out below:

Priority 1: Creating opportunities – tackling inequalities
Outcome: Improving health
Outcome: Supporting vulnerable people

4. BACKGROUND

4.1 Strategic aims and values 

The strategic aims and values of the programme remain:

 People at the centre of all that we do; 
 Empowering people to stay healthy; 
 Developing a sustainable health and care system; and
 Improving quality, improving outcomes.

5. UPDATE

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) is leading a process 
to plan changes to the health system that will improve outcomes for people and enable financial 
sustainability.  This process involves providers, partners and patients and has four phases.

The programme continues to work on the following areas:

 Detailed analysis of the issues facing the health system, working with key stakeholders 
about areas of challenge.  The Change Document for the programme has been 
updated.

65



 Engagement with the public around the key challenges facing the health system now 
and into the future.

 Getting feedback from the public about current services and how they think things could 
change.

5.1 Changes Since the Last Update to the Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues on 21 July 
2015

5.1.1 Progress of the engagement work

 Pre-engagement work with the public in the challenges facing the health system 
continues.

 “Fact pacts” for each locality have been produced to support this.  These are shown in 
the appendix.

 Formal engagement with the public on ideas for key changes in the system is expected 
to take place in 2016.

5.1.2 Public Involvement Assembly

The second round of Public Involvement Assembly sessions took place in October and 
November.  Sessions were held in eight locations and members were asked for their 
suggestions for improving urgent and emergency care, elective care, paediatrics and maternity 
services.

The Assembly sessions were as follows:

 Wednesday 21 October – Wisbech – Wisbech Library, Ely Place, PE13 1EU 
 Thursday 22 October – Peterborough – The Fleet, Fleet Way, PE2 8DL 
 Tuesday 03 November – Ely – The Cathedral Centre, Palace Green, CB7 4EW 
 Wednesday 04 November – Huntingdon – Huntingdon Town Hall, Market Hill, PE29 3PJ 
 Tuesday 10 November – Cambridge – Central Library, Lion Yard, CB2 3QD
 Thursday 12 November – St Neots - St Neots Library, Priory Lane, St Neots PE19 2BH
 Tuesday 17 November – Chatteris – The King Edward Community Centre, King 

Edwards Road, Chatteris, Cambs PE16 6NG
 Tuesday 24 November - Little Shelford Memorial Hall, Church Street, Little Shelford, 

Cambridge, CB22 5HG – 6.30pm to 8.30pm.

The workshops are a continuation of the Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Fit for the Future 
NHS Saturday Cafés and Public Involvement Assembly sessions that were held this summer.

As a direct result of feedback from the first round of the Public Involvement Assembly, a leaflet 
is being prepared to explain how people can return unwanted equipment.

The Programme will plan separate events to engage with people, such as those with caring 
responsibilities for young children, who are unable to attend early evening meetings.
Three of the locations were poorly attended and the Programme is reviewing whether to hold 
events in these locations in future.

5.1.3 Development of the Urgent and Emergency Care Vanguard

In July Cambridgeshire and Peterborough CCG was successful in being awarded Vanguard 
status for the Urgent and Emergency Care element of the NHS New Care Models (NCM) 
programme, bringing the ‘Five Year Forward View’ into action.

The CCG was one of eight sites selected nationally, tasked with implementing the 
recommendations set out in Sir Bruce Keogh’s review of Urgent and Emergency Care.  The 
Keogh review recommended that there be no consultation in isolation.  What this means in 
practice is that patients accessing the urgent and emergency care system, whether by phone 
via 999 or 111, or digitally, should be provided with the necessary advice regarding how to 

66



manage their own condition (self-care) or be provided with seamless access to UEC services 
via direct booking.  This could be directly into a GP/dental appointment or to a designated 
urgent care centre.  An overview of the model and is presented in appendix 2. 

The CCG is setting up the Vanguard programme that is underpinned by five workstreams, see 
appendix 3.  The Vanguard Programme has established a Strategic SRG (SSRG) to act as the 
Programme Board to oversee the delivery of each of the work streams.  This Board meets 
monthly and is comprised of clinicians, managers and subject matter experts representing each 
area of work. 

The programme is in the ‘set up’ phase and will be accountable via the SSRG to the System 
Transformation Programme (STP) board.  Further updates will be provided in due course that 
describe the aims and objectives of each work stream.

5.1.4 Scoping of the prevention work that is needed to maximise wellbeing and reduce 
demand for services

Activity modelling undertaken, as part of the programme has shown that conditions such as 
obesity are likely to be a cause of half of the increase in demand on health services.

The Director of Public Health has scoped a prevention workstream which aims to promote 
wellbeing and reduce the need for health and care services.  This was presented to the System 
Transformation Programme Board on 16 November and an action plan is being developed.

6. IMPLICATIONS

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Resource Implications
There are no significant implications within this category.

Statutory, Risk and Legal Implications
There are no significant implications within this category.

Equality and Diversity Implications
There are no significant implications within this category.  Work is in progress to ensure that 
any ideas for change across the system will be subject to the required impact assessment 
processes, prior to any further engagement work planned from September onwards.

Localism and Local Member Involvement 

There are no significant implications within this category.  

Public Health Implications
There are no significant implications within this category.  Work is in progress to ensure that 
any ideas for change across the system will be subject to the required impact assessment 
processes, prior to any further engagement work.

7. NEXT STEPS

7.1 Programme timelines are currently being revised.  Over the first quarter of 2016, the System 
Transformation Programme Board will continue clinical and public engagement.  

8.

8.1

RECOMMENDATIONS

Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues are asked to note this update

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

67



Source Documents Location
 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough 

health system Change Document/15 
to 2018/19: Main text

http://www.cambridgeshireandpeterborough
ccg.nhs.uk/five-year-plan.htm

 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough 
health system Blueprint 2014/15 to 
2018/19: Appendices

http://www.cambridgeshireandpeterborough
ccg.nhs.uk/five-year-plan.htm

 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough 
System Transformation Programme 
Frequently asked Questions

http://www.cambridgeshireandpeterborough
ccg.nhs.uk/STP_FAQS_Feb_2015docx.pdf

 NHS England “ Five Year Forward 
View”

http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2014/10/5yfv-web.pdf

 NHS England “ Urgent and 
Emergency Care Vanguard” site

http://www.england.nhs.uk/ourwork/futuren
hs/5yfv-ch3/new-care-models/uec/

10. APPENDICES

 Appendix 1 - Fact Packs By Locality 

 Appendix 2 - Overview of the Vanguard Model

 Appendix 3 - Overview of The Vanguard Programme of Work

68

http://www.cambridgeshireandpeterboroughccg.nhs.uk/five-year-plan.htm
http://www.cambridgeshireandpeterboroughccg.nhs.uk/five-year-plan.htm
http://www.cambridgeshireandpeterboroughccg.nhs.uk/five-year-plan.htm
http://www.cambridgeshireandpeterboroughccg.nhs.uk/five-year-plan.htm
http://www.cambridgeshireandpeterboroughccg.nhs.uk/STP_FAQS_Feb_2015docx.pdf
http://www.cambridgeshireandpeterboroughccg.nhs.uk/STP_FAQS_Feb_2015docx.pdf
http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/5yfv-web.pdf
http://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2014/10/5yfv-web.pdf


System Transformation Programme
Engagement Fact Pack: Cambridge System
September 2015

• The total resident population of Cambridge City 
and South Cambridgeshire was 278,200 in 2013 
and is forecast to rise by 17% to 2023, reaching a 
total of 326,700.

• The population aged 65 and over is forecast to 
rise by 30% by 2023. The number of people aged 
90 or over will rise by three quarters in this time.

• The number of children and young people aged 
18 and under is forecast to rise by 21% to 2023.

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Health System Transformation  Programme Team
Working across the system, for the system

Population

Local context

• There are 37 GP practices in CATCH and Cam Health Local Commissioning Groups, which make up the Cambridge 
System locality. Together these serve a registered population of 323,000. List sizes vary from 2,700 to 18,000, with 
an average list size of 8,700 (the same as the CCG average).

• If practice populations increase in line with expected population growth, average list size will rise to 10,200 in 2023 
(an increase of 17%).

National GP pressures (source: Nuffield Trust Election Briefing 2015 - http://www.nuffieldtrust.org.uk/blog/facts-figures-and-views-health-
and-social-care-resource-reporters-2015-general-election)

• 90% of NHS contacts take place in primary care (HSCIC survey 2012/13)

• Spending on core GP services fell by over 2% in real terms during the 2010-2015 parliament

• The number of people saying they had failed to get an appointment rose from 9% to 11% from 2011/12 to 2013/14 

• Consultations at GP surgeries rose by 11% from 2010 to 2014, though most of the increase was in nurse 
consultations and consultations with ‘others’ (e.g. pharmacists) (based on a sample of 337 practices)

• Nationally, FTE GP numbers rose by 4.8% from 2010 to 2014, compared to 7% in hospital doctors

• 12% of GPs now work part-time; more than 10% of slots for new GP trainees in practices were left empty in 2014. 

Primary Care

Source: Cambridgeshire County Council Research 
Group 2013-based population forecasts

• There were 3,200 births to women living in Cambridge City and 
South Cambs in 2013. This is forecast to rise to 3,700 in 2023.

• 95% of women registered with Cambridge System GPs deliver at 
CUHFT. Very small proportions deliver at HHCT and other 
Trusts.

• Of CCG births at CUHFT, three quarters were from the locality.
61% of deliveries at the Trust were  ‘normal’, 13% were assisted 
and 26% were caesarean sections.

Births and deliveries

This pack contains data published for different geographical areas. The closest match to the area served by the CATCH and Cam
Health Local Commissioning Groups has been used throughout. Depending on the data source, this may be the locality, the local
authorities of Cambridge City and South Cambridgeshire, the county of Cambridgeshire or the CCG catchment area.

APPENDIX 1

69



Engagement Fact Pack: Cambridge System

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Health System Transformation  Programme Team
Working across the system, for the system

Current and projected secondary care activity

A&E 

attendances

Outpatients Elective 

Admissions

Non-elective

Admissions

Procedures

2013/14 66,434 297,885 35,244 22,126 54,068

2018/19 79,527 356,499 42,400 27,337 66,238

% change 19.7% 19.7% 20.3% 23.6% 22.5%

Secondary care use by patients registered with Cambridge System GP practices

Demand for secondary care across the 
local population is projected to rise by 
around 20% over the next five years 
(24% for non-elective admissions). 
This takes into account the effect of 
population change and rising obesity. 
Types of activity with an older 
population profile show the greatest 
increase.

Data source: 13/14 data taken from SUS; projections are from the System Transformation Programme’s Acute Activity 
Model and include the impact of planned population growth, ageing and rising obesity.

Attendance patterns
• 86% of people registered with 

locality GPs who attend A&E do so 
at CUHFT. 3% attend HHCT.

• For elective inpatient care 85% of 
admissions are at CUHFT, with 3% 
at HHCT and 5% at Papworth. For 
non-elective care 90% of 
admissions are at CUHFT. 

• The most recent monthly monitoring report (June 2015) recorded 9,126 attendances, just a little higher than the 
England average of 8,923. 

• In 2014-15 the Trust saw around 105,500 A&E attendances compared to 93,000 at PSHFT (including minor injuries 
unit) and 43,000 at HHCT. The Trust is designated as the major trauma centre for the East of England and is also a 
hyper-acute stroke centre. Ambulance protocols divert patients requiring this level of care to CUHFT from the 
surrounding area.

Patient composition
• 81% of the CCG’s A&E attendances at 

the Trust were from people registered 
with CATCH and Cam Health GPs. The 
proportion for elective admissions was 
69% and the proportion for non-elective 
admissions was 75%. The largest flow 
from elsewhere in the CCG was from the 
Isle of Ely and Wisbech locality. 

Current and projected CCG secondary care activity at CUHFT

A&E 

attendances

Outpatients Elective 

admissions

Non-elective

Admissions

Procedures

2013/14 74,995 394,001 47,288 27,500 84,823

2018/19 89,731 469,045 56,441 33,908 104,331

% change 19.6% 19.0% 19.4% 23.3% 23.0%

Activity at CUHFT is projected to rise 
by around 20% over the next five 
years. This takes into account the 
effect of population change and rising 
obesity. Types of activity with an older 
population show the greatest increase.

CCG secondary care activity at Cambridge University Hospitals Foundation Trust (CUHFT)

APPENDIX 1

70



���� 4-hour waits
• 84% of A&E attendances at CUHFT in 2014/15 were seen within 4 hours. This was below 

the national target of 95%, the national average of 93.6%, the East Anglia Area Team 
average of 92%, and was the lowest of the Trusts in the patch.

���� Referral to 

treatment

• CUHFT performed below the national target and national and local comparators on 
admitted pathways. Performance on non-admitted pathways was close to the target but 
below the other Trusts in the patch.

���� Cancelled 

operations

• 89% of cancelled elective operations at PSHFT were subsequently treated within 28 days. 
There is no national target for this but the Trust performed above the regional but below 
the national average.

���� Bed

occupancy

• In 2014/15 CUHFT ran at an average bed occupancy rate of 93%, compared to a national 
average of 89%. 

���� Av. length of 

stay

• Average length of stay for non-elective admissions at CUHFT was 4.6 days, which was the 
lowest of the Trusts in the patch. 

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Health System Transformation  Programme Team
Working across the system, for the system

Local Trust Performance in 2014-15 (see glossary on final page for abbreviations)

• Total healthcare spend on Cambridgeshire and Peterborough patients 
was £1.2 billion in 2014/15. Of this, around a half was spent on acute 
and specialist care and a quarter on primary care (including 
prescribing). 

• If we do not change our health system substantially then we face a 
deficit of at least £250 million by 2018/19. This will make it harder to 
deliver good quality care.  At the moment our hospitals have significant 
deficits.

• This deficit figure assumes good performance against local 
improvement plans. 

Local NHS finances

Engagement Fact Pack: Cambridge System

Organisation

A&E 

4hr 

waits

Referral to Treatment

Elective cancelled

operations treated 

within 28 days

General & 

Acute Bed 

Occupancy

Non Elective 

Average 

Length of 

Stay (days)

Admitted 

Pathways

Non-admitted

pathways

Incomplete 

pathways

Target 95.0% 90.0% 95.0% 92.0% n/a n/a n/a

CUHFT 83.9% 86.3% 95.1% 91.5% 88.6% 92.8% 4.6

HHC 92.7% 94.7% 99.2% 96.6% 95.9% 86.3% 5.0

PSHFT 85.6% 89.6% 96.0% 96.6% 88.8% 93.2% 4.7

East Anglia Area Team 92.0% 88.2% 96.1% 93.9% 87.4% n/a n/a

National 93.6% 87.6% 95.3% 93.1% 93.7% 89.0% n/a

APPENDIX 1

71



� Life 

expectancy

• In Cambridge City, life expectancy at birth is 80 for men and 84.4 for women. In South 
Cambridgeshire, life expectancy is 83 for men and 89 for women. These figures are all 
above the national averages of 74.4 for men and 83.1 for women.

• Within Cambridge, there is a life expectancy gap of around 8 years between those living in 
the most and least deprived areas.

�
Potential 

years of life 

lost

• In 2014, 1,700 potential years of life were lost across the CCG’s catchment area from 
causes amenable to healthcare (PYLL) per 100,000 population. Cambridgeshire is among 
the 20% best performing local authorities on this measure, while Peterborough is among 
the worst performing 20%. 

• Source: Public Health Information Team, Cambridgeshire County Council

� Emergency 

admissions

Source: http://ccgtools.england.nhs.uk/loa/flash/atlas.html 

� Disease and 

poor health

• In Cambridge City, health is generally better than average. Emergency admission rates for 
hip fracture in people aged over 65 are significantly higher than nationally, as are rates of 
hospital stays for alcohol-related harm and self-harm. 

• In South Cambridgeshire, health is generally better than average. The rate of  malignant 
melanoma in people under 75 is significantly higher than nationally, as are hospital stays 
for self-harm. The rate of people reported killed or seriously injured on South Cambs’ 
roads is 52.5 per 100,000, which is significantly higher than the national figure of 39.7.

	 Wider 

determinants

• At 2.5% in Cambridge City and 1.5% in South Cambs, long-term unemployment is well 
below the regional and national averages of 5% and 7.1%. 

• GCSE results in both local authorities are significantly above the England average. Against 
this affluent picture, small areas of the City are among the most deprived in England and 
around 5,000 children across the locality live in poverty.


 Lifestyles

• Smoking prevalence is 9.5% in Cambridge City and 11.4% in South Cambs, which is 
significantly below the regional and national averages of 17.5% and 18.4%. 

• Local rates of obesity are significantly below the national average in both Year 6 children 
(aged 10-11) and adults. 67% of adults in Cambridge City and 62% in South 
Cambridgeshire are physically active, which is well above the national average of 57%.

� Dementia
• Prevalence estimates suggest there are around 3,260 Cambridge System residents with 

dementia. This is forecast to rise by 23% to 4,010 in 2023.
• Source: MRC CFAS Prevalence estimates applied to local population 

� Diabetes

• There are 9,400 people with diabetes in Cambridge City & South Cambs (Source: QOF 2013-14)

• Across the CCG’s catchment area, just 56% of people with diabetes have good blood 
glucose control. The CCG is among the worst performing nationally on this measure and 
performs similarly poorly on measures of diabetic complications.

� Mental 

health

• Mental health represents 23% of the national burden of disease but just 13% of NHS 
spend. Source: www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/213761/dh_124058.pdf

• Over 44,000 adults registered with CCG GPs had depression in 2013/14. (Source: QOF)

Abbreviations: 
CCS: Cambridgeshire Community Services; CUHFT: Cambridge University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust;  

HHCT: Hinchingbrooke Health Care NHS Trust; PSHFT: Peterborough & Stamford NHS Foundation Trust; 
CCG: Clinical Commissioning Group (in this case Cambridgeshire & Peterborough CCG). 

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Health System Transformation  Programme Team
Working across the system, for the system

Health determinants and health outcomes Cambridge System residents
Unless otherwise stated, these are from the Public Health England Health Profiles: http://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles

CCG PERFORMANCE QUINTILE Cambs P’borough

Unplanned admission for chronic ambulatory care conditions 2nd best 2nd worst

Unplanned admissions for epilepsy, asthma, diabetes in under 19s 2nd best Worst

Emergency admissions for conditions not normally requiring admission 2nd best Middle

Emergency admissions for children with URTI 2nd best Middle

Engagement Fact Pack: Cambridge System

APPENDIX 1

72



System Transformation Programme
Engagement Fact Pack: Huntingdonshire locality
September 2015

• The total resident population of Huntingdonshire 
was 175,700 in 2013 and is forecast to rise by 12% 
to 2023, reaching a total of 196,900.

• The population aged 65 and over is forecast to rise 
by 37% by 2023. The number of people aged 90 or 
over will almost double in this time.

• The number of children and young people aged 18 
and under is forecast to rise by 11% to 2023.

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Health System Transformation  Programme Team
Working across the system, for the system

Population

Local context

• There are 26 GP practices across Hunts Care Partners and Hunts Health Local Commissioning Groups, which 
make up the locality. Together these serve a registered population of 194,000. List sizes vary from 2,200 to 14,100, 
with an average list size of 7,500 compared to a CCG average of 8,700.

• If practice populations increase in line with expected population growth, average list size will rise to 8,400 in 2023 
(an increase of 12%).

National GP pressures (source: Nuffield Trust Election Briefing 2015 - http://www.nuffieldtrust.org.uk/blog/facts-figures-and-views-health-
and-social-care-resource-reporters-2015-general-election)

• 90% of NHS contacts take place in primary care (HSCIC survey 2012/13)

• Spending on core GP services fell by over 2% in real terms during the 2010-2015 parliament

• The number of people saying they had failed to get an appointment rose from 9% to 11% from 2011/12 to 2013/14 

• Consultations at GP surgeries rose by 11% from 2010 to 2014, though most of the increase was in nurse 
consultations and consultations with ‘others’ (e.g. pharmacists) (based on a sample of 337 practices)

• Nationally, FTE GP numbers rose by 4.8% from 2010 to 2014, compared to 7% in hospital doctors

• 12% of GPs now work part-time; more than 10% of slots for new GP trainees in practices were left empty in 2014. 

Primary Care

Source: Cambridgeshire County Council Research 
Group 2013-based population forecasts

• There were 2,050 births to women living in Huntingdonshire in 
2013. This is forecast to rise to 2,250 in 2023.

• 87% of women registered with Hunts locality GPs deliver at 
Hinchingbrooke.

• Of CCG births at HHCT, the majority (83%) were from the 
Hunts locality. 62% of deliveries at the Trust were  ‘normal’, 
15% were assisted and 24% were caesarean sections.

Births and deliveries

This pack contains data published for different geographical areas. The closest match to the area served by the Hunts Care 
Partners and Hunts Health Local Commissioning Groups has been used throughout. Depending on the data source, this may be 
the locality, the local authority of Huntingdonshire, the county of Cambridgeshire or the CCG catchment area.

APPENDIX 1

73



Engagement Fact Pack: Huntingdonshire locality

1

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Health System Transformation  Programme Team
Working across the system, for the system

Attendance patterns
• 68% of people registered with Hunts 

GPs who access A&E do so at 
Hinchingbrooke Hospital.

• For elective inpatient care this 
proportion is 71% and for non-
elective it is 58%. 

Current and projected secondary care activity

A&E 

attendances

Outpatients Elective 

Admissions

Non-elective

Admissions

Procedures

2013/14 40,353 223,194 30,371 17,615 43,482

2018/19 47,011 263,635 36,484 21,325 53,227

% change 16.5% 18.1% 20.1% 21.1% 22.4%

Secondary care use by people registered with Huntingdonshire locality GP practices

• HHCT A&E is one of the smallest in the country.  The most recent monthly monitoring report (June 2015) recorded 
3,826 attendances, the fourth lowest of the 140 Type 1 A&Es in England. The England average is 8,923. 

• Each year the Trust sees in the region of 43,000 attendances compared to 93,000 at PSHFT (including minor 
injuries unit) and 105,000 at CUHFT. Ambulance protocols convey patients needing care for hyper acute stroke, 
primary angioplasty and poly trauma directly to PSHFT or CUHFT. Patients accessing HHCT via ambulance 
therefore have predominantly medical elderly conditions.

Demand for secondary care across the 
local population is projected to rise by 
6% (A&E) to 11% (procedures)  over 
the next five years. This takes into 
account the effect of population change 
and rising obesity. Types of activity with 
an older population profile show the 
greatest increase.

Patient composition
• 85% of the CCG’s A&E attendances 

at the Trust  are from people 
registered with Hunts locality GPs. 
The proportions for elective and non-
elective inpatient admissions are 
similar.

Current and projected CCG secondary care activity at HHCT

A&E 

attendances

Outpatients Elective 

admissions

Non-elective

Admissions

Procedures

2013/14 36,239 141,215 22,585 10,796 25,227

2018/19 42,096 168,311 27,392 13,755 30,688

% change 16.2% 19.2% 21.3% 27.4% 21.6%

Activity at HHCT is projected to rise by 
6% (A&E) to 14% (NE admissions) 
over the next five years. This takes 
into account the effect of population 
change and rising obesity. Types of 
activity with an older population show 
the greatest increase.

CCG secondary care activity at Hinchingbrooke Healthcare Trust (HHCT)

Data source: 13/14 data taken from SUS; projections are from the System Transformation Programme’s Acute Activity 
Model and include the impact of planned population growth, ageing and rising obesity.

APPENDIX 1

74



���� 4-hour waits
• 92.7% of A&E attendances at HHCT in 2014/15 were seen within 4 hours. This was below 

the national target of 95% and the national average of 93.6% but above the East Anglia 
Area Team average.

���� Referral to 

treatment

• HHCT performed above the national target, national average and regional average on all 
pathways.

���� Cancelled 

operations

• 96% of cancelled elective operations at HHCT were subsequently treated within 28 days. 
There is no national target for this but the Trust performed above the regional and national 
average.

���� Bed

occupancy

• HHCT ran at an average bed occupancy rate of 86%, compared to a national average of 
89%. They had the lowest bed occupancy of any Trust in the patch.

���� Av. length of 

stay

• Average length of stay for non-elective admissions at HHCT was 5 days, which was a little 
longer than the average of 4.6 and 4.7 and CUHFT and PSHFT respectively. 

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Health System Transformation  Programme Team
Working across the system, for the system

Local Trust Performance in 2014-15 (see glossary on final page for abbreviations)

• Total healthcare spend on Cambridgeshire and Peterborough patients 
was £1.2 billion in 2014/15. Of this, around a half was spent on acute 
and specialist care and a quarter on primary care (including 
prescribing). 

• If we do not change our health system substantially then we face a 
deficit of at least £250 million by 2018/19. This will make it harder to 
deliver good quality care.  At the moment our hospitals have significant 
deficits.

• This deficit figure assumes good performance against local 
improvement plans. 

Local NHS finances

Engagement Fact Pack: Huntingdonshire locality

Organisation

A&E 

4hr 

waits

Referral to Treatment

Elective cancelled

operations treated 

within 28 days

General & 

Acute Bed 

Occupancy

Non Elective 

Average 

Length of 

Stay (days)

Admitted 

Pathways

Non-admitted

pathways

Incomplete 

pathways

Target 95.0% 90.0% 95.0% 92.0% n/a n/a n/a

CUHFT 83.9% 86.3% 95.1% 91.5% 88.6% 92.8% 4.6

HHC 92.7% 94.7% 99.2% 96.6% 95.9% 86.3% 5.0

PSHFT 85.6% 89.6% 96.0% 96.6% 88.8% 93.2% 4.7

East Anglia Area Team 92.0% 88.2% 96.1% 93.9% 87.4% n/a n/a

National 93.6% 87.6% 95.3% 93.1% 93.7% 89.0% n/a

APPENDIX 1

75



Abbreviations: 
CCS: Cambridgeshire Community Services; CUHFT: Cambridge University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust;  

HHCT: Hinchingbrooke Health Care NHS Trust; PSHFT: Peterborough & Stamford NHS Foundation Trust; 
CCG: Clinical Commissioning Group (in this case Cambridgeshire & Peterborough CCG)

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Health System Transformation  Programme Team
Working across the system, for the system

� Life 

expectancy

• Life expectancy at birth is 81.0 for Huntingdonshire men and 84.3 for women. This is 
significantly higher than the national averages of 79.4 and 83.1 and higher than the East 
of England average.

�
Potential 

years of life 

lost

• In 2014, 1,700 potential years of life were lost across the CCG’s catchment area from 
causes amenable to healthcare (PYLL) per 100,000 population. Cambridgeshire is 
among the 20% best performing local authorities on this measure, while Peterborough is 
among the worst performing 20%. 

• Source: Public Health Information Team, Cambridgeshire County Council

� Emergency 

admissions

Source: http://ccgtools.england.nhs.uk/loa/flash/atlas.html 

� Disease and 

poor health

• The health of people in Huntingdonshire is generally better than the England average.
• The rate of people reported killed or seriously injured on Huntingdonshire’s roads is 48.1 

per 100,000, which is significantly higher than the national figure of 39.7.

	 Wider 

determinants

• Overall, levels of deprivation in Huntingdonshire are very low. At 2.1%, long-term 
unemployment is well below the regional and national averages of 5% and 7.1%. 

• Against this affluent picture, GCSE results are below average, and there are small areas 
of relatively concentrated deprivation. 


 Lifestyles

• Smoking prevalence is 11.6%, which is significantly lower than the regional and national 
averages of 17.5% and 18.4%. 

• The prevalence of obesity in Year 6 children (age 10-11) is significantly lower than 
national and regional averages. 

• Adult obesity is higher than average at 26% compared to 23% nationally.
• 63% of adults are physically active, which is higher than nationally (57%).

� Dementia
• Prevalence estimates suggest there are around 2,050 Huntingdonshire residents with 

dementia. This is forecast to rise by 56% to 3,200 in 2023.
• Source: MRC CFAS Prevalence estimates applied to local population 

� Diabetes

• There are 8,400 people with diabetes in Huntingdonshire. (Source: QOF 2013/14)
• Across the CCG’s catchment area, just 56% of people with diabetes have good blood 

glucose control. The CCG is among the worst performing nationally on this measure and 
performs similarly poorly on measures of diabetic complications.

� Mental health

• Mental health represents 23% of the national burden of disease but just 13% of NHS 
spend. Source: www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/213761/dh_124058.pdf

• Over 44,000 adults registered with Cambridgeshire & Peterborough GPs had depression 
in 2013/14. (Source: QOF)

Health determinants and health outcomes for Huntingdonshire residents
Unless otherwise stated, these are from the Public Health England Health Profiles: http://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles

CCG PERFORMANCE QUINTILE Cambs P’borough

Unplanned admission for chronic ambulatory care conditions 2nd best 2nd worst

Unplanned admissions for epilepsy, asthma, diabetes in under 19s 2nd best Worst

Emergency admissions for conditions not normally requiring admission 2nd best Middle

Emergency admissions for children with URTI 2nd best Middle

Engagement Fact Pack: Huntingdonshire locality

APPENDIX 1

76



System Transformation Programme
Engagement Fact Pack: Isle of Ely and Wisbech
September 2015

• The total resident population of East 
Cambridgeshire and Fenland was 181,100 in 
2013 and is forecast to rise by 14% to 2023, 
reaching a total of 206,800.

• The population aged 65 and over is forecast to 
rise by 28% by 2023. The number of people 
aged 90 or over will almost double in this time.

• The number of children and young people aged 
18 and under is forecast to rise by 14% to 
2023.

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Health System Transformation  Programme Team
Working across the system, for the system

Population

Local context

• There are 14 GP practices Isle of Ely and Wisbech Local Commissioning Groups, which make up the locality. 
Together these serve a registered population of 145,000. List sizes vary from 2,100 to 20,200, with an average list 
size of 10,400 compared to a CCG average of 8,700.

• If practice populations increase in line with expected population growth, average list size will rise to 11,900 in 2023 
(an increase of 14%).

National GP pressures (source: Nuffield Trust Election Briefing 2015 - http://www.nuffieldtrust.org.uk/blog/facts-figures-and-views-health-
and-social-care-resource-reporters-2015-general-election)

• 90% of NHS contacts take place in primary care (HSCIC survey 2012/13)

• Spending on core GP services fell by over 2% in real terms during the 2010-2015 parliament

• The number of people saying they had failed to get an appointment rose from 9% to 11% from 2011/12 to 2013/14 

• Consultations at GP surgeries rose by 11% from 2010 to 2014, though most of the increase was in nurse 
consultations and consultations with ‘others’ (e.g. pharmacists) (based on a sample of 337 practices)

• Nationally, FTE GP numbers rose by 4.8% from 2010 to 2014, compared to 7% in hospital doctors

• 12% of GPs now work part-time; more than 10% of slots for new GP trainees in practices were left empty in 2014. 

Primary Care

Source: Cambridgeshire County Council Research 
Group 2013-based population forecasts

• There were 2,260 births to women living in East Cambridgeshire and Fenland in 
2013. This is forecast to rise to 2,330 in 2023.

• 51% of women registered with Isle of Ely and Wisbech locality GPs deliver at 
CUHFT and 31% deliver at QEH in King’s Lynn.

Births and deliveries

This pack contains data published for different geographical areas. The closest match to the area served by the Isle of Ely and 
Wisbech Local Commissioning Groups has been used throughout. Depending on the data source, this may be the locality, the 
local authorities of East Cambridgeshire and Fenland, the county of Cambridgeshire or the CCG catchment area.

APPENDIX 1

77



Engagement Fact Pack: Isle of Ely & Wisbech

1

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Health System Transformation  Programme Team
Working across the system, for the system

Attendance patterns
• Nearly half of people registered with Isle of Ely and Wisbech GPs who accessed emergency care in 2014-15 did so 

at minor injuries units provided by Cambridgeshire Community Services. These units were located in 
Peterborough, North Cambs hospital in Wisbech and the Princess of Wales hospital in Ely (note that 
commissioning arrangements have changed for 2015/16).  Other significant attendance locations were CUHFT and 
QEHKL, both of which provide full (‘Type 1’) A&E facilities. 

• For elective inpatient care, 36% of people registered with Isle of Ely and Wisbech GPs attended QEH in King’s 
Lynn and 30% attended CUHFT in Cambridge.

• For non-elective inpatient care, both QEHKL and CUHFT took over a third of admissions, with lower proportions of 
admissions at HHCT and PSHFT. 

Current and projected secondary care activity

A&E 

attendances

Outpatients Elective 

Admissions

Non-elective

Admissions

Procedures

2013/14 25,021 157,574 21,857 12,719 31,325

2018/19 29,483 184,533 25,896 15,351 38,050

% change 17.8% 17.1% 18.5% 20.7% 21.5%

Secondary care use by people registered with Isle of Ely & Wisbech GP practices

• At CUHFT, 15% of A&E attendances from the CCG’s registered population were from Isle of Ely and Wisbech
locality. In terms of elective admissions, the proportion is 17% and for non-elective admissions it is 19%.

• At HHCT, 9% of A&E attendances from the CCG’s registered population were from Isle of Ely and Wisbech locality. 
In terms of elective admissions, the proportion is 13% and for non-elective admissions it is 11%.

• At PSHFT, 3% of A&E attendances from the CCG’s registered population were from Isle of Ely and Wisbech
locality. In terms of elective admissions, the proportion is 4% and for non-elective admissions it is 3%.

• Activity at Trusts in the patch is projected to rise by around 20%, with the greatest rises in types of activity with an 
older population. This projection takes into account the effect of population change and rising obesity. 

Demand for secondary care across the 
local population is projected to rise by 
around 20% over the next five years. 
This takes into account the effect of 
population change and rising obesity. 
Types of activity with an older 
population profile show the greatest 
increase.

CCG secondary care activity from a Trust perspective

Data source: 13/14 data taken from SUS; projections are from the System Transformation Programme’s Acute Activity 
Model and include the impact of planned population growth, ageing and rising obesity.

APPENDIX 1

78



���� 4-hour waits
• 90.7% of A&E attendances at QEHKL in 2014/15 were seen within 4 hours, compared to 

83.9% at CUHFT. Both were below the national target of 95% and the national average of 
93.6%.

���� Referral to 

treatment

• Both CUHFT and QEHKL were below target on admitted pathways but similar to or above 
target on non-admitted and incomplete pathways.

���� Cancelled 

operations

• 76% of cancelled elective operations at QEHKL were subsequently treated within 28 days, 
compared to 88.6% at CUHFT. There is no national target for this but both Trusts 
performed below the national average.

���� Bed

occupancy

• QEHKL ran at an average bed occupancy rate of 88%, compared to 93% at CUHFT. The 
national average was 89%. QEHKL had lower bed occupancy than the other local Trusts.

���� Av. length of 

stay

• Average length of stay for CCG non-elective admissions at QEHKL was 4 days, which was 
shorter than the figure of 4.6 at CUHFT. 

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Health System Transformation  Programme Team
Working across the system, for the system

Local Trust Performance in 2014-15 (see glossary on final page for abbreviations)

• Total healthcare spend on Cambridgeshire and Peterborough patients 
was £1.2 billion in 2014/15. Of this, around a half was spent on acute 
and specialist care and a quarter on primary care (including 
prescribing). 

• If we do not change our health system substantially then we face a 
deficit of at least £250 million by 2018/19. This will make it harder to 
deliver good quality care.  At the moment our hospitals have significant 
deficits.

• This deficit figure assumes good performance against local 
improvement plans. 

Local NHS finances

Engagement Fact Pack: Isle of Ely & Wisbech

Organisation

A&E 

4hr 

waits

Referral to Treatment

Elective cancelled

operations treated 

within 28 days

General & 

Acute Bed 

Occupancy

Non Elective 

Average 

Length of 

Stay (days)

Admitted 

Pathways

Non-admitted

pathways

Incomplete 

pathways

Target 95.0% 90.0% 95.0% 92.0% n/a n/a n/a

CUHFT 83.9% 86.3% 95.1% 91.5% 88.6% 92.8% 4.6

HHC 92.7% 94.7% 99.2% 96.6% 95.9% 86.3% 5.0

PSHFT 85.6% 89.6% 96.0% 96.6% 88.8% 93.2% 4.7

QEHKL 90.7% 88.1% 97.0% 94.8% 76.0% 88.3% 4.0

East Anglia Area Team 92.0% 88.2% 96.1% 93.9% 87.4% n/a n/a

National 93.6% 87.6% 95.3% 93.1% 93.7% 89.0% n/a

APPENDIX 1

79



Abbreviations: 
CCS: Cambridgeshire Community Services; CUHFT: Cambridge University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust;  

HHCT: Hinchingbrooke Health Care NHS Trust; PSHFT: Peterborough & Stamford NHS Foundation Trust; 
CCG: Clinical Commissioning Group (in this case Cambridgeshire & Peterborough CCG); 

QEHKL: Queen Elizabeth Hospital King’s Lynn NHS Foundation Trust

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Health System Transformation  Programme Team
Working across the system, for the system

� Life 

expectancy

• In East Cambridgeshire, life expectancy at birth is 81.8 for men and 85.6 for women. This 
is significantly higher than the national average. In Fenland, life expectancy is 79.5 for 
men and 82.8 for women, which is not significantly different to the national average. 

• Within Fenland, there is a gap in male life expectancy of nearly 5 years between those 
living in the most and least deprived areas.

�
Potential 

years of life 

lost

• In 2014, 1,700 potential years of life were lost across the CCG’s catchment area from 
causes amenable to healthcare (PYLL) per 100,000 population. Cambridgeshire is 
among the 20% best performing local authorities on this measure, while Peterborough is 
among the worst performing 20%. 

• Source: Public Health Information Team, Cambridgeshire County Council

� Emergency 

admissions

Source: http://ccgtools.england.nhs.uk/loa/flash/atlas.html 

� Disease and 

poor health

• Overall, taking account of population age structure, death rates from common causes are 
lower than nationally in East Cambs and not significantly different to nationally in Fenland

• The rate of people reported killed or seriously injured on our roads is 67.8 per 100,000 in 
East Cambs and 45.8 per 100,000 in Fenland, both of which are significantly higher than 
the national figure of 39.7.

	 Wider 

determinants

• At 2.4% in East Cambs and 4.3% in Fenland, long-term unemployment is below the 
regional and national averages of 5% and 7.1%. 

• GCSE results in both local authorities are below average. Parts of the locality, particularly 
to the north, are among the most deprived 20% of areas of the country.


 Lifestyles

• Smoking prevalence is 18% in East Cambs and 22% in Fenland, which is not 
significantly different to the regional and national averages of 17.5% and 18.4%. 

• Local rates of obesity are not significantly different to nationally in both Year 6 children 
(aged 10-11) and as adults.

• 58% of adults in East Cambs are physically active, which is similar to the national 
average. In Fenland this is just 51%, which is significantly lower than nationally (57%).

� Dementia
• Prevalence estimates suggest there are around 2,670 East Cambridgeshire and Fenland 

residents with dementia. This is forecast to rise by 20% to 3,210 in 2023.
• Source: MRC CFAS Prevalence estimates applied to local population 

� Diabetes

• There are 11,100 people with diabetes in East Cambs & Fenland. (Source: QOF 2013/14)

• Across the CCG’s catchment area, just 56% of people with diabetes have good blood 
glucose control. The CCG is among the worst performing nationally on this measure and 
performs similarly poorly on measures of diabetic complications.

� Mental health

• Mental health represents 23% of the national burden of disease but just 13% of NHS 
spend. Source: www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/213761/dh_124058.pdf

• Over 44,000 adults registered with CCG GPs had depression in 2013/14. (Source: QOF)

Health determinants and health outcomes for Isle of Ely and Wisbech residents
Unless otherwise stated, these are from the Public Health England Health Profiles: http://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles

CCG PERFORMANCE QUINTILE Cambs P’borough

Unplanned admission for chronic ambulatory care conditions 2nd best 2nd worst

Unplanned admissions for epilepsy, asthma, diabetes in under 19s 2nd best Worst

Emergency admissions for conditions not normally requiring admission 2nd best Middle

Emergency admissions for children with URTI 2nd best Middle

Engagement Fact Pack: Isle of Ely & Wisbech

APPENDIX 1

80



System Transformation Programme 

Engagement Fact Pack: Peterborough & Borderline 
 

September 2015 

• The total resident population of Peterborough was 

189,300 in 2013 and is forecast to rise by 19% to 

2023, reaching a total of 224,800. 

• The population aged 65 and over is forecast to 

rise by 28% by 2023. The number of people aged 

90 or over will almost double in this time. 

• The number of children and young people aged 

18 and under is forecast to rise by 23% to 2023. 

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Health System Transformation  Programme Team 

Working across the system, for the system 

Population 

 

Local context 

• There are 29 GP practices Peterborough and Borderline Local Commissioning Groups, which make up the locality. 

Together these serve a registered population of 257,000. List sizes vary from 2,000 to 25,800, with an average list 

size of 8,900 compared to a CCG average of 8,700. 

• If practice populations increase in line with expected population growth, average list size will rise to 10,600 in 2023 

(an increase of 19%). 

National GP pressures (source: Nuffield Trust Election Briefing 2015 - http://www.nuffieldtrust.org.uk/blog/facts-figures-and-views-health-

and-social-care-resource-reporters-2015-general-election) 

• 90% of NHS contacts take place in primary care (HSCIC survey 2012/13) 

• Spending on core GP services fell by over 2% in real terms during the 2010-2015 parliament 

• The number of people saying they had failed to get an appointment rose from 9% to 11% from 2011/12 to 2013/14  

• Consultations at GP surgeries rose by 11% from 2010 to 2014, though most of the increase was in nurse 

consultations and consultations with ‘others’ (e.g. pharmacists) (based on a sample of 337 practices) 

• Nationally, FTE GP numbers rose by 4.8% from 2010 to 2014, compared to 7% in hospital doctors 

• 12% of GPs now work part-time; more than 10% of slots for new GP trainees in practices were left empty in 2014.  

Primary Care 

Source: Cambridgeshire County Council Research 

Group 2013-based population forecasts 

• There were 3,200 births to women living in Peterborough in 

2013. This is forecast to rise to 3,440 in 2023. 

• 96% of women registered with Peterborough and Borderline 

locality GPs deliver at PSHFT. Very small proportions deliver at 

HHCT and other Trusts. 

• Of CCG births at PSHFT, almost all were from Peterborough and 

Borderline locality. 62% of deliveries at the Trust were  ‘normal’, 

12% were assisted and 27% were caesarean sections. 

 

Births and deliveries 

This pack contains data published for different geographical areas. The closest match to the area served by the Peterborough 

and Borderline Local Commissioning Groups has been used throughout. Depending on the data source, this may be the locality, 

the local authority of Peterborough or the CCG catchment area. 

APPENDIX 1

81



Engagement Fact Pack: Peterborough & Borderline 

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Health System Transformation  Programme Team 

Working across the system, for the system 

Current and projected secondary care activity 

A&E 
attendances 

Outpatients Elective 
Admissions 

Non-elective 
Admissions 

Procedures 

2013/14 57,774 307,347 28,558 22,982 33,757 

2018/19 68,484 361,750 34,094 27,542 40,501 

% change 18.5% 17.7% 19.4% 19.8% 20.0% 

Secondary care use by people registered with Peterborough & Borderline GP practices 

Demand for secondary care across the 

local population is projected to rise by 

around 20% over the next five years. 

This takes into account the effect of 

population change and rising obesity. 

Types of activity with an older 

population profile show the greatest 

increase. 

Data source: 13/14 data taken from SUS; projections are from the System Transformation Programme’s Acute Activity 

Model and include the impact of planned population growth, ageing and rising obesity. 

Attendance patterns 
 

• 95% of people registered with locality 

GPs who access emergency care do 

so in Peterborough, either at the 

minor injuries unit run by 

Lincolnshire Community Services or 

at PSHFT. 

• For elective inpatient care 75% of 

admissions are at PSHFT. For non-

elective care 94% of admissions are 

at PSHFT.  

 

 

 

• The most recent monthly monitoring report (June 2015) recorded 7,036 attendances, which was below the England 

average of 8,923.  

• Each year the Trust sees in the region of 93,000 attendances (including minor injuries unit) compared to 105,000 at 

CUHFT and 43,000 at HHCT.  

Patient composition 
• 90% of the A&E attendances at the 

Trust are from people registered with 

Peterborough and Borderline GPs. The 

proportions for elective and non-elective 

inpatient admissions are similar, with 

9% of admissions from the 

Huntingdonshire locality. 

Current and projected CCG secondary care activity at PSHFT 

A&E 
attendances 

Outpatients Elective 
admissions 

Non-elective 
Admissions 

Procedures 

2013/14 60,435 299,621 25,737 23,902 30,955 

2018/19 71,711 352,269 30,755 28,745 37,253 

% change 18.7% 17.6% 19.5% 20.3% 20.3% 

Activity at PSHFT is projected to rise 

by 18% (outpatients) to 20% (NE 

admissions and procedures) over the 

next five years. This takes into account 

the effect of population change and 

rising obesity. Types of activity with an 

older population show the greatest 

increase. 

Secondary care activity at Peterborough & Stamford Hospital (PSHFT) 

APPENDIX 1

82



 4-hour waits 
• 86% of A&E attendances at PSHFT in 2014/15 were seen within 4 hours. This was below 

the national target of 95%, the national average of 93.6%, and the East Anglia Area Team 

average of 92%. 

 Referral to 
treatment 

• PSHFT performed close to the national target on both admitted and non-admitted 

pathways and was well above target for incomplete pathways. 

 Cancelled 
operations 

• 89% of cancelled elective operations at PSHFT were subsequently treated within 28 days. 

There is no national target for this but the Trust performed above the regional but below 

the national average. 

 Bed 
occupancy 

• PSHFT ran at an average bed occupancy rate of 93%, compared to a national average of 

89%. They had the highest bed occupancy of any Trust in the patch. 

 Av. length of 
stay 

• Average length of stay for non-elective admissions at PSHFT was 4.7 days, which was 

comparable to the figure at CUHFT and a little shorter than the figure at HHCT.  

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Health System Transformation  Programme Team 

Working across the system, for the system 

Local Trust Performance in 2014-15 (see glossary on final page for abbreviations) 

• Total healthcare spend on Cambridgeshire and Peterborough patients 

was £1.2 billion in 2014/15. Of this, around a half was spent on acute 

and specialist care and a quarter on primary care (including 

prescribing).  

• If we do not change our health system substantially then we face a 

deficit of at least £250 million by 2018/19. This will make it harder to 

deliver good quality care.  At the moment our hospitals have significant 

deficits. 

• This deficit figure assumes good performance against local 

improvement plans.  

 

Local NHS finances 

Engagement Fact Pack: Peterborough & Borderline 

Organisation 

A&E 
4hr 

waits 

Referral to Treatment 
Elective cancelled 

operations treated 
within 28 days 

General & 
Acute Bed 
Occupancy 

Non Elective 
Average 

Length of 
Stay (days) 

Admitted 
Pathways 

Non-admitted 
pathways 

Incomplete 
pathways 

Target 95.0% 90.0% 95.0% 92.0% n/a n/a n/a 

CUHFT 83.9% 86.3% 95.1% 91.5% 88.6% 92.8% 4.6 

HHC 92.7% 94.7% 99.2% 96.6% 95.9% 86.3% 5.0 

PSHFT 85.6% 89.6% 96.0% 96.6% 88.8% 93.2% 4.7 

East Anglia Area Team 92.0% 88.2% 96.1% 93.9% 87.4% n/a n/a 

National  93.6% 87.6% 95.3% 93.1% 93.7% 89.0% n/a 

APPENDIX 1

83



Abbreviations:  

CCS: Cambridgeshire Community Services; CUHFT: Cambridge University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust;   

HHCT: Hinchingbrooke Health Care NHS Trust; PSHFT: Peterborough & Stamford NHS Foundation Trust;  

CCG: Clinical Commissioning Group (in this case Cambridgeshire & Peterborough CCG);  

QEHKL: Queen Elizabeth Hospital King’s Lynn NHS Foundation Trust 

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Health System Transformation  Programme Team 

Working across the system, for the system 

 Life 
expectancy 

• In Peterborough, life expectancy at birth is 78.1 for men and 82.6 for women. This is 

significantly lower than the national average. Within Peterborough, there is a gap in male 

life expectancy of over 9 years between those living in the most and least deprived areas. 

 
Potential 
years of life 
lost 

• In 2014, 1,700 potential years of life were lost across the CCG’s catchment area from 

causes amenable to healthcare (PYLL) per 100,000 population. Cambridgeshire is 

among the 20% best performing local authorities on this measure, while Peterborough is 

among the worst performing 20%.  

• Source: Public Health Information Team, Cambridgeshire County Council 

 Emergency 
admissions 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

       Source: http://ccgtools.england.nhs.uk/loa/flash/atlas.html  

 Disease and 
poor health 

• Rates of hospital stays for alcohol related harm and self-harm are significantly higher 

than the national average and the prevalence of opiate and/or crack use is also high.  

• The incidence of tuberculosis is significantly higher than the national average at 56.7 per 

100,000 compared to 30.4 per 100,000.  

• Emergency admissions for hip fracture in over 65 year olds are significantly higher than 

nationally. The death rate from cardiovascular disease in people aged under 75 is 

significantly higher than nationally. The comparable figure for cancer deaths is similar to 

the national average.  

 Wider 
determinants 

• At 7.6%, long-term unemployment is above the national average of 7.1%.  

• GCSE results are below average. Parts of the local authority are among the most 

deprived 20% of areas of the country. 

 Lifestyles 

• Smoking prevalence is 21% in Peterborough, which is significantly above the regional 

and national averages of 17.5% and 18.4%.  

• Local rates of obesity are lower than average in Year 6 children (aged 10-11) but rise to 

national levels in adults.  

• 55% of adults in Peterborough are physically active, which is similar to the national 

average of 57%. 

 Dementia 
• Prevalence estimates suggest there are around 1,950 Peterborough residents with 

dementia. This is forecast to rise by 33% to 2,590 in 2023. 

• Source: MRC CFAS Prevalence estimates applied to local population  

 Diabetes 

• There are 9,270 people with diabetes in Peterborough. (Source: QOF 2013/14) 

• Across the CCG’s catchment area, just 56% of people with diabetes have good blood 

glucose control. The CCG is among the worst performing nationally on this measure and 

performs similarly poorly on measures of diabetic complications. 

 Mental health 
• Mental health represents 23% of the national burden of disease but just 13% of NHS 

spend. Source: www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/213761/dh_124058.pdf 

• Over 44,000 adults registered with the CCG’s GPs had depression in 2013/14. (Source: QOF)  

Health determinants and health outcomes Peterborough & Borderline residents 

Unless otherwise stated, these are from the Public Health England Health Profiles: http://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/health-profiles 

CCG PERFORMANCE QUINTILE Cambs P’borough 

Unplanned admission for chronic ambulatory care conditions 2nd best 2nd worst 

Unplanned admissions for epilepsy, asthma, diabetes in under 19s 2nd best Worst 

Emergency admissions for conditions not normally requiring admission 2nd best Middle 

Emergency admissions for children with URTI 2nd best Middle 

Engagement Fact Pack: Peterborough & Borderline APPENDIX 1

84

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/213761/dh_124058.pdf


Appendix 2 OVERVIEW OF THE VANGUARD MODEL

 

The term ‘click, call or come in’ highlights the need to manage the majority of urgent care needs 
in the community.  The use of expensive hospital services is deemed to be the last resort and 
reserved for those patients with life threatening conditions.

85



This page is intentionally left blank

86



Appendix 3 OVERVIEW OF THE VANGUARD PROGRAMME OF WORK

111/OOH
Clinical 

Hub

In Hospital 
Emergency 

Care

Post 
Hospital 

Discharge

UEC 
Mental 
Health

New Payment Models for UEC

Workforce Design

Demand, Capacity, Activity modeling/data including & Outcomes metrics

Admission/
prevention
Community 

access

87



This page is intentionally left blank

88



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES Agenda Item No. 7

13 JANUARY 2016 Public Report

Report of the Director of Public Health                                       

Contact Officer(s) – Dr Liz Robin, Director of Public Health
Contact Details – liz.robin@peterborough.gov.uk

DRAFT PETERBOROUGH JOINT HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY

1. PURPOSE

1.1 This report is being presented in order to seek the views of the Scrutiny Commission for Health 
Issues on the draft Peterborough Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS), and on the 
proposed engagement process for stakeholders and the public. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 The Health Scrutiny Commission is asked to: 

 Comment on the content of the draft JHWS, and suggest where sections of the JHWS 
need further review/amendment 

 Comment on the engagement process for the draft JHWS and whether this is sufficiently 
comprehensive. .

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY AND LOCAL AREA 
AGREEMENT

3.1

3.2

3.3

The JHWS is linked to the Peterborough Sustainable Community Strategy Priority 1: ‘Creating 
Opportunities, Tackling Inequalities’; Outcome – Improving Health.

It is also linked to Peterborough City Council’s Strategic Priority 7 ‘Achieve the best health and 
wellbeing for the City’. 

The proposals outlined in the JHWS are relevant to a range of national indicators in the Public 
Health Outcomes Framework, NHS Outcomes Framework and Social Care Outcomes 
Framework.  

4. BACKGROUND

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Production of a Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy to meet the needs identified in the Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment (JSNA) is a statutory function of the Peterborough Health and Wellbeing Board. Both 
NHS Commissioners and Local Authorities are required to have regard to the Joint Strategy in their 
service plans.

It was agreed at the Health and Wellbeing Board in June 2015 meeting that the Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy 2012-15 should be updated. An outline framework and chapter headings for the 
Strategy were agreed at Health and Wellbeing Board in September 2015.

The draft Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy has been developed collaboratively, with a wide range of 
local authority and NHS officers involved in drafting chapters for their lead area of responsibility.

The Strategy follows the framework agreed in September with sections on:
 Health needs analysis;
 Health and wellbeing through the lifecourse;

89

mailto:liz.robin@peterborough.gov.uk


4.5

4.6

 Creating a healthy environment;
 Tackling health inequalities; and
 Working together effectively.

The Strategy is not able to cover every service which promotes or delivers health and wellbeing in 
Peterborough. As outlined in the statutory guidance – the main focus of the Strategy is on joint work 
between the local authority, NHS commissioners and other partner organisations to meet local health and 
wellbeing needs.

Following engagement with stakeholders and the public, a final draft of the JHWS will be taken to the 
March 2016 meeting of the HWB Board for approval.

5. KEY ISSUES

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

The Strategy follows the framework agreed in September with sections on:

 Health needs analysis;
 Health and wellbeing through the lifecourse;
 Creating a healthy environment;
 Tackling health inequalities; and
 Working together effectively.

Each ‘chapter on a page’ covers key needs identified in the Peterborough Joint Strategic Needs 
Assessment, current joint work to meet these needs, proposed joint plans, and outcome metrics through 
which progress can be tracked.   

Some further work will be done on lay-out and presentation of the draft JHWS, following the version 
taken to the Health and Wellbeing Board (attached as Annex A)

The JHWS does not require formal consultation under NHS Scrutiny legislation as it is a high level 
Strategy, rather than an NHS service change. But it is important that the JHWS has an appropriate level 
of engagement with stakeholder groups and the public, within available resources, to ensure that the right 
priorities have been identified, and that there is consensus around the direction of future plans.  

HealthWatch, Peterborough City Council Communications and Public Health, and Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group Engagement staff have met to discuss and take forward a 
stakeholder engagement process. As a result of  this: 

 A summary version of the draft JHWS has been prepared for engagement (Annex B) 
 A questionnaire on the draft JHWS has been prepared, led by HealthWatch (Annex C) 
 A Peterborough City Council website page will host the full draft JHWS, the summary version, 

the questionnaire and an e-mail address for general comments on the JHWS.  
 An engagement plan and timetable for meetings with stakeholder groups has been developed 

(Annex D). 

It is proposed that the engagement period should run from early/mid January to end February. This is 
relatively short compared to the 3 month period generally allowed for NHS consultations on service 
changes, but allows sufficient time during March for the comments to be analysed and fed into a final 
draft of the JHWS to be taken to the Health and Wellbeing Board on 24 March. It is not clear how much 
feedback from the general public a relatively high level strategy will receive, although there are 
stakeholder groups with a strong interest which are likely to make responses, as outlined in the 
engagement plan.  

The alternative would be to run the engagement period from early January through to early April (a three 
month period) with presentation of the final draft JHWS to the Health and Wellbeing Board in June 2016. 
The Health and Wellbeing Board has already agreed to extend the current JHWS (2012-2015) to March 
2016, and a further extension to June 2016 would be required. 

6. IMPLICATIONS

90



6.1 The approval of a draft Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2016/19 for further engagement and 
consultation does not have immediate service change, financial or legal implications. It supports the 
Health and Wellbeing Board in delivering its statutory duty to prepare this Strategy.

7. CONSULTATION

7.1 The process of creating the draft JHWS has involved a range of officers from the City Council 
and CCG, and has been discussed by the wider membership of the Health and Wellbeing 
Board and the supporting Health and Wellbeing Programme Delivery Board. The proposed 
engagement process is outlined under paras 5.4-5.6.  

8. NEXT STEPS

8.1 The views of the Health Scrutiny Commission as recorded in the minutes of this meeting will be 
fed back into the engagement process on the draft JHWS and reported to the Health and 
Wellbeing Board. 

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

9.1 All background documents referred to are included as Appendices 

10. APPENDICES

10.1

10.2

10.3

10.4

Draft Peterborough Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (2016-19) 

Summary for public engagement: Draft Peterborough Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 
(2016-19) - To follow 

Engagement questionnaire – draft Peterborough Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy - To 
follow  

Engagement timetable – draft Peterborough Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy - To follow 

91



This page is intentionally left blank

92



 

 

 

DRAFT  

 

JOINT HEALTH AND WELLBEING 

STRATEGY 2016/19 

 

PETERBOROUGH HEALTH AND  

WELLBEING BOARD  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A

93



 

2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS  

 

Section Number Section Page Number 

1 Introduction 3 

HEALTH NEEDS ANALYSIS 

1.1 Peterborough JSNA Findings on a 
page 

4 

1.2 Forecasting Future Needs For 
Health And Care In Peterborough 

 Maternity Services 

 Primary Care 

 Hospital (Secondary) Care  

5 

HEALTH AND WELLBEING THROUGH THE LIFECOURSE  

2.1 Children and Young Peoples 
Health 

6 

2.2 Health Behaviours and Lifestyles 8 

2.3 Long Term Conditions and 
Premature Mortality – 

Cardiovascular Disease (CVD)  

9 

2.4 Mental Health For Adults Of 
Working Age 

10 

2.5 Ageing Well 11 

2.6 Protecting Health – 
Communicable Diseases 

12 

CREATING A HEALTHY ENVIRONMENT 

3.1 Growth, Health and the Local 
Plan  

13 

3.2 Health and Transport Planning 14 

3.3 Housing and Health 15 

TACKLING HEALTH INEQUALITIES  

4.1 Geographical Health Inequalities 16 

4.2 Health and Wellbeing of Diverse 
Communities 

17 

4.3 Health And Wellbeing of People 
with Disability and/or Sensory 

Impairment 

18 

WORKING TOGETHER EFFECTIVELY  

5.1 Partnership Boards 19 

5.2 Commissioning Principles 19 

5.3 Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough Health System 
Transformation Programme   

20 

5.4 Peterborough City Council 
Customer Experience Programme 

21 

5.5 A vision for Health and Wellbeing 
2016/19 

22 

Appendix A  Peterborough City Council 
Commissioning Design Principles 

23 

 

APPENDIX A

94



 

3 
 

1. INTRODUCTION – CHAIR OF HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD  

To be included in final version of Strategy  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A

95



HEALTH NEEDS ANALYSIS  

4 
 

 

 

Peterborough has a lower average life expectancy and 
‘healthy life expectancy’ than England. On average in 
Peterborough a man can expect to live in good health 
to the age of 61 years with a total lifespan of 78 years. 
A woman can expect to live in good health to the age of 
59 with a total lifespan of  83 years.  

A few other key facts 

Of 150 local authorities in England, Peterborough is 
ranked:

Peterborough JSNA findings on a Page

Peterborough is the UK’s second-
fastest growing city with a 
relatively young, ethnically 

diverse population. 

71% of our residents are 
White British and 29% are 

from an ethnic minority 
group.

There are significant inequalities in health and life 
expectancy between different areas of the 
Peterborough, which are clearly linked to 

economic deprivation.  This is shown on the map 
above, in which darker green areas = higher life 

expectancy and red dots = areas of high 
deprivation.

Peterborough has a higher 
proportion of residents living in 
deprivation than England, with 

more local areas in the most 
deprived fifth nationally, and 
fewer in the least deprived 
fifth.  Levels of deprivation 

highest in Dogsthorpe (28%), 
North (27%) and Central (26%) 

wards. 

One in four 4-5 year olds 
are overweight or obese, 
and seven in ten adults

Our rate of under 18 
pregnancy is 38% higher 

than England.

106th for premature mortality (death 
rate under age 75)  from heart disease 
and stroke

98th for premature mortality from lung 
disease

94th for premature mortality from 
cancer

APPENDIX A

96



HEALTH NEEDS ANALYSIS  

5 
 

1.2 FORECASTING FUTURE NEEDS FOR HEALTH AND CARE IN PETERBOROUGH  

 

 

 

MATERNITY SERVICES  
 

There were 3,200 births to women living in Peterborough in 2013. This is forecast to rise to 3,440 in 2023.  

 
PRIMARY CARE  
 
There are 29 GP practices in Peterborough and Borderline Local NHS Commissioning Groups (LCGs), which 
cover the Peterborough City Council area and also some neighbouring GP practices in Cambridgeshire and 
Northamptonshire. Together these serve a registered population of 257,000 people. GP practice list size (the 
number of patients registered with one GP practice) varies from 2,000 to 25,800, with an average list size of 
8,900. If practice populations increase in line with expected population growth, average list size will rise to 
10,600 in 2023 (an increase of 19%).  

 
HOSPITAL (SECONDARY) CARE  
 
Annual hospital care attendances and admissions for people registered with Peterborough and Borderline 
LCGs is shown in the table below. Most but not all of these attendances and admissions are at Peterborough 
and Stamford Hospitals Foundation Trust (PSHFT) Demand for hospital services is forecast to rise by about 20% 
over the next five years. This takes into account the effect of population change and rising obesity. Types of 
hospital services used more by older people show the greatest increase, in line with the rapid rise in the older 
population.  
 
FORECAST INCREASES IN HOSPITAL USE BY PETERBOROUGH AND BORDERLINE PATIENTS 2013/14-2018/19   

 
 A&E 

attendances 
Outpatients Elective 

Admissions 
Non-elective 
Admissions 

Procedures  

2013/14 57,774 307,347 28,558 22,982 33,757 

2018/19 68,484 361,750 34,094 27,542 40,501 

% Change 18.5% 17.7% 19.4% 19.8% 20.0% 

 

 
The total resident population of 
Peterborough was 189,300 in 2013 and 
is forecast to rise by 19% to 2023, 
reaching a total of 224,800.  

•The population aged 65 and over is 
forecast to rise by 28% by 2023. The 
number of people aged 90 or over will 
almost double in this time.  

•The number of children and young 
people aged 18 and under is forecast to 
rise by 23% to 2023.  

 

APPENDIX A

97



HEALTH AND WELLBEING THROUGH THE LIFECOURSE   
 

6 
 

2.1 CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S HEALTH  

NEEDS IDENTIFIED IN THE JSNA  

Peterborough children and young people are more likely to live in areas where there are high levels of 

deprivation than England or East of England averages. Areas of Peterborough with the highest levels of 

deprivation, which are concentrated in the central and eastern areas, are also those where birth rates are 

highest. Overall around 22% of children and young people aged 0-16 are living in poverty. 

Peterborough is a young, fast growing and increasingly diverse City. Population forecasts indicate that 

numbers of children and young people in the 5-15 age group will increase by around 30% between 2013 and 

2021. Increasing population diversity brings considerable cultural richness, but also leads to some challenges in 

ensuring that families form newly arrived communities are aware of and are able to access prevention and 

early help services that can support them and prevent any additional needs from coming more serious.  

Other key priority areas include: 

 High rates of teenage conceptions in the City;  

 High numbers of children aged 4-5 who are obese; 

 High levels of teeth decay; 

 Relatively fewer young people achieving well in education compared with England and regional 

averages, although this position is improving; 

 High levels of hospital admissions among 10-24 year olds for self-harm 

Issues such as obesity and tooth decay may be associated with neglect, and there are indications from referrals 

into Children’s Services and other softer measures that relatively high numbers of children and young people 

are impacted by neglect.  

CURRENT JOINT WORK:  

The Joint Commissioning Unit has been established to bring together commissioning activities across 

Peterborough and Cambridge in relation to children’s health and wellbeing. Current priorities include: 

 Managing the transition of commissioning arrangements for health visiting from NHS England to the 

Local Authority; 

 Developing a healthy child programme that ensures that emerging needs for support are identified 

early and are acted upon effectively in partnership with children and families; 

 Reviewing the Child and Adolescent Mental Health offer across the area, including overseeing action 

related to reducing waiting list for specialist CAMH services and remodelling support for children and 

young people with emotional health and wellbeing needs to make the best use of the additional 

funding from Central Government of £1M per annum. 

The Children and Families Joint Commissioning Board includes local authority, local health commissioning and 

provider bodies, key partners such as social landlords, education services and voluntary organisations and is 

working to address a number of areas of needs. Priorities for the board are: 

 Child Health, including emotional health and wellbeing, and children and young people who have 

special educational needs and disabilities; 

 Children and young people in care performance group; 

 Primary school age children: behaviour and emotional wellbeing; 

 Education and Skills post 16; 

 Vulnerable adults as Parents; 

 Developing approaches to addressing neglectful parenting. 

 

APPENDIX A

98



HEALTH AND WELLBEING THROUGH THE LIFECOURSE   
 

7 
 

FUTURE PLANS: 

Key priority future plans include: 

 Developing a child and adolescent mental health pathway that better meets need and manages 

demand so that pressures on specialist services are minimised; 

 Continuing a pilot approach where additional CPN capacity is aligned with schools to enable better 

support to be offered to children and young people with emerging emotional and mental health 

difficulties; 

 Working with the Peterborough Safeguarding Children Board to develop a more effective multi-

agency response to neglect, focused particularly on addressing early indications of neglectful 

parenting and offering support to prevent patterns becoming established; 

 We will also renew the Child Poverty Strategy in 2016.  

 

HOW WILL WE MEASURE SUCCESS?  

Key indications of success include: 

 Bringing waiting times for assessment and treatment for specialist CAMH services in line with national 

targets; 

 Reducing childhood obesity and bringing in line with statistical neighbour and then national averages 

[latter is a stretch target]; 

 Continued good performance in relation to young people Not in Education, Employment or Training 

[NEET]; 

 Successful implementation of a multi-agency neglect strategy resulting in increased early intervention 

to prevent such patterns becoming entrenched.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A

99



HEALTH AND WELLBEING THROUGH THE LIFECOURSE   
 

8 
 

2.2      HEALTH BEHAVIOURS AND LIFESTYLES  

Our lifestyles influence the way our health develops over our lifetime. Local research in East Anglia has shown 

that people with four key ‘healthy’ behaviours – not smoking, taking regular exercise, eating 5 fruit and 

vegetables a day and drinking alcohol within recommended limits, stay healthy for longer and live on average 

14 years more than people with none of these behaviours.    

NEEDS IDENTIFIED IN THE JSNA:  

In Peterborough:  

 Smoking rates are similar to the national average – about one in five adults smoke. 

 Two in three adults are overweight or obese. 

 Fewer people than average are physically active. 

 Hospital admissions directly resulting from alcohol consumption are higher than average.   

Key health inequalities 

 Smoking is more common among routine and manual workers - about one in three adults’ smoke. 

 Hospital admissions for alcohol are higher in some parts of the City than others.   

CURRENT JOINT WORK  

The Health and Wellbeing Board is aware of the need to ensure that people in Peterborough can access clear 

information about what a healthy lifestyle means and how to achieve it. Some people will also benefit from 

services, which specialise in helping people to stop smoking, manage their weight, or their alcohol 

consumption. To support local people to have healthy lifestyles the Health and Wellbeing Board is working 

together to: 

 Develop a joint ‘Prevention Strategy’ to ensure that supporting people to improve and maintain their 

own health is a key part of managing demand on local NHS services.  

 Commission a Joint Drug and Alcohol Service through the Clinical Commissioning Group and 

Peterborough City Council, which reaches into the Hospital to work proactively with patients 

identified as requiring support to reduce their intake of alcohol.  

FUTURE PLANS  

 We plan to commission an integrated healthy lifestyle service – with the aim that people can access 

one service for help and support with stopping smoking, healthy eating, physical activity, weight 

management and mental wellbeing.  

 We plan to improve our communication with local residents on health issues and to develop local 

campaigns and access to health information sources, which can be trusted to provide reliable advice 

on healthy lifestyles.  

 We would like to recognise the vital role schools play in supporting the health and wellbeing of 

children and young people through a Healthy Schools Peterborough programme.  

 We would like to reduce the number of local people developing Type 2 Diabetes. 

HOW WILL WE MEASURE SUCCESS?  

We will aim to achieve improvements in the following outcomes:  

 The percentage of adults in Peterborough who smoke. 

 The percentage of children and adults in Peterborough who are overweight or obese. 

 The percentage of adults in Peterborough who are active. 

 The numbers of attendances to sport and physical activities provided by Vivacity 

 The percentage of adults in Peterborough admitted to hospital for alcohol-related conditions.  

 The annual incidence of newly diagnosed Type 2 diabetes.  

 

 

APPENDIX A

100



HEALTH AND WELLBEING THROUGH THE LIFECOURSE   
 

9 
 

 

2.3      LONG TERM CONDITIONS AND PREMATURE MORTALITY – CARDIOVASCULAR DISEASE (CVD)  

Since the early twentieth century there have been great improvements in life expectancy and in medical 

treatments. There are now many people who manage one or more long-term health conditions such as 

diabetes or heart disease as part of their lives. Cardiovascular disease (CVD) describes a range of conditions 

including coronary heart disease and stroke. CVD takes many years to develop, is influenced by a number of 

factors, including lifestyle and health behaviours, and is more common among people living in relative 

deprivation. Having diabetes is associated with an increased risk of CVD. The Health and Wellbeing Board 

prioritised addressing CVD in 2014.   

NEEDS IDENTIFIED IN THE JSNA  

In Peterborough: 

 Premature deaths (age under 75) from CVD and from respiratory disease are higher than the national 

average. 

 Preventable deaths from CVD are higher than average. 

 The percentage of adults with diabetes is higher than the national average. 

KEY HEALTH INEQUALITIES  

 Emergency hospital admissions and premature deaths from coronary heart disease are higher in 

electoral wards in the City which have higher levels of deprivation. 

 Diabetes and coronary heart disease rates are known from national research to be more common in 

South Asian communities.  

CURRENT JOINT WORK  

 The Health and Wellbeing Board commissioned a detailed CVD JSNA for Peterborough, which is now 

completed. https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/healthcare/public-health/JSNA/  

 The local NHS Clinical Commissioning Group ‘Tackling Health Inequalities in Coronary Heart Disease 

Programme Board’ has worked closely with City Council’s public health services to improve uptake of 

CVD ‘health checks’ for 40-74 year olds and to promote smoking cessation services for people at risk 

of heart and respiratory disease.  

FUTURE PLANS  

 The Health and Wellbeing Board has set up a Cardiovascular Steering Group, and this will develop and 

implement a joint strategy to address cardiovascular disease in Peterborough.  

 The potential for a specific programme to work with South Asian communities to address higher rates 

of diabetes and coronary heart disease is being explored.  

 Options are being explored to reduce the risk of stroke within the local population by improved 

identification of atrial fibrillation (an irregular heart rate which can lead to formation of blood clots 

and cause a stroke)  

HOW WILL WE MEASURE OUR SUCCESS?  

We will aim to achieve improvements in the following outcomes: 

 Premature death rates from CVD (under age 75). 

 Inequalities between electoral wards in emergency CVD hospital admissions. 

 The upward trend in the prevalence of diabetes. 

 The rate of hospital admissions for stroke and heart failure.  

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A

101

https://www.peterborough.gov.uk/healthcare/public-health/JSNA/


HEALTH AND WELLBEING THROUGH THE LIFECOURSE   
 

10 
 

2.4  MENTAL HEALTH FOR ADULTS OF WORKING AGE  

Mental ill health is the largest cause of disability in the UK, representing 23% of the burden of illness. People 

with severe mental illness die on average 20 years earlier than the general population. Peterborough has its 

own challenges with mental illness, particularly around prevention and management of mental health crisis 

and support to those with severe mental illness and their carers. 

NEEDS IDENTIFIED IN THE JSNA:  

There is need to reduce mental health crisis, self-harm and suicide. In Peterborough: 

 Hospital admission rates for self-harm are 40% above expected. 

 Suicide rates were consistently higher than England rates until a drop was seen in 2012/14 

 Referral rates to Crisis Resolution Home Treatment services for mental health problems are higher 

than Cambridgeshire.  

 Use of police powers to take a person in mental health crisis to a place of safety (section 136) 

occurred at a much higher rate in Peterborough population than in Cambridgeshire.  

Demand for mental health acute care occurs at a higher rate than all other areas in Cambridgeshire and mental 

health hospital admission rates are also higher.   

Enablement – Data indicates that the proportion of people in Peterborough with severe mental illness who live 

independently or are in employment is consistently below the England rates.  

Data indicate that carers of people with mental health disorders in the Peterborough community have unmet 

needs for services, information and advice. 

CURRENT JOINT WORK 

 The Joint Suicide Prevention Strategy and implementation plan for Cambridgeshire and Peterborough 

is being delivered. This includes the award winning ‘Stop Suicide’ campaign, which raises awareness 

and offers training in suicide prevention and provides resources for self-help.  

 A local ‘Crisis Care Concordat implementation plan aims to prevent mental health crisis in community 

settings and reduce the use of section 136 of the Mental Health Act. A new crisis care telephone 

helpline and a community place of safety are proposed for the coming year. 

 Implementation of the Joint Peterborough Mental Health Commissioning strategy includes redesign 

of the mental health accommodation pathway, increased choice of housing options, a placement 

model of employment support, stronger links between commissioners and clear focus on the right 

support, the first time, at the right place, by the right people.  

FUTURE PLANS 

 Bring together findings from the Peterborough Mental Health JSNA (2015) and refresh the Mental 

Health Commissioning strategy in 2016 to tailor implementation plans to address unmet mental 

health need. 

 A new recovery coach service to support people after discharge from secondary care and during 

transitions by connecting between third sector, local authority and mental health services  

 An enhanced Primary Care Mental Health Service is planned to support people with greater needs 

upon discharge from secondary care. This will operate through community based teams.  

HOW WILL WE MEASURE SUCCESS?  

We aim to achieve improvements in:  

 Hospital admissions for self-harm.  

 Rates of use of section 136 under the mental health act 

 Suicide rate  

 Hospital readmission rates for mental health problems  

 Enablement of those with severe mental illness, with more people in employment and independent 

living  

 

APPENDIX A

102



HEALTH AND WELLBEING THROUGH THE LIFECOURSE   
 

11 
 

2.5 AGEING WELL  

 

Ageing is not just about being older or living for longer - it’s about ensuring that people have quality of life that 

adds value and purpose and through which they can continue to contribute to their families, communities and 

the wider economy as they grow older. Ageing can however bring challenges, such as frailty and dependence 

which need not be an inevitable part of ageing. There is much that individuals can do to maintain their own 

health and wellbeing as they age. Public services, the third sector, the commercial sector and local government 

can ensure Peterborough is a good place to grow older.    

NEEDS IDENTIFIED IN THE JSNA:  

 Numbers of people over the age of 65 within Peterborough are expected to grow substantially over 

the next few years, by about 28% between 2013 and 2023. 

 More people over 65 years have multiple long-term health conditions (LTCs) requiring treatment, and 

about 50% of people with multiple LTCs experience limitation of their day to day activities 

 Rates of hospital admission and need for social care packages of care  increase with age  

 There are currently approximately 1,660 people living with dementia in Peterborough – this is 

projected to rise to 2,660 by 2030. 

KEY HEALTH INEQUALITIES  

 There are a higher proportion of older people aged 65+ in rural areas of Peterborough.  

 In more deprived areas, people develop multiple long-term health conditions at a  younger age 

CURRENT JOINT WORK  

The health and wellbeing challenges facing older people have been prioritised locally across health and care 

systems. In response UnitingCare (an NHS partnership responsible for providing older people's healthcare and 

adult community services across Cambridgeshire and Peterborough) are working together with local NHS 

commissioners, local Councils and voluntary organisations to enable people to age well and to live the life they 

want to lead by: 

 Providing high-quality, responsive care and support 

 Integrated working across health, social care and third sector services in Peterborough to ensure that 

care is joined-up around the needs of individuals within local communities, and avoidable admissions 

to hospital and care can be prevented.  

FUTURE PLANS  

 The Health and Wellbeing Board has commissioned an “Older People: Primary Prevention of ill 

health” JSNA for Peterborough  which is due for completion in July 2016 

 Developing a joint  “Healthy Ageing and Prevention Agenda” to ensure that preventative action is 

integrated and responsive to best support people to age well, live independently and contribute to 

their communities for as long as possible 

 To understand the challenges faced by local older populations, a specific programme of work in 

collaboration with older residents, will explore the main health and care issues faced by this group to 

inform  future commissioning of services across the system and how stronger communities can 

empower people to self manage with minimal support.   

HOW WILL WE MEASURE SUCCESS?  

We will aim to achieve improvements in the following outcomes:  

 Increased access and uptake of preventative services to promote and ensure ageing well 

 Reduced rates of admissions to hospital and social care due to conditions that could have been 

managed in the community. 

 Customer survey to establish if Older people  feel safer and supported in their communities 

 UnitingCare Outcomes Framework – covering several key priority areas for older people in relation to 

their NHS care, and the Social Care outcomes framework .

APPENDIX A

103



HEALTH AND WELLBEING THROUGH THE LIFECOURSE   
 

12 
 

2.6  PROTECTING HEALTH – COMMUNICABLE DISEASES  

NEEDS IDENTIFIED THROUGH THE ANNUAL HEALTH PROTECTION REPORT 

 Rates of Tuberculosis (TB) in Peterborough are well above the national average – there are  

implications from the new national strategy and the opportunity to offer screening for latent TB 

infection to new migrants from high prevalence communities 

 There is relatively poor uptake of adult bowel and cervical cancer screening programmes 

 There is  relatively poor uptake of childhood immunisation programmes, particularly in the inner city 

and areas of higher socio-economic deprivation 

 Chlamydia screening is focussed on young people aged 15 – 24, with a high diagnosis rate in 

Peterborough despite low screening uptake suggesting that some young people who are infected 

may be missing out on screening 

 There is reported late diagnosis of HIV for some men leading to poorer outcomes.  

  

KEY HEALTH INEQUALITIES 

 TB is recognised as being associated with deprivation and overcrowding 

 There is some evidence that screening uptake is lower among some more deprived and marginalised 

populations and some new migrant groups 

 The picture around immunisation uptake is complex but there is evidence that certain populations 

have difficulty accessing services for immunisation 

CURRENT JOINT WORK 

 Cambridgeshire & Peterborough CCG has convened a joint TB commissioning group, to develop plan 

to commission accessible and responsive services.  The first task has been to develop a plan for 

implementation of Latent TB Infection (LTBI) screening in line with the national TB strategy and a bid 

for funding has been submitted to PHE.   

 The Health Protection Steering Group, which involves the City Council, local NHS and Public Health 

England, has oversight of immunisation and screening uptake. Task & Finish Groups to look to at 

uptake issues for both have reported and implementation groups are due to take forward their 

recommendations. 

 A multi-agency sexual health strategy group is due to commence work shortly, convened by 

Peterborough City Council 

FUTURE PLANS 

 Develop a TB Commissioning plan for Cambridgeshire & Peterborough 

 Develop a joint strategy to address poor uptake of screening  

 Develop a joint strategy to address poor uptake of immunisation 

 Develop a Peterborough Joint Sexual Health Strategy 

HOW WILL WE MEASURE SUCCESS? 

 

We aim to achieve improvements in: 

 

 Percentage of eligible people screened for latent TB infection  

 Percentage of eligible newborn babies given BCG vaccination (aim 90%+) 

 Increase in rate of completion of TB treatment  

 Evidence of increasing uptake of screening and immunisation 

 Reduction in late diagnosis of HIV  

 Increased uptake of chlamydia screening  

APPENDIX A

104



CREATING A HEALTHY ENVIRONMENT  
 

13 
 

3.1 GROWTH, HEALTH AND THE LOCAL PLAN  
 
The Planning System for the built environment affects health in many ways -  through securing good housing 
construction, transport infrastructure, improving air quality and noisy environments, remediating 
contaminated land, providing open space and play space, enhancing biodiversity, providing opportunities for 
local food growing, reducing flood risk, provision of local employment and many more.  The adopted Core 
Strategy for Peterborough sets the requirement for an additional 25,500 new homes and 20,000 new jobs by 
2026. The new Local Plan will extent the plan period to 2036.  
 
There is a clear correlation between health and where we live. A number of published studies have provided 
evidence that our local environments can have a positive effect on individual health and wellbeing. On the 
other hand, many aspects of the built environment can deter people from being physically active, which is 
important for health. Consideration of ‘social infrastructure’, encouraging communities in new housing 
developments to develop supportive social networks, has a positive impact on wellbeing.     
  
NEEDS IDENTIFIED IN THE JSNA:  

In Peterborough: 

 The percentage of physical active adults is not significantly different to the England average 

 The Peterborough Open Space Study Update Final Report (October 2011) indicates which areas of 
Peterborough are better or less well served in terms of open space. 
 

KEY HEALTH INEQUALITIES  

 Lack of access to open and green spaces can be bad for people’s physical and mental health. Residents in 
areas of deprivation which have access to green space have lower rates of premature death than residents 
of deprived areas with less access to green space.  The Peterborough Open Space Study Update Final 
Report (October 2011) indicates which areas of Peterborough are better or less well served in terms of 
open space. 

 
CURRENT JOINT WORK 

 The Environment Capital Action Plan (dates of plan) describes the following actions: 
o Secure funding to increase the number of Green Flag awards to 6.  
o Nene Park Trust will continually raise the quality of its facilities and improve the participation and 

engagement of visitors. 
o Seek funding to carry out a feasibility study into local, sustainable food production. 
o Achieve Fairtrade city status. 
o Develop planning guidance to support local food. 

 
FUTURE PLANS 

 The health of residents will be specifically considered in development of the new Local Plan. 

  Public Health outcomes and/or objectives will be added to the Plan  

HOW WILL WE MEASURE SUCCESS?  

 

We aim to achieve improvements in the following outcomes: 

The Local Plan potentially affects a wide range of health outcomes. Some outcomes likely to be influenced by 
the built environment and land use planning are: 

 The percentage of physically active and inactive adults  

 Excess weight in 4-5 and 10-11 year olds, and Adults 

 The percentage of the population exposed to road, rail and air transport noise of 65dB(A) or more, during 
the daytime 

 Utilisation of outdoor space for exercise/health reasons 

 

APPENDIX A

105



CREATING A HEALTHY ENVIRONMENT  
 

14 
 

3.2 HEALTH AND TRANSPORT PLANNING  

Transport is a complex system affected by infrastructure, individual characteristics and behaviours and can 

have a broad impact on health.  Components that could be linked to health outcomes include issues such as air 

and noise pollution, road design, impact on physical activity, road injuries and deaths, and access to health 

services.  This illustrates the diverse nature of the policy areas that are related to transport and may have a 

direct or indirect impact on health.  Travel offers an important opportunity to help people become more 

physically active. Motor vehicle traffic accidents are a major cause of preventable deaths and morbidity, 

particularly in younger age groups. 

NEEDS IDENTIFIED IN THE JSNA:  

In Peterborough: 

 The number of children killed or seriously injured in road traffic accidents is not significantly different to 
the England Average. 

 The number of adults killed or seriously injured on road is not significantly different to the England 
Average. 

 Travel offers an important opportunity to help people become more physically active. However, inactive 

modes of transport have increasingly dominated in recent years. 

 Approximately 37% deaths from Coronary Heart Disease are related to physical inactivity. 

KEY HEALTH INEQUALITIES  

 The effects of road traffic disproportionately impact on socially excluded areas and individuals through 
pedestrian accidents, air pollution, noise and the effect on local communities of busy roads cutting 
through residential areas.  

 Areas with higher levels of deprivation tend to have lower levels of general physical activity 
Cycling proficiency is also linked to where people live, with those in more deprived neighbourhoods less likely 

to report being able to cycle. 

CURRENT JOINT WORK 

The City Council’s Travelchoice initiative encourages people to walk, cycle, use public transport, car share as 

well as the uptake of low emission vehicles. 

 Increasing the number of pupils receiving Bikeability training from 951 to 1300 annually. 

 The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Road Safety Partnership (CPRSP) works with a number of 
organisations to look at the causes of road accidents, understand current data and intelligence regarding 
the county’s roads and develop multi-agency’s solutions to help prevent future accidents and reduce 
collisions.   

 Addenbrooke’s Regional Trauma Network is a key partner in the CPRSP, and through various data sources 
allow the serious accident data to be broken down into more detail to gain a clear understanding of the 
impact of severe collisions to the NHS and longer term social care and other partners. 
 

FUTURE PLANS 
 

 The Fourth Local Transport Plan (2016-2020) will contain a strong emphasis on the role transport can play 
in health of Peterborough residents 

 Collect further JSNA information on transport for Peterborough, using locally developed methodologies. . 
 
HOW WILL WE MEASURE SUCCESS?  
 
We aim to achieve improvements in the following outcomes 

 The numbers of adults and children killed or seriously injured in road traffic accidents. 

 The number of businesses with travel plans 

 % of adults who meet the CMO guidelines on physical active (active people survey) 

 To further develop a robust monitoring network to enable in depth transport modal data to be collected. 

 Measures of air quality  

APPENDIX A

106



CREATING A HEALTHY ENVIRONMENT  
 

15 
 

3.3 HOUSING AND HEALTH   

The National Housing Federation states that poor housing conditions increase the risk of severe ill-health or 
disability by up to 25% during childhood and early adulthood.  Housing conditions that adversely affect health, 
include; indoor dampness; pollutants associated with respiratory problems; features that lead to physical 
injury. Household overcrowding is associated with an increased risk in the spread of infection, and Indoor cold 
is associated with excess winter deaths and cardiovascular problems. The combination of factors associated 
with poor housing and economic stresses has been identified as having an adverse effect on mental health.   
 
Homelessness is associated with adverse health, education and social outcomes, particularly for children. 
Statutory homeless households contain some of the most vulnerable and needy members of our communities. 
The Welfare Reform Act 2012 introduced a range of benefit changes which are likely to result in a loss of 
income for some claimants and could result in an increase in homelessness if people are unable to meet their 
housing costs. There are also national requirements to reduce social rented housing,   
 
NEEDS IDENTIFIED IN THE JSNA AND KEY HEALTH INEQUALITIES:  

In Peterborough: 

 The rate of family homelessness is worse than the England average.  

 The 3 year rate of excess winter deaths (which may be related to winter infections, cold homes, and 
becoming cold outside the home) remained similar to the England average in Peterborough in 2010 -2013. 

 It is estimated that poor housing conditions are responsible for over 651 harmful events requiring 
medical treatment every year. The estimated cost to the NHS of treating these is £2.2M annually.  

 
CURRENT JOINT WORK: 
  

 Housing Related Support (formerly Supporting People) funds support to a variety of providers and settings 
to ensure their clients are supported into move on accommodation, can maintain tenancies, and therefore 
prevent them from becoming homeless. 

 The Peterborough Older Persons Accommodation Strategy identified that over 90% of people wished to 
remain at home and be supported to do so through the provision of aids and adaptations, and a demand 
for Extra Care Accommodation. To date, 262 additional units of Extra Care accommodation have been 
provided in partnership with Registered Providers.  A further scheme of 54 dwellings is under 
construction. 

 Care and Repair provides a handyperson (HP) scheme to help aged and vulnerable people with small scale 
works. The minor aids and adaptations installations and the HP assist hospital discharge and enable health 
services to be delivered in people’s homes. The Agency provides advice and has a network of contacts for 
onward referral and works  with other voluntary sector groups on winter warmth initiatives.  

 
FUTURE PLANS 

 Peterborough City Council is working in partnership with Registered Providers to provide new supported 
housing schemes including accommodation for people with learning disabilities and mental health 
disorder to enable them to live independently with a live in carer where necessary or floating support. 

 The Peterborough Market Position Statement has identified a significant shortfall of nursing and 
residential care accommodation and it will be a priority to increase this provision for the aging population. 

 A task and finish group including Housing managers and Hospital managers is reviewing complex cases 

causing hospital discharge delays, and how use of disabled facility grants could address this.  

 There is currently (winter 2015) a public consultation on introducing selective licensing in 5 areas of the 

city covering 6205 privately rented properties. This would help raise the standard of private rented 

accommodation and therefore improve the health and well- being of those residents. 

HOW WILL WE MEASURE SUCCESS?  

 Decrease in the ratio of excess winter deaths to average non-winter deaths 

 Reduction in unintentional injuries in the home in the under 15 year olds 

 Reduction in delayed discharge related to housing issues. 

APPENDIX A

107



TACKLING HEALTH INEQUALITIES  
 

16 
 

4.1 GEOGRAPHICAL HEALTH INEQUALITIES  

NEEDS IDENTIFIED IN THE JSNA:   

 This link between more adverse socio-economic circumstances (deprivation) and poorer health is well 

known.   

 The five most deprived electoral wards in Peterborough are Dogsthorpe, North, Paston, Central and 

Ravensthorpe. Within these wards, deaths rates from all causes under the age of 75 and rates of 

admission to hospital are significantly high.  

 Other parts of Peterborough also have residents living in difficult socio-economic circumstances – for 

example Bretton North, Orton Longueville and Park wards are not included in the five ‘most deprived’ but 

have a higher percentage of children in poverty, lower achievement at GCSE and a higher percentage of 

the working age population claiming out of work benefit than the Peterborough average.   

CURRENT JOINT WORK 

 The City Council has a focus on economic development and regeneration in the City, together with 

improving educational attainment. In the long term these measures should improve both socio-

economic circumstances and health. 

 City Council commissioned Children’s Centres work closely with health visitors, and are located to 

ensure focus on the areas of the City with the highest levels of need.  

 The City Council has identified the ‘Can Do’ Area around Lincoln Road, which includes parts of Central 

Ward, Park ward and North ward. The ‘Can Do’ Board focusses on supporting environmental and 

service improvements for the area and includes senior staff from the City Council.  

FUTURE PLANS 

 The NHS Clinical Commissioning Group has a statutory duty to reduce health inequalities and to carry 

out health inequalities impact assessments of any significant services changes.  

 City Council proposals for selective licensing of private sector housing in parts of the City (outlined in 

the previous section)  could impact on geographical health inequalities in the longer term.  

 There is potential to target preventive public health initiatives and services so that they focus more on 

areas of the City with the greatest health and wellbeing needs.   

HOW WILL WE MEASURE SUCCESS?  

We aim to achieve improvements in the following outcomes: 

- Increase in levels of education and economic attainment in electoral wards with highest levels of 

deprivation. 

- Increase in life expectancy in wards with highest levels of deprivation. 

- Reduction in emergency hospital admissions from wards with the highest levels of deprivation.  

- Smoking cessation rates in wards with highest levels of deprivation  

- Health checks completion in wards with highest levels of deprivation  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A

108



TACKLING HEALTH INEQUALITIES  
 

17 
 

4.2 HEALTH AND WELLBEING OF DIVERSE COMMUNITIES  

NEEDS IDENTIFIED IN THE JSNA:  

DIVERSE COMMUNITIES  

 Peterborough has an ethnically diverse population; 70.9% of residents self-identified as White 

English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern Irish/British compared to 86.0% in England as a whole. A higher 

proportion of our population than average are of South Asian and Eastern European descent. 

 Black & Ethnic Minority populations are highest in the Central ward (58.2%), Park (35.8%) and 

Ravensthorpe (30.8%).  

  World Health Organization research concludes that  

o the risk of cardiovascular disease and type 2 diabetes is higher in South Asian population groups 

o alcohol consumption is rising in many Eastern European countries, contributing to a significant 

decline in life expectancy among men of Eastern European descent 

o rates of tuberculosis are also known to be higher in some African, South Asian and  Eastern 

European countries than in England.  

CURRENT JOINT WORK 

 The Health and Wellbeing Board has commissioned a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) on the 

health and wellbeing needs of Eastern European migrants.  

 Eastern European ‘community connectors’ employed by the City Council are working closely with the 

local NHS on issues such as promotion of screening and immunisations  

FUTURE PLANS 

 The benefits of tailored preventive programmes, working with South Asian communities to prevent 

diabetes and cardiovascular disease, are increasingly recognised nationally. The CCG and City Council 

will work together to assess the feasibility of local schemes.  

HOW WILL WE MEASURE SUCCESS?  

Measuring success is more challenging for health and wellbeing issues in diverse communities, as 

recording of ethnicity by health services is not always complete. This makes it hard to rely on routinely 

collected data. Population mobility and change can also make measuring progress more challenging.    

 Work with local health services to improve data collection on ethnicity, both generally and to assess 

the success of targetted interventions.  

 Outcome measures for health and wellbeing of Eastern European migrants will be developed 

following completion of the JSNA.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A

109



TACKLING HEALTH INEQUALITIES  
 

18 
 

4.3 HEALTH AND WELLBEING OF PEOPLE WITH DISABILITY AND/OR SENSORY IMPAIRMENT 

NEEDS IDENTIFIED IN THE JSNA:  

The population of Adults in Peterborough living with a learning disability is forecast to rise by 10% between 

2014 and 2030 from 2865 people to 3152 (source Department of Health Information Centre). In particular:   

- Growth in in number of residents with severe Learning Disabilities is from 174 to 193 (11%) 

- Growth in number of residents with autistic spectrum disorders  is from 1179 to 1320 = 12% 

The number of people with moderate or serious physical disabilities is forecast to rise by 14% between 2014 

and 2030 from 11,208 to 12,743 

In particular 

- Forecast growth in those requiring assistance with personal care is from 5155 to 5904 (15%)  

- Forecast growth in residents with serious visual impairment is from 76 to 84 (11%)  

- Forecast growth in residents with moderate to profound hearing impairment is from 4178 to 4895 

(17%)  

CURRENT JOINT WORK AND FUTURE PLANS:  

The Council and Clinical Commissioning Group have agreed a strategy for supporting older people and adults 

with long term conditions within the Better Care Fund plan, working together to support  people with 

disabilities through the following five key workstreams: 

 Data Sharing – enabling effective sharing of care and support information between health and 
social care professionals with access controlled by the person with disabilities. 

 7 Day Working – expansion of health and social care service provision to be accessible and 
responsive at evenings and weekends. 

 Person Centred System – multi-disciplinary teams linked to the communities in which people live. 

 Information, Communication and Advice- enhanced information and advice to support people to 
access the support they might need. 

 Ageing Healthily and Prevention – help for all to stay healthy and self-manage long term 
conditions wherever possible. 

 
HOW WILL WE MEASURE SUCCESS?  

We aim to achieve improvements in the following outcomes: 

National measures: Adult social care outcomes framework (ASCOF)   

- Percentage of adults known to ASC in employment  - to increase 

- ASCOF Percentage of adults known to ASC in settled accommodation – to increase 

- ASCOF permanent residential admissions of adults to residential care – to decrease 

Local measures  

- Numbers of adults in receipt of assistive technology 

- ASC Service user survey quality of life measure – improvement for clients aged under 65 with both 

learning disability and physical disability   

- Numbers of adults with disabilities receiving short term services to increase independence.  

- Number of adults with disabilities receiving information advice and guidance  

APPENDIX A

110



WORKING TOGETHER EFFECTIVELY  
 

19 
 

5.1 PARTNERSHIP BOARDS  

The Peterborough Health and Well Being Board is supported by a number of Boards and Groups that are key to 

delivering the outcomes of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 

The Boards are as follows: 

 Housing Partnership 

 Children and Families Joint Commissioning board 

 Adult Joint Commissioning Board 

 Mental Health Board 

 Borderline and Peterborough Executive Partnership Board 

 Public Health Board 
 

These Boards define outcomes for delivery by focussed Task Groups, and these outcomes are core to delivery 

of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  

To avoid duplication and give opportunities to join up work when appropriate, the Health and Wellbeing Board 

agreed to the development of a Health and Wellbeing Partnership Delivery Board. This comprises the Chairs of 

all the above Boards and the joint chair of the City’s Skills Board. It’s role is to take an overview of the work 

going on and ensure it is co-ordinated.   This Programme Board also has strong links with the Safer 

Peterborough Partnership Board and Adult and Children Safeguarding Boards. 

5.2 COMMISSIONING PRINCIPLES  
 
Commissioning is about supporting the development of a thriving, strong and diverse social and health care 
market that is flexible and responsive to everyone in Peterborough, not just those eligible for direct Council 
or Health support - We want to stimulate the development of new services, and promote competition so 
people have a varied care and support market to purchase from. To achieve this, we will work to ensure we 
commission services that are: 
 

1. Affordable and sustainable; 
2. Evidence based; 
3. Locally shaped; 
4. Improving quality and the patient experience; 
5. Addresses Health Inequalities 
6. Appropriate in scale; and 
7. Reflects the user’s voice. 

 

The City Council have developed a set of design principles when commissioning services, shown in appendix A. 

The NHS is a national tax-funded organisation – so some of the principles around commercialism and revenue 

generation are less relevant to local NHS organisations – but many aspects of good commissioning practice are 

shared.  

KEY PROGRAMMES  

The following pages describe two key programmes to meet the future needs of growing populations, within a 

available resources: 

 The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough ‘Health System Transformation Programmes  

 The Peterborough City Council Customer Experience Programme  
 

 

APPENDIX A

111



WORKING TOGETHER EFFECTIVELY  
 

20 
 

5.3  CAMBRIDGESHIRE AND PETERBOROUGH HEALTH SYSTEM TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME   

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), which plans, organises and buys most 

NHS-funded healthcare, and the providers of local hospital and community healthcare are working together 

for the benefit of the whole local NHS healthcare system.  They have joined together under the System 

Transformation Programme to look at shaping a sustainable health system fit for the future.  Peterborough 

City Council and Cambridgeshire County Council are also part of the programme, as are local Healthwatch 

organisations. The work of the programme also fits in with NHS England’s recently published (October 2014) 

Five Year Forward View.  The Five Year Forward View recognises that the world has changed and health 

services need to evolve to meet the challenges NHS health services face. 

SYSTEM STRATEGIC AIMS AND GOALS 

The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough health system has agreed to a set of strategic aims for the next five 

years.  These strategic aims are set out in the diagram below which shows how the strategic aims relate, with 

people at the centre of all we do.  

 

The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough System Transformation Programme is looking at all hospital-based, GP 

and community healthcare services in Cambridgeshire and Peterborough.  It is particularly focussing on the 

following areas of care: 

• Children’s and maternity services 
• Mental health services 
• Care delivered through GP surgeries 
• Planned care (both in hospital and in the community) 
• Emergency and urgent care. 

It’s also taking into account the improvements expected to take place in older people’s (over 65s) healthcare 

under the innovative Integrated Older People’s and Adult Community Services contract. Prevention is key to 

the programme with everyone having a role in helping to reduce demand on our health services.   

If we do not plan to change our health system, we are likely to see: 
• funding shortfalls, possibly leading to unplanned service changes over which we have little control 
• decreased quality of care and poorer health outcomes for people 
• a continued rise in the need for health care 
• some General Practices going out of business 
• hospitals continuing to experience a rise in emergency admissions 
• hospitals finding it harder to undertake planned work (such as scheduled operations) 
• a decrease in quality and access performance standards in hospitals, and an increase in financial deficits 
• an increase in pressure on all parts of the health system and an already stretched workforce. 

The Health System Transformation Programme has taken a wide range of opportunities to engage with the 
wider public and feedback will inform and be reflected within the development of ideas for change across the 
system 

Empowering 
people to stay 

healthy

Developing a 
sustainable health 

and social care 
system

Improving quality, 
improving 
outcomes

People at the 
centre of all that 

we do 

 

APPENDIX A

112



WORKING TOGETHER EFFECTIVELY  
 

21 
 

5.4 PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE PROGRAMME  

The Customer Experience programme will develop and improve the ways in which customers access or are 

provided with public services, ensuring those that need help the most are able to reach the most appropriate 

services quickly and first time. This approach will enable services to meet the needs of those affected by 

health, social and economic inequalities across Peterborough, and will build resilience and capacity in 

communities to sustain improvements. The programme targets a reduction in costs, an increase in revenue 

and the management of current and future demand.  The programme is divided into seven themes: 

i. Front Door – redefining the method of accessing and contacting the council, ensuring those that can 
will be able help themselves and those with more complex needs reach the right services quickly   

ii. Investment in Communities – ensuring we invest appropriately in community, voluntary or faith 
services and capacity as an alternative to public sector services 

iii. Operating Models – designing new service delivery arrangements between council services and with 
partners 

iv. New Ways of Working – enabling staff to work flexibly and in an agile way, making full use of digital 
technologies 

v. Revenue – strengthening the council’s commercially-minded approach, Increasing the amount of 
profitable revenue 

vi. Building Optimisation – making the best use of public buildings and office space 
vii. Digital Technology – investing in new technologies to improve ways of working and to enhance the 

offer to customers 

The council wants its customers to: 

 Ask once – we will only ask the customer for any information needed once 

 Be self-directed – we will maximise any opportunity for the customer to self-serve 

 Be in control – we will ensure services are customer-led and take account of the customer’s views 

 Be protected – we will identify and act upon any safeguarding concerns 

 Be confident the information we hold about them is consistent across the organisation 

 Be able to make full use of universal information and provision as the norm through interactive use of 
technology, blended with ‘expert’ assistance 

 Have their queries resolved at the first point of contact wherever possible 

 Be able to access council services or information in the most appropriate settings – there will be no 
wrong front door. 

If we get these things right then it will be better for customers as they will receive a better and more accessible 

service, whilst at the same time enabling us to manage demand more effectively and sustainably.  

CURRENT JOINT WORK 

The Customer Experience programme is enabling a sharp focus on developing greater integration between the 

council and health partners. For example: 

 the Operating Models theme is scoping an integrated health and social care operational delivery 
model which could see social workers co-located with health professionals 

 the Operating Models theme is developing a new delivery model to bring together reablement and 
preventative health and social care services into a trading vehicle 

 the Front Door theme is exploring a single, integrated front door model for council and health 
services 

 the Investment in Communities theme is determining what health and social care preventative 
projects could be commissioned to help manage demand 

 the Digital Technology strand is piloting new assistive technologies that could help reduce demand on 
the health and social care system 
 

FUTURE PLANS 

The Customer Experience programme is still at the early stages of delivery, but has well established principles 

including the desire to deliver integration across health and social care services wherever possible and 

appropriate. We will ensure that health colleagues across the system are fully engaged in the programme. 

APPENDIX A

113



WORKING TOGETHER EFFECTIVELY  
 

22 
 

5.5 A VISION FOR HEALTH AND WELLBEING IN 2016/19  

The context for the 2016/19 Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy is:  

• Significant budget reductions 

• Growing population and demand for services 

 

To meet these challenges, Health, Local Authority and other partners in the Health and Wellbeing Board will 

work in a new way - focusing on outcomes not organisations. We will get done what needs to be done by who 

is best to do it, and use evidence based sources and best practice to ensure what we deliver has the best 

chance of success.  Success is now seen as collective. 

PLACING PEOPLE AT THE HEART OF A SYSTEM WHICH MAKES SENSE TO THEM  

The Health and Wellbeing Board will achieve its aims by: 

A focus on prevention 

- making Peterborough a healthy environment in which to live 
- supporting people and communities to maintain their own health and independence.  

 

Driving delivery of: 

 The right services  

 To the right people, families and communities  

 By the right people 

 At the right time 

 In the right place  

 At the right cost  
 

Monitoring outcomes which matter to local residents, families and communities  

APPENDIX A

114



APPENDIX A  

23 
 

7. PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL COMMISSIONING DESIGN PRINCIPLES  

 

 

 Ground-up approach based on lean principles 
– Non value add - Stop 
– Non value add but necessary - Automate 
– Value add -  

 Internal self-serve  
 Reducing supply chain 

– Reduced number of transactions / cost of transactions  
 All resources will be organised around the Target Operating Model principles:- and Operational Plan  

– Self-serve/ Self Management  wherever possible 
– most experienced staff at front door  
– in integrated teams 

 

 

  Leadership – promoting, facilitating & place shaping 
 Forecasting demand and need; Facilitating and coordinating solutions 
 Regulator / Quality Assurer / Safeguarding 
 Information provider and empowering local people  
  

  
 Only providing services that are a statutory obligation or 
 Where they evidently support statutory objectives or 
 Generates profitable revenue where appropriate and lawful 

 

 
 Profitable revenue creation is a priority  
 Retained ‘business units’ must be commercially viable 

 

 

 Prioritise the commissioning of services and solutions that will prevent or delay escalating support 
and service needs. 

 Solve Customer problems as early in the journey as possible 
 Build Community and Market Capability 

– To develop and extend the Community and Market capability, involvement 
and offer 

 Target commissioning  
– Evidence based & Outcomes focused 
– Using best means of delivering outcomes  
– mixed economy of providers (public, vehicles, private and 3rd Sector) 

 

  Commissioners will use Joint Funding mechanisms to procure services when appropriate and reduce 
transaction costs? 

 

 
 Limit single organisation only occupancy and base on maximum occupancy Agile / mobile working the 

norm 

 

 

 Commissioning activity will take account of and be sensitive to the national and local political context. 
Engagement with elected members will be carried out throughout the commissioning process 

Efficient and effective 

Role of the  Commissioner 

Statutory objectives 

Commercially viability 

Demand management 

Collaborate or partner whenever financially viable 

All infrastructure will be shared with partners 

Political 

APPENDIX A

115



This page is intentionally left blank

116



HEALTH NEEDS ANALYSIS  

Appendix B - JOINT HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY 2016/19 

                  PETERBOROUGH HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

Peterborough has a lower average life expectancy and 
‘healthy life expectancy’ than England. On average in 
Peterborough a man can expect to live in good health 
to the age of 61 years with a total lifespan of 78 years. 
A woman can expect to live in good health to the age of 
59 with a total lifespan of  83 years.  

A few other key facts 

Of 150 local authorities in England, Peterborough is 
ranked:

Peterborough JSNA findings on a Page

Peterborough is the UK’s second-
fastest growing city with a 
relatively young, ethnically 

diverse population. 

71% of our residents are 
White British and 29% are 

from an ethnic minority 
group.

There are significant inequalities in health and life 
expectancy between different areas of the 
Peterborough, which are clearly linked to 

economic deprivation.  This is shown on the map 
above, in which darker green areas = higher life 

expectancy and red dots = areas of high 
deprivation.

Peterborough has a higher 
proportion of residents living in 
deprivation than England, with 

more local areas in the most 
deprived fifth nationally, and 
fewer in the least deprived 
fifth.  Levels of deprivation 

highest in Dogsthorpe (28%), 
North (27%) and Central (26%) 

wards. 

One in four 4-5 year olds 
are overweight or obese, 
and seven in ten adults

Our rate of under 18 
pregnancy is 38% higher 

than England.

106th for premature mortality (death 
rate under age 75)  from heart disease 
and stroke

98th for premature mortality from lung 
disease

94th for premature mortality from 
cancer

APPENDIX B

117

A
genda A

nnex



 

JOINT HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY 2016/19 

PETERBOROUGH HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD 

 

1.2 FORECASTING FUTURE NEEDS FOR HEALTH AND CARE IN PETERBOROUGH  

 

 

 

MATERNITY SERVICES  
 

There were 3,200 births to women living in Peterborough in 2013. This is forecast to rise to 3,440 in 2023.  

 
PRIMARY CARE  
 
There are 29 GP practices in Peterborough and Borderline Local NHS Commissioning Groups (LCGs), which cover 
the Peterborough City Council area and also some neighbouring GP practices in Cambridgeshire and 
Northamptonshire. Together these serve a registered population of 257,000 people.  

GP practice list size (the number of patients registered with one GP practice) varies from 2,000 to 25,800, with 
an average list size of 8,900. If practice populations increase in line with expected population growth, average 
list size will rise to 10,600 in 2023 (an increase of 19%).  

 

HOSPITAL (SECONDARY) CARE  
 
Annual hospital care attendances and admissions for people registered in this area is shown in the table below. 
Most but not all of these attendances and admissions are at Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals Foundation 
Trust (PSHFT). Demand for hospital services is forecast to rise by about 20% over the next five years, partly 
through population change and rising obesity. Hospital services used more by older people show the greatest 
increase, in line with the rapid rise in the older population.  
 
FORECAST INCREASES IN HOSPITAL USE BY PETERBOROUGH AND BORDERLINE PATIENTS 2013/14-2018/19   

 
 A&E 

attendances 
Outpatients Elective 

Admissions 
Non-elective 
Admissions 

Procedures  

2013/14 57,774 307,347 28,558 22,982 33,757 

2018/19 68,480 361,750 34,090 27,540 40,500 

% Change 18.5% 17.7% 19.4% 19.8% 20.0% 

 
  

 
The total resident population of 
Peterborough was 189,300 in 2013 and 
is forecast to rise by 19% to 2023, to a 
total of 224,800.  

•The population aged 65+ is forecast to 
rise by 28% by 2023. The number of 
people aged 90+ will almost double in 
this time.  

•The number of children and young 
people aged 0-18 is forecast to rise by 
23% to 2023.  

 

APPENDIX B

118



 
2.1 CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE’S HEALTH  
 

Peterborough is a fast growing and increasingly diverse city, with above average levels of deprivation and 

immigration. Priority areas for young people’s health include: 

 Ensuring that newly arrived families know how to access prevention and early help services; 

 High rates of teenage conceptions in the City;  

 High numbers of children aged 4-5 who are obese; 

 High levels of tooth decay; 

 High levels of hospital admissions among 10-24 year olds for self-harm. 

Addressing the issues 

Current joint work in this area includes moving responsibility for health visitors to the local authority, and further  

development of a healthy child programme to identify and work with  families that need support. 

Important future plans include improving the mental health pathway for children and young people, closer 

alignment of Community Psychiatric Nurses with schools, and improving how various agencies respond to and 

prevent neglect, which is an underlying factor in many of the priority areas. 

 

2.2      HEALTH BEHAVIOURS AND LIFESTYLES  

Local research in East Anglia has shown that people with four key ‘healthy’ behaviours – not smoking, taking 

regular exercise, eating five fruit and vegetables a day and moderating alcohol intake – stay  healthy for longer 

and live on average 14 years longer than people with none of these behaviours.   In Peterborough, the needs to 

be addressed are:  

 One in five adults smoke, and this is higher for manual workers; 

 Two in three adults are overweight or obese; 

 Fewer people than average are physically active; 

 Hospital admissions directly resulting from alcohol consumption are higher than average.   

Addressing the issues 

People in Peterborough need to be able to access clear information about how to live a healthy lifestyle. Some 

will also benefit from services to stop smoking, manage their weight or their alcohol consumption.  

A joint prevention strategy will help reduce demand on local NHS services. A drug and alcohol service will work 

proactively with people that need support to reduce their intake of alcohol. Future plans include improving 

communication with residents on health issues, including a Healthy Schools programme and provision of an 

integrated healthy lifestyle service 

 

 

2.3      LONG TERM CONDITIONS AND PREMATURE MORTALITY – CARDIOVASCULAR DISEASE (CVD)  

Cardiovascular disease (CVD) describes a range of conditions including coronary heart disease and stroke. CVD 

takes years to develop and is influenced by factors including lifestyle and health behaviours. It is more common 

among people living in deprivation. In Peterborough the needs to be addressed are:  

 Premature deaths (age under 75) from CVD and from respiratory disease are higher than average. 

 Preventable deaths from CVD are higher than average. 

 Emergency hospital admissions and premature deaths heart disease are higher in deprived areas. 

 Diabetes and coronary heart disease are more common in South Asian communities.  

Addressing the issues 

Current work includes CVD ‘health checks’ for 40-74 year olds and support for people at risk of heart and 

respiratory disease to stop smoking. Future plans include a joint strategy to address CVD in Peterborough and a 

potential programme to work with South Asian communities.  Options are being explored to reduce the risk of 

stroke within the local population by improved identification of irregular heart rate.  

APPENDIX B

119



 
 

 

2.4 MENTAL HEALTH FOR ADULTS OF WORKING AGE 

Mental ill health is the largest cause of disability in the UK, representing 23% of illness. People with severe mental 

illness die on average 20 years earlier than the general population. In Peterborough the needs to be addressed 

are:  

 Hospital admission rates for self-harm are 40% above average; 

 Suicide rates were consistently higher than England rates until a drop was seen in 2012/14; 

 Referral to Crisis Resolution Home Treatment services for mental health is higher than Cambridgeshire;  

 Police taking people in mental health crisis to a place of safety was higher than Cambridgeshire; 

 The proportion of people with severe mental illness who live independently is below England rates.  

 

Addressing the issues 

A suicide prevention strategy is being delivered, which includes the award-winning ‘Stop Suicide’ campaign. A 

redesign of the mental health accommodation pathway involves increased choice of housing options, 

employment initiatives, and clear focus on the right support.  Future plans include development of services to 

support people experiencing a mental health crisis, and new services assisting people after discharge from 

mental healthcare.  

2.5 AGEING WELL  

 

Ageing well is not just about living for longer; it’s about ensuring people have a good quality of life. There is 

much that individuals can do to maintain their own health and wellbeing as they age. Public services, charity and 

the business sector can ensure Peterborough is a good place to grow older.    

In Peterborough the needs to be addressed are:  

 The number of people aged 65+ will grow by about 28% between 2013 and 2023; 

 More people over 65 have long-term health conditions requiring treatment, and about 50% of people 

with multiple conditions are limited in their day-to-day activities; 

 Rates of hospital admission and need for social care increase with age;  

 Approximately 1,660 people are living with dementia, projected to rise to 2,660 by 2030. 

Addressing the issues 

Current activity will integrate health, social care and third sector services in Peterborough to provide joined up 

care within local communities, avoiding admissions to hospital where possible. Future plans include a strategic 

needs assessment into preventing ill health in older people, ensuring that people are supported to age well, live 

independently and contribute to their communities, and a programme of work with older residents to 

understand the health and care issues they face and inform how services are provided.  

2.6  PROTECTING HEALTH – COMMUNICABLE DISEASES  

In Peterborough the needs to be addressed are:  

 Rates of Tuberculosis (TB) in Peterborough are well above the national average (often linked to 

deprivation and overcrowding); 

 Poor uptake of adult bowel and cervical cancer screening programmes; 

 Poor uptake of childhood immunisation programmes in inner city and areas of higher deprivation; 

 Chlamydia screening has a high diagnosis rate despite low screening uptake;  

 Late diagnosis of HIV for some men leading to poorer outcomes. 

  

Addressing the issues 

A joint TB commissioning group is developing a plan for TB screening and responsive services.  A multi-agency 

sexual health strategy group is due to commence work shortly, convened by Peterborough City Council. Future 

strategies will focus on addressing low uptakes of screening and immunisation. 

APPENDIX B

120



 
3.1 GROWTH, HEALTH AND THE LOCAL PLAN  
 
The environment affects health in many ways: through housing construction, transport infrastructure, improving 
air quality and noise, contaminated land, open space and play space, local food growing and more.  
Peterborough is planning an additional 25,500 new homes and 20,000 new jobs by 2026.  
  
Addressing the issues 

The Environment Capital Action Plan is focusing on improving parks and green space and local, sustainable food 
production.  The health of residents will be specifically considered in development of the new Local Plan, with 
public health objectives added where necessary.  
 

3.2 HEALTH AND TRANSPORT PLANNING  

Some elements of transport planning can be linked to health outcomes, such as air and noise pollution, road 

design, impact on physical activity, road injuries and deaths and access to health services.   

In Peterborough, the number of children and adults killed or seriously injured in road traffic accidents is not 
significantly different to the England average.  Inactive modes of transport have increasingly dominated in recent 
years. Approximately 37% of deaths from Coronary Heart Disease are related to physical inactivity. 
 
Addressing the issues  

 The city council’s Travelchoice initiative encourages people to walk, cycle, use public transport, car share 
and choose low emission vehicles. The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Road Safety Partnership (CPRSP) 
is looking at the causes of road accidents and developing solutions to help prevent future accidents. The 
Fourth Local Transport Plan (2016-2020) will contain a strong emphasis on the role transport can play in 
health of Peterborough residents 

  

 
3.3 HOUSING AND HEALTH   

Poor housing conditions increase the risk of severe ill-health or disability by up to 25% during childhood and 
early adulthood.  Housing conditions that adversely affect health include indoor dampness and pollutants. 
Overcrowding is associated with increased spread of infection, and indoor cold is linked to winter deaths and 
cardiovascular problems. Poor housing and homelessness has been identified to affect mental health.   
 
In Peterborough the needs to be addressed are:  

 The rate of family homelessness is worse than the England average;  

 The rate of excess winter deaths remained similar to the England average in 2010 -2013; 

 Poor housing conditions are responsible for accidents and illness  at an estimated  cost to the NHS of £2.2M 
annually.  

 
Addressing the issues 

Housing Related Support funds help people to maintain tenancies and prevent homelessness. For older people, 
additional units of Extra Care accommodation have been provided.  Care and Repair helps aged and vulnerable 
people with small scale works.  
 
New housing schemes will be provided for people with learning disabilities and mental health disorders. A 
priority is to increase nursing and residential care for the ageing population. A group including housing and 
hospital managers is reviewing hospital discharge delays, and how grants for home adaptions could address this. 
A public consultation is taking place on introducing selective licensing in five areas of the city, to help raise the 
standard of rented accommodation and improve the health of residents. 
 

4.1 GEOGRAPHICAL HEALTH INEQUALITIES  

The link between deprivation and poorer health is well known.  In Peterborough the five most deprived electoral 

wards are Dogsthorpe, North, Paston, Central and Ravensthorpe. These wards have higher rates of premature 

deaths (under age 75)  and rates of admission to hospital for their residents are also higher. .  

APPENDIX B

121



 
Addressing the issues 

The city council has a focus on economic development and regeneration. Long term, the measures should 

improve both socio-economic circumstances and health.  Children’s Centres work closely with health visitors, 

and are located in areas of the city with the highest need. The ‘Can Do’ area around Lincoln Road is being 

supported in environmental and service improvements.  Selective Licensing, as mentioned in section 3.3, is also 

expected to help.  

 

4.2 HEALTH AND WELLBEING OF DIVERSE COMMUNITIES  

Peterborough has an ethnically diverse population; 70.9% of residents self-identified as White 

English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern Irish/British compared to 86.0% in England as a whole. A higher than average 

proportion of our population are of South Asian and Eastern European descent. Black & Ethnic Minority 

populations are highest in the Central ward (58.2%), Park (35.8%) and Ravensthorpe (30.8%).  

World Health Organization research concludes that  

 the risk of cardiovascular disease and type 2 diabetes is higher in South Asian population groups; 

 alcohol consumption is contributing to a decline in life expectancy among men of Eastern European descent; 

 rates of tuberculosis are known to be higher in some African, South Asian and Eastern European countries..  

Addressing the issues 

The Health and Wellbeing Board has commissioned a Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) on the health and 

wellbeing needs of Eastern European migrants.  Eastern European ‘community connectors’ are working closely 

with the local NHS on issues such as promotion of screening and immunisations. The potential to work  with 

South Asian communities on diabetes prevention and improved heart health is being explored.   

 

4.3 HEALTH AND WELLBEING OF PEOPLE WITH DISABILITY AND/OR SENSORY IMPAIRMENT 

The number of adults in Peterborough living with a learning disability is forecast to rise by 10% between the year 

2014 and 2030. from 2865 people to 3152. The number of people with moderate or serious physical disabilities 

is forecast to rise by 14% between 2014 and 2030 from 11,208 to 12,743. 

Addressing the issues 

Older people and adults with long term conditions and experiencing disability are being supported via the Better 

Care Fund, through data sharing, seven-day working, a person-centred multi-agency approach, communication 

and advice.  

 
5.1 PARTNERSHIP BOARDS  

The Peterborough Health and Well Being Board is supported by a number of Boards and Groups that are key to 

delivering the outcomes of the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  The Boards are as follows: 

 Housing Partnership 

 Children and Families Joint Commissioning board 

 Adult Joint Commissioning Board 

 Mental Health Board 

 Borderline and Peterborough Executive Partnership Board 

 Public Health Board 
KEY PROGRAMMES  

Two key programmes that meet the future needs of growing populations are: 

 The Cambridgeshire and Peterborough ‘Health System Transformation Programmes  

 The Peterborough City Council Customer Experience Programme  [add links]   

APPENDIX B

122



Appendix C – Summary Shortform 
 

Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy survey 

Thank you for taking the time to fill this survey on the new Peterborough City Council Joint Health 

and Wellbeing Strategy. The survey is anonymous and will help to ensure the strategy is accessible, 

relevant and understood by local residents. It will also ensure that the strategy addresses local 

concerns for health and wellbeing and that the actions are appropriate to improve health and 

wellbeing of local residents. 

Please indicate for how far you agree or disagree with the following statements. 

The information presented in the strategy was easy to understand 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

The strategy used too much medical jargon 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

The graphs and statistics provided helped to improve my understanding of health in Peterborough 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

The different sections made sure the health needs of every group of people in Peterborough were 

addressed. 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

If there are any groups whose needs you felt weren’t addressed, or weren’t addressed thoroughly 

enough, who were they? And what should we be doing for them? 

(Space for comment) 

In general, I could see how the plans and projects outlined in the survey would benefit the health 

and wellbeing of the community. 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

If there were any projects you couldn’t see the benefit of what, were they? 

(Space for comment) 

I could see that for every health issue included in the strategy, it described a plan to address that 

issue. 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

If there were any health issues outlined which you could not see any plans to address, what were 

they? 

(Space for comment) 

Below is a space for you to leave any feedback on issues not covered by the questionnaire. 

APPENDIX C

123



(Large space for comment) 

Thanks for your feedback! 

APPENDIX C

124



Appendix C – Full Version 
 

Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy survey 

Thank you for taking the time to fill this survey on the new Peterborough City Council Joint Health 

and Wellbeing Strategy. The survey is anonymous and will help to ensure the strategy is accessible, 

relevant and understood by local residents. It will also ensure that the strategy addresses local 

concerns for health and wellbeing and that the actions are appropriate to improve health and 

wellbeing of local residents. 

Accessibility 

Please indicate for how far you agree or disagree with the following statements. 

The information presented in the strategy was easy to understand 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

The strategy used too much medical jargon 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

The document was easy to navigate 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree         Strongly agree 

It was difficult to find the information I was looking for 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

The graphs and illustrations in the strategy were easy to understand 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

The graphs and illustrations were about the right size 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

It wasn’t always clear what the statistics were trying to illustrate/what they were referring to 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

If you had any specific difficulties understanding the information in the policy, or if you have any 

suggestions to make it more accessible, please let us know here: 

(Space for comment) 

Relevance 

Please indicate for how far you agree or disagree with the following statements. 

The strategy is relevant to the health and wellbeing needs of the people of Peterborough 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

APPENDIX C

125



2 Compiled by Healthwatch Peterborough 
 

The graphs and statistics provided helped to improve my understanding of health in Peterborough 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

It wasn’t always clear what the graphs and statistics were trying to illustrate 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

I understood which problem(s) each section in the strategy was intended to address 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

I understood how the contents of each section in the strategy were intended to address those 

problem(s).  

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

Were there any areas of concern to you that were not covered in the strategy, or that you feel 

received insufficient attention? If so, what were they? 

(Space for comment) 

Were there any sections that you could not see the relevance of? If so what were they? 

(Space for comment) 

Analysis of Sections 

There may well be sections of the strategy on which you have strong opinions and others on 

which you have none. Answer questions on as many or as few sections as you like – all 

feedback is appreciated!  

2.1 Children and Young People’s health: 

Do you think we are planning adequately for the expected increase in Peterborough’s child 

population? 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree  

If not, what else should we be doing? 

(Space for comment) 

Are there any priorities that you think should be included, but are not?  
 
(Space for comment)  
 
Are there any areas we are prioritising, that you think we should not be?  
 
(Space for comment)  

APPENDIX C

126



3 Compiled by Healthwatch Peterborough 
 

Do you think our success criteria are useful indicators? Are there any other outcomes we should 

be measuring to evaluate project success?  

(Space for comment) 

Any other thoughts on our children and young people’s health section? 

(Space for comment) 

2.2 Health behaviours and lifestyles 

In addition to not smoking, taking regular exercise, eating 5 fruit and vegetables a day and 

drinking alcohol within recommended limits, are there any other behaviours you think we should 

be working to encourage or discourage? 

(Space for comment) 

What services would you like to see the proposed ‘Integrated healthy lifestyle service’ offer? 

(Space for comment) 

Do you think our success criteria are useful indicators? Are there any other outcomes we should 

be measuring to evaluate project success?  

(Space for comment) 

Any other thoughts on our health, behaviours and lifestyles section? 

(Space for comment) 

2.3      LONG TERM CONDITIONS AND PREMATURE MORTALITY – CARDIOVASCULAR DISEASE 

(CVD) 

Did you feel the high level of focus on CVD was justified given how common it is? 

(Space for Comment) 

 Would you like to see more focus on other long term conditions besides CVD, and if so, which 

ones?  

(Space for comment) 

Did you find the link to the CVD Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) for Peterborough 

helpful?  

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

Would you like to see more links to external/supporting documents elsewhere in the strategy 

document? 

(Space for comment) 

APPENDIX C

127



4 Compiled by Healthwatch Peterborough 
 

Do you think our success criteria are useful indicators? Are there any other outcomes we should 

be measuring to evaluate project success?  

(Space for comment) 

Any other thoughts on our long term conditions and premature mortality section? 

(Space for comment) 

2.4 MENTAL HEALTH FOR ADULTS OF WORKING AGE 

When we refresh the Mental Health  Joint Commissioning strategy in 2016, which approaches do 

you think should take priority? 

(Space for comment) 

Do you think we should be doing more to meet the needs of carers? What should we be doing? 

(Space for comment) 

Do you think our success criteria are useful indicators? Are there any other outcomes we should 

be measuring to evaluate project success?  

(Space for comment) 

Any other thoughts on our mental health for adults of working age section? 

(Space for comment) 

2.5 AGEING WELL 

Do you think we are planning adequately for the expected increase in Peterborough’s elderly 

population?  

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree  

If not, what else should we be doing? 

(Space for comment) 

How can we ensure older people want to collaborate with us in planning for their own health and 

wellbeing and for future services'? 

(Space for comment) 

Do you think our success criteria are useful indicators? Are there any other outcomes we should 

be measuring to evaluate project success?  

(Space for comment) 

Any other thoughts on our ageing well section? 

(Space for comment) 

APPENDIX C

128



5 Compiled by Healthwatch Peterborough 
 

2.6  PROTECTING HEALTH – COMMUNICABLE DISEASES 

Do you think our focus on improving access to immunisation and screening services is justified? If 

not, how else should we be combating the spread of communicable diseases? 

(Space for comment) 

Do you have any suggestions for our proposed joint plans to improve poor uptakes of screening 

and immunisation? 

(Space for comment) 

Do you think our criteria for project success are useful indicators? Are there any other criteria we 

should be measuring to evaluate project success? 

(Space for comment) 

Any other thoughts on our protecting health – communicable diseases section? 

(Space for comment) 

3.1 GROWTH, HEALTH AND THE LOCAL PLAN 

 

Do you think the focus on increasing access to green space is justified? 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

If not, what should we be focusing on instead? 

(Space for comment) 

Was it unclear how any of our ‘current joint work’ actions are intended to help improve health in 

Peterborough? If so, which ones?  

(Space for comment) 

Do you think our criteria for success are useful indicators? Are there any other outcomes we 

should be measuring to evaluate success? 

(Space for comment)  

Any other thoughts on our growth, health and the local plan section? 

(Space for comment) 

3.2  HEALTH AND TRANSPORT PLANNING 

Do you think we are doing enough to address the health effects of road traffic that 

disproportionately impact on deprived areas? 

(Space for comment) 

APPENDIX C

129



6 Compiled by Healthwatch Peterborough 
 

Do you think there ought to be more information in the strategy about the Travelchoice and 

Bikeability training initiatives? 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

Do you think our criteria for success are useful indicators? Are there any other outcomes we 

should be measuring to evaluate success? 

(Space for comment)  

Any other thoughts on our health and transport planning section? 

(Space for comment) 

3.3 HOUSING AND HEALTH 

Do you think the focus of our current work on the elderly is justified, given the increased effect 

cold homes can have on their health? 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

If not, what else should we be focusing on? 

(Space for comment) 

Do you think our criteria for success are useful indicators? Are there any other outcomes we 

should be measuring to evaluate success? 

(Space for comment)  

Any other thoughts on our housing and health section? 

(Space for comment) 

4.1 GEOGRAPHICAL HEALTH INEQUALITIES 

Besides the electoral wards mentioned in the section, do you think there are other wards or areas 

experiencing deprivation in the city which we ought to be focussing our efforts on? If so, which are 

they? 

(Space for comment) 

Do you think the role of the City Council commissioned Children’s Centres is explained clearly? 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

Do you think our criteria for success are useful indicators? Are there any other outcomes we 

should be measuring to evaluate success? 

(Space for comment)  

Any other thoughts on our geographical health inequalities section? 

APPENDIX C

130



7 Compiled by Healthwatch Peterborough 
 

(Space for comment) 

4.2 HEALTH AND WELLBEING OF DIVERSE COMMUNITIES 

Was it clear how the research by the World Health Organisation cited in the survey was relevant 

to the population of Peterborough? 

(Space for comment) 

Do you think the health needs of all of Peterborough’s ethnic groups are given sufficient attention 

in the strategy? 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

If not, which ethnic groups/specific health needs should be given more attention? 

(Space for comment) 

Do you think our criteria for success are useful indicators? Are there any other outcomes we 

should be measuring to evaluate success? 

(Space for comment)  

Any other thoughts on our health and well being of diverse communities section? 

(Space for comment) 

4.3 HEALTH AND WELLBEING OF PEOPLE WITH DISABILITY AND/OR SENSORY IMPAIRMENT 

Is it clear how each of the five key workstreams in the Better Care fund plan will be of benefit to 

people with disabilities and/or sensory impairment in Peterborough? 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

If not, which workstreams are you struggling to see the benefits of? 

(Space for comment) 

Do you think our criteria for success are useful indicators? Are there any other outcomes we 

should be measuring to evaluate success? 

(Space for comment)  

Any other thoughts on our health and wellbeing of people with disability and/or sensory 

impairment section? 

(Space for comment) 

5.1 PARTNERSHIP BOARDS 

Do you feel this section gives a sufficiently clear picture of how we coordinate with our 

partnership boards? 

APPENDIX C

131



8 Compiled by Healthwatch Peterborough 
 

(Space for comment) 

Any other thoughts on our partnership boards section? 

(Space for comment) 

5.2 COMMISSIONING PRINCIPLES 

Does the rest of the strategy reflect our aim, stated here, to ‘support the development of a 

thriving, strong and diverse social and health care market that is flexible and responsive to 

everyone in Peterborough’? 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

If not, what more could we be doing to live up to this aim? 

(Space for comment) 

Any other thoughts on our commissioning principles section? 

(Space for comment) 

5.3 CAMBRIDGESHIRE AND PETERBOROUGH HEALTH SYSTEM TRANSFORMATION PROGRAMME   

Is it clear how the health system transformation programme aims to carry out its strategic aims? 

(Space for comment) 

Any other thoughts on our Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Health System Transformation 

Programme section? 

(Space for comment) 

5.4 PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE PROGRAMME 

Is it clear how each of the themes of the customer service programme is relevant to improving 

health services in Peterborough? 

(Space for comment) 

Any other thoughts on the Peterborough City Council customer experience programme section? 

(Space for comment) 

5.5 A VISION FOR HEALTH AND WELLBEING IN 2016/19 

Do you think the plans contained in our strategy will help us bring about our aim of ‘making 

Peterborough a healthy environment in which to live’? 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

If not, why not? How should we be amending our plans? 

APPENDIX C

132



9 Compiled by Healthwatch Peterborough 
 

(Space for comment) 

Do you think the plans contained in our strategy will help us bring about our aim of ‘supporting 

people and communities to maintain their own health and independence? 

Strongly disagree Disagree Neither agree nor disagree    Agree          Strongly agree 

If not, why not? How should we be amending our plans? 

(Space for comment) 

Any other thoughts on the vision for health and wellbeing section? 

(Space for comment) 

7. PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL COMMISSIONING DESIGN PRINCIPLES 

Was it clear how we intend to apply each of the commissioning design principles? 

(Space for comment) 

Was it clear how each of the principles related to improving health and wellbeing in 

Peterborough? 

(Space for comment) 

Any other thoughts on the commissioning design principles section? 

(Space for comment) 

General comments on the strategy 

Below is a space for you to leave any feedback on issues not covered by the questionnaire. 

(Large space for comment) 

APPENDIX C

133



This page is intentionally left blank

134



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
	�


�
�

�

�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
 
��
�!
�
�

�
��
��

"
!�
!�
#

$
�
��
�

�
�!
�
�!
��
�

%�
&�
'
&�


(

�
)
�

*
+
,
-
+
-
.
,
+
+
+
.
-
/
+
.
+
/
-
-
-
0
*
+
,
-
+
-
.

�
���
�
�
��
�
��
	
�
�
�

�

��
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�	
��
�
	
	
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
���
�

�
�
�

�
�	
�
��
 
 
�
��
	
�
��

�
�
��
�

�
!
��
�

"
�
#
$
�
%
��
�
��
%
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�

��
 
�

�
&
��

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
	
��
�
��

'
�	
$
(

)
$
�
��
�
��
�

*
�
��
%
��
	
��
%
�
��
$
(
��
�
�+
��
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
��
�
+�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�$
�

�
�

,%
�	
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
-
��

�
�
.�
��
�
�
��
��
	
�	
$
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�%
�

(

�
/
�-
�

�
!
��
�

�
-
��

�
$
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
	
�
��
�

�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�-
�

�
-
�-
�

�
!
��

0
�

��
��
�
��
�1
�
 

�

�
%
�

2
	

�
��
0
	
 
 

%
%

	
�

�
�
�

�
-
�-
�

�
&
��
�

�
�
��

2
	

�
��
0
	
 
 

%
%

	
�

�
�
�

1
	
�$
 
�

�
	
$
%

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�%
�

(

�
/
��
�

�
�
��

3
�
$
�
�
�

	
�
��
�
�
��
�

��
%
�4
�

�
�
��
0
�
��

�
�
�	
�

5
�
0

0
�
1
5
6�
7
�

�

�
�
�0
�
��
�4
�

*
�
�
	
��
�
�0
	
�
�
�

5
�
0

�
$
��

�
�
��
�
�
�0
	
�
%
$
��
�
�

	
�
�	
�
��
�
�
��
0
0
��
�
�
%

�
�

,�
��
�
�
�

0
	
�
%
$
��
�
�

	
�
�

�
��
�

-
1
+
/
2+
3

�
�
�
�
4
5
�
�

�
�
�
 
�
��

"
�
5
� 
�
��

'
�
��
#

APPENDIX D

135



�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
	�


�
�

�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

$�4�

$�4�

$�4�

$�4�

$�4�

$�4�

$�4�

���4

�
�
�
6

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

"
�

�
0

,

�
�
�
6

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

"
�

�
"

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

"
�

"

�
�
�
6

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

"
�

�

�
�
�
6

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

"
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

"
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

"
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

"
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

"
�

�

7
�
�

"
��
�"
�
%
(
	
�
%

�
��

�
��
��
�
�
	
$
�
��
�
��

�
��
��
$
(
(
	
��

8
�

0
��
�0
	
�
%
$
��
�
�

,�
��
,�
.	
� 
�
�

APPENDIX D

136



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES Agenda Item No. 8

13 JANUARY 2016 Public Report

Report of the Corporate Director, People and Communities

Contact Officer(s) – Wendi Ogle-Welbourn, Corporate Director, People and Communities
Contact details – 863749  

ADULT SOCIAL CARE CHARGING POLICY REVIEW

1. PURPOSE

1.1 To obtain the Commission’s views on a number of proposed changes to Peterborough City 
Council’s adult social care charging policy. 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

2.2

To note and consider the proposed charging policy changes, including Officers’ 
recommendation (5.5, option 1).

To comment on the changes and make any subsequent recommendations for consideration by 
Cabinet.  

3. LINKS TO THE SUSTAINABLE COMMUNITY STRATEGY 

3.1 Revenue from care charges helps to protect, maintain and extend the council’s provision of 
care and support services in a financially challenging climate.

4. BACKGROUND

4.1

4.2

5.

5.1

Local Authorities are lawfully able to decide for themselves whether to charge for certain types 
of care and support services on a means tested basis, but must only charge people what they 
can afford to pay in accordance with nationally-set protected minimum income levels; and 
charges must not exceed the costs of providing the service. The council has charged for care 
and support services based on these principles since April 2003. Since that time, the charging 
policy has undergone a number of revisions, additions and amendments to reflect changes to 
statute and guidance, and to increase the range and level of care charges in response to the 
increasing financial pressures the council has faced. 

The Care Act 2014 and its supporting regulations and guidance sets out a clear, consistent way 
of assessing what people can afford to pay for their care and support, and introduces a number 
of changes to the way the charging systems for care and support should operate. The council’s 
charging policy has been recently reviewed to identify the changes required to ensure 
compliance with the new statutory guidance, and also to identify opportunities for maximising 
revenue from care charges. 

KEY ISSUES

A total of 13 proposed changes to Peterborough’s charging policy have been identified; six of 
which impact either neutrally or positively on clients, and a further seven which may result in 
increases in care charges for some clients. The changes that will have a neutral or positive 
effect on the incomes of people receiving care and support have already been routinely applied 
within financial assessments since April 2015, but the changes that could result in increased 
care charges have not yet been applied to individuals - as these are deemed to be adverse 
changes to a council policy that require public consultation, and formal council consideration 

137



and authorisation. 

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

The seven adverse charging policy change proposals are:

1. For people who receive care and are part of a couple, care charges will be based only 
on the finances of the person receiving care, not the joint finances and circumstances of 
the couple. This might mean therefore that in some circumstances, some members of 
couples with high incomes will see their weekly care charge increase. 

2. Care charges will apply from the date that care started, rather than the date of the 
financial assessment.

3. Charges for respite care stays in a care home will be based on an individual’s own 
finances, not a fixed, standard charge.

4. Elements of some disability benefits (Attendance Allowance and Disability Living 
Allowance Care Component) which may currently be disregarded in the financial 
assessment will be taken fully into account.  

5. An administration fee will be charged for arranging care services for people who have 
capital above the national funding limit (currently £23,250)

6. Care charges will apply to people in prison who receive care and support services - 
where they have the means to pay these, and where it is practicable to work this out

7. Interest charges will apply to care home payments made by the Council under the 
deferred payments scheme on behalf of people who own their former home but choose 
not to sell this

Impact of the changes

Adopting the above changes would result in increased care charges for some people. Initial 
estimates have identified that: 

 Up to 440 people could see their weekly care charges increase by more than £25 
depending on their individual and financial circumstances (NB those affected by the 
largest increases will have the highest incomes that will not previously have been taken 
fully into account in their financial assessments). Some people will experience care 
charge increases of less than £25 per week.

 Up to 60 people could see their weekly care charges increase by up to £15 per week
 Up to 200 people a year who start to receive care during a year could see the period to 

which charges apply increase by an average of 2-3 weeks

Increased care charges will only apply if the incomes of affected clients exceeds nationally set 
minimum protected income levels (these are based on income support/pension credit levels 
plus an additional 25%). Those experiencing the highest charges will therefore have the highest 
incomes, and will always be left with income levels that are above protected minimum figures. A 
person’s individual financial circumstances are always considered and taken into account in the 
final calculation of charges, for example levels of expenditure directly attributable to the 
person’s disability.  No person will therefore be required to pay an unaffordable charge. A 
comparison of the charging position taken by five other local authorities in terms of these 
proposals has been undertaken, and the results are shown at Appendix A.

Options for implementation

The council can consider a number of options in respect of the charging policy proposals:

1) Agree to the changes and apply these from the earliest available opportunity as part of 
the routine financial assessment process. This is the recommended option.

138



2) Agree to the changes but phase these in over a three year period, limiting each year’s 
increase by a third of the total increase figure.

3) Agree to implement only some of the proposed changes 
4) Leave the charging policy unchanged in respect of the adverse changes 

6. IMPLICATIONS

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

Financial implications

The Council has charged for care and support services for many years, and income from 
charges helps to protect and sustain essential care services for vulnerable adults. Income from 
care charges in the 15/16 financial year is estimated to be £6.7m as at June 2015, and 
represents 16% of the forecast gross care package spend.

Adopting all the proposed charging policy changes could lead to an estimated increase of 
revenue from care charges of up to £260k (full year effect), although this figure will not be 
achieved in 15/16 given the delayed introduction of the proposed changes. The later in the 
financial year that these changes are introduced, the less revenue will be generated as a result 
in the 15/16 year. Phased implementation / transitional protection would also reduce the 
expected income levels resulting from the proposed charge changes by the equivalent of two 
thirds of the expected income from the increases in the first year of implementation, and one 
third in the second year. 

Legal implications

The Care Act provides a single legal framework for charging for care and support under 
sections 14 and 17. It enables a local authority to decide whether or not to charge a person for 
the care and support that they receive, except where it is expressly stated in the Act, 
regulations and guidance that charges must not apply. The overarching principle is that people 
should only pay what they can afford, and will be entitled to financial support based on a 
means-test and some will be entitled to free care.  

The Care Act provides a number of broad powers for councils to carry out certain functions. 
Where a council chooses to exercise these powers, it may be necessary to consult on how it 
intends to do so. A council would only usually be expected to consult locally where it is using its 
discretion in relation to the exercise of a particular function.

Ward implications

This report does not have any implications for any individual ward, as it will apply to people 
needing care services city-wide.  

7. CONSULTATION

7.1

7.2

7.3

A public consultation on the charging policy proposals was launched on 17th August 2015 on 
Peterborough City Council’s website, and ended on 28th September 2015. Comments were 
invited on the seven proposed changes to the charging policy. The consultation on the website 
contained details of the consultation’s aim and purpose, who would be affected, who was being 
consulted, the methods, background and summary, the proposals, the reasons for the changes 
and their impact, and an online questionnaire.

Notification of the consultation was issued to a range of partner organisations, including: 
Peterborough Council for Voluntary Services, Cambridgeshire & Peterborough Clinical 
Commissioning Group, Age UK, Peterborough CAB, Peterborough Carers Partnership Board, 
Peterborough Adult Social Care Co-production group, and Peterborough DIAL. Details were 
also circulated widely to departmental staff members and incorporated in staff newsletters.

A summary leaflet, consultation document and paper questionnaire were posted to 
approximately 50 randomly selected individuals in receipt of care services. Financial 

139



7.4

assessment officers also raised the issue of the charging consultation with a number of care 
users at home visits during the period of the consultation. 

A total of 24 responses were received - the majority being supportive of the proposals. 35 
individual comments were received, reflecting a range of views. Full details of the consultation 
and the responses received are recorded in Appendix B. 

8. NEXT STEPS

8.1 After consideration by the Commission, the charging proposals will be referred to Cabinet on 18 
January 2016 for decision, together with any comments or recommendations made by the 
Commission.  

9. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

9.1 Care and Support Statutory Guidance – issued under the Care Act 2014, Department of Health

10. APPENDICES

10.1

10.2

Appendix A – comparator and benchmarking table

Appendix B – summary of consultation responses

140



Appendix A
Comparator & benchmarking table

Practice in other Councils
Peterborough care 
charging policy proposal 

Lincs Cambs Northants Swindon Luton

1. For people who receive 
care and are part of a couple, 
care charges will be based 
only on the finances of the 
person receiving care, not 
the joint finances and 
circumstances of the couple. 
This might mean therefore 
that in some circumstances, 
some members of couples 
with high incomes will see 
their weekly care charge 
increase

Yes Yes Yes No No

2. Care charges will apply 
from the date that care 
started, rather than the date 
of the financial assessment.

No Yes Yes Yes No

3. Charges for respite care 
stays in a care home will be 
based on an individual’s own 
finances, not a fixed, 
standard charge.

No Yes Yes No No

4.  Elements of some 
disability benefits 
(Attendance Allowance and 
Disability Living Allowance 
Care Component) which may 
currently be disregarded in 
the financial assessment will 
be taken fully into account.  

No Unable to 
determine

No No No

5. An administration fee will 
be charged for arranging 
non-residential care services 
for people who have capital 
above the national funding 
limit.

Yes Yes No Yes No

6. Care charges will apply to 
people in prison who receive 
care and support services - 
where they have the means 
to pay these, and where it is 
practicable to work this out

No Unable to 
determine

No No No

7. Interest charges will apply 
to care home payments 
made by the Council under 
the deferred payments 
scheme on behalf of people 
who own their former home 
but choose not to sell this.

Yes Yes Yes Yes No

141



This page is intentionally left blank

142



Appendix B

Adult Social Care Charging Policy Proposals – Public Consultation

Responses received
A total of 24 responses were received from the consultation. 11 of these were electronic responses via 
the Council’s website, and 13 written responses were received from the postal survey/home visit survey. 

18 of the responses were received from people receiving care services, 4 responses were from 
members of staff, and 2 responses were received from members of the following organisations:

 Peterborough Council for Voluntary Services
 Cambridgeshire & Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group

The responses were as follows: 

Proposal Agree Disagree
1. For people who receive care and are part of a couple, care charges 
will be based only on the finances of the person receiving care, not the 
joint finances and circumstances of the couple. This might mean 
therefore that in some circumstances, some members of couples with 
high incomes will see their weekly care charge increase

22 2

2. Care charges will apply from the date that care started, rather than 
the date of the financial assessment.

17 5

3. Charges for respite care stays in a care home will be based on an 
individual’s own finances, not a fixed, standard charge.

17 7

4.  Elements of some disability benefits (Attendance Allowance and 
Disability Living Allowance Care Component) which may currently be 
disregarded in the financial assessment will be taken fully into account.  

12 12

5. An administration fee will be charged for arranging care services for 
people who have capital above the national funding limit.

15 8

6. Care charges will apply to people in prison who receive care and 
support services - where they have the means to pay these, and where 
it is practicable to work this out

23 -

7. Interest charges will apply to care home payments made by the 
Council under the deferred payments scheme on behalf of people who 
own their former home but choose not to sell this.

11 11

  
A range of comments were also received:

Proposal 1 comments
1. Treating people as individuals for charging purposes appears to be fair and reasonable
2. Must ensure the partner is protected
3. We can’t sign up to personalisation only where we choose. People are either individuals in their 

own right or not.
4. The wording on this is a bit complex but the proposal seems fine
5. When you’re on a low income as I am you cannot afford to pay any extra
6. All people receiving care should be re-assessed and informed on national set minimum levels

Proposal 2 comments
1. Absolutely fair that you should only pay once a service has commenced
2. Concerned that vulnerable people could incur a debt of their client contribution if the financial 

assessment is not carried out immediately. Also people would not be able to make an informed 
decision when accepting services from Adult Social Care without knowing how much contribution 
would be expected from them, therefore an individual may be offered commissioned services in a 
crisis and find that a few weeks down the line they receive an unexpected invoice for their 
contribution.

143



Appendix B

3. Financial assessment must be very swift so that the client can make a reasoned choice about 
proceeding with the care package and nobody is put in difficulty paying a back-dated bill.

4. It is appropriate for people to pay from day one when they can afford to
5. Mostly people will have been financially assessed before care commences

Proposal 3 comments
1. Appears to be reasonable
2. Appears fairer
3. I prefer the standard charge rate as it’s not fair to pay more if my income is higher
4. Be assessed

Proposal 4 comments
1. How much is gained by taking this difference into consideration? In these financially hard times 

for people could this not be disregarded and publicised as a gesture of good will on the part of 
PCC?

2. Unjust to take this benefit into consideration. Often used to pay others to help look after you.
3. AA/DLA is to help with the extra costs of care 24 hours a day. This includes such things as extra 

laundry and extra costs of higher levels of heating. If only part day care is being provided by the 
Council then money must be left for the rest of the day and the extra daily expenses.

4. Benefits are income
5. AA & DLA are intended to help with care so this appears logical
6. Quote, Minimum income level and their basic living and other costs by assessment

Proposal 5 comments
1. Appears to be reasonable to charge an administration fee in this respect. Time is money. Also the 

peace of mind knowing that PCC has set up something properly should attract a cost.
2. I think this should be covered by local taxation
3. I would prefer for the care to be arranged for me as when you come out of hospital, you don’t 

want the hassle
4. Would want to know how much we would charge
5. Would like to know how much first

Proposal 6 comments
1. When you go to prison, you have lost your rights. So they should pay like everybody else.
2. Do people in prison receive benefits? Don’t know enough about people in prison.

Proposal 7 comments
1. Can’t there be a differentiation between those who can’t sell their homes and those who do not 

wish to?
2. The Council needs to mirror the national interest rates not just use the upper banding of 2.25%
3. For older person and their family I think it is difficult enough to reach the decision to agree to a 

residential placement. I don’t think that it is right that families and the people have to pay 
excessive interest too.

4. This is reasonable as house values increase by more than 2.25% annually. PCC may also need to 
borrow to fund the scheme which is optional and may be beneficial to the care recipient. Why 
should other Council Tax payers fully fund it?

5. Agree only if resident intends to return to home if possible, otherwise charge should increase 
based on house value.

6. As long as interest rate minimal + nationally agreed rate

144



Appendix B

7. But don’t do a Wonga

145



This page is intentionally left blank

146



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES Agenda Item No. 9

13 JANUARY 2016 Public Report

Report of the Head of Operations Renal, Respiratory, Cardic and Vascular, and the 
General Manager Renal and Transplant, the University Hospitals of Leicester

Contact Officer(s) – Sam Leak, Head of Operations, Renal, Respiratory, Cardic and Vascular and 
Geraldine Ward, General Manager Renal and Transplant, the University Hospitals of Leicester
Contact details – 01162583330 and 01162584116

PETERBOROUGH RENAL HAEMODIALYSIS CAPACITY CONSULTATION 

1. Purpose

1.1 To provide the Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues Committee with assurance on progress to 
date.

2. Recommendations

2.1

3.

The Commission is asked to note the progress to date and the anticipated benefits for the 
patients.

Background

3.1 Clinical and management leads from the University Hospitals of Leicester (UHL) Renal team 
and NHS England Commissioners have met with the Scrutiny Commission for Health to discuss 
the plan to increase the local provision for renal dialysis capacity in Peterborough via a tender 
process. Meetings have taken place on the 17 September and 5 November 2015.  Following the 
meeting on the 17 September 2015 the Committee asked UHL to pause the tender process and 
to undertake further consultation. The tender process closed in October and the committee was 
provided with an update on 5 November 2015 (please refer to minutes). 

 The Commission asked for UHL assurance with regard to consultation and a further 
meeting took place with UHL, NHS England and Councillor Rush,  Councillor Aitken and 
Councillor Stokes on 13 November 2015 and it was agreed that:

 UHL needed to undertake consultation and provide evidence writing e.g. Survey/Q&A.  

 Councillor Rush shared an example Question and Answer sheet and Graham Warwick 
highlighted that this was similar to the survey undertaken by Peterborough hospital which 
was discussed at the first Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues meeting. It was noted 
that although mentioned Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues members did not see 
the actual survey.

 It was agreed that a formal 12 week consultation period was not required and that the 
consultation could run alongside the evaluation.  No decision was to be made without the 
consultation forming part of the overall scoring/evaluation of bids. NHS England was in 
full support of this approach.

 UHL were due to meet set up a formal meeting with Scrutiny Commission for Health 
Issues, including a Health watch representation, in mid-February to include Jessica 
Bowden CCG and David Whiles (Peterborough Health watch).

 It was agreed that no decision would be made until the consultation is complete and 

147



used a part of the evaluation.

 Councillor Rush and Geraldine Ward had received requests from the Media.  Tiffany 
Jones was leading on this for UHL and NHS England communication was aware of the 
request.

 Sam Leak would ensure that the Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues were updated 
on a regular basis and contact would be made via Paulina Ford.

 A media update had taken place with Look East and BBC Radio Peterborough interviews 
by Sam Leak.  Councillor Rush was informed.

4. Consultation

4.1 Patients and members of the public (CCG’s, Transport, Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues, 
Stakeholders) had been invited to come along to a special consultation event. During the 
meeting we will be seeking the Commission’s input into plans to expand and improve dialysis 
services for the Peterborough area. Peterborough Dialysis Capacity Patient and Public 
Consultation Event was planned for Sunday 10 January, 10.30am – 12.30pm, Lecture Theatre, 
Peterborough City Hospital, Edith Cavell Campus, Bretton Gate, Peterborough, PE3 9GZ.

5. Next Steps

5.1 Patient and public views will be written up and shared with attendees. A decision is to be made 
following the consultation forming part of the overall scoring/evaluation of bids. Outputs from the 
event will also inform and FAQ and will be used to improve services. This is to be completed by 
February 2016.

6. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

 Minutes of the meeting 17 September 2015; and
 Minutes of the meeting on 5 November 2015.

7. APPENDICES

 Appendix A - Patient and Public Consultation Event Advertisement

148



APPENDIX A

149



This page is intentionally left blank

150



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES Agenda Item No. 10

13 JANUARY 2016 Public Report

Report of the Engagement Team, Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical 
Commissioning Group

Contact Officer(s) – Engagement Team
Contact Details – capccg.engagement@nhs.net 

OLDER PEOPLES’ AND ADULT COMMUNITY SERVICES CONTRACT TRANSFERS 
TO CAMBRIDGESHIRE AND PETERBOROUGH CLINICAL COMMISSIONING 
GROUP

1. PURPOSE

1.1 The Committee is asked to comment on and note the report.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That the Committee notes the report.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 On 3 December 2015 Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) 
and UnitingCare LLP announced that they were ending their contractual arrangement to deliver 
urgent care for the over 65s and adult community services.

4. KEY ISSUES

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

4.6

This report updates the Committee on the actions taken by the CCG since the announcement 
that the contractual arrangement between the CCG and UnitingCare was coming to an end.

Immediately following the announcement, the CCG’s priority was to reassure patients that older 
peoples’ and adult community services are still in place and have not been disrupted by this 
change. Healthwatch, the voluntary sector, and other partners have been helping us to make 
sure that this message gets out quickly and clearly. We do not want people to be worried about 
their care. We have advertised the Patient Advice and Liaison Service (PALS) widely for those 
patients or carers who might have further questions.

If patients or carers have any concerns they can call PALS at Cambridgeshire and 
Peterborough NHS Foundation Trust (CPFT) on the Freephone telephone number 0800 376 
0775.

We also wanted to quickly reassure staff working in these services. All staff working for 
UnitingCare are employed by CPFT or Cambridge University Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust 
(CUHFT). UnitingCare, CPFT, and CUHFT supported us in reassuring staff and ensuring all 
staff received the same clear messages at the same time. We are clear that frontline staff are 
vital to ensuring we maintain good quality, integrated care for our patients.

Since 4 December the CCG and UnitingCare have been working to ensure a smooth transition 
of contracts. The CCG and UnitingCare have, together, spoken to all the organisations who are 
involved in providing care for older people and adult community services across 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough.

UnitingCare was the accountable lead provider and service integrator but it is important to 

151

mailto:capccg.engagement@nhs.net


4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

understand that it did not directly deliver any front-line care itself; it held sub-contracts with a 
range of providers to deliver the integrated pathway for older people and adult community 
services. All the NHS and independent sector providers were contacted and we were pleased 
by the practical and swift response from all those providers. We have had assurance from all of 
them that they can continue to deliver the services and that patients will not see any changes to 
their care. We are now working through the change of contractual arrangements with all 
providers. 

All partners are clear that an outcomes-based, integrated care model delivers benefits for 
patients and for the whole health economy. We wish to maintain this approach.

Over coming months we will be looking at all the workstreams that UnitingCare had established, 
and those in development. We will be looking in detail at each of those projects and deciding 
which will continue to bring benefits to patients and which we may need to reassess. These 
decisions will be taken carefully as we are still clear that we wish to deliver the agreed 
outcomes, and support the good work that has been done so far to deliver more joined-up care 
for patients. We will be working closely with Local Authority colleagues in this process, and 
taking into account the Better Care Fund workstreams. 

In relation to the terms of the end of the contract and the financial implications moving forward 
Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group and UnitingCare LLP and its 
partners continue to be in detailed discussions and we are not in a position to comment further 
until these discussions are over.

We are very aware that this means that a number of questions cannot be answered at this 
stage but we will, of course, be reviewing internally what has worked well and what we would 
do differently. However, we are clear that only by working together across providers can we 
adequately meet patient need in a challenged health economy. 

5.

5.1

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

None.

152



SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES Agenda Item No. 11

13 JANUARY 2016 Public Report

Report of the Director of Governance

Report Author – Philippa Turvey, Senior Democratic Services Officer
Contact Details – 01733 452460 or email philippa.turvey@peterborough.gov.uk

FORWARD PLAN OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS

1. PURPOSE

1.1 This is a regular report to the Scrutiny Commission for Health Issues outlining the content of the 
Forward Plan of Executive Decisions.

2. RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1 That the Commission identifies any relevant items for inclusion within their work programme.

3. BACKGROUND

3.1 The latest version of the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions is attached at Appendix 1.  The 
Plan contains those Executive decisions, which the Leader of the Council believes that the 
Cabinet or individual Cabinet Member(s) can take and any new Executive decisions to be taken 
after 25 January 2016.

3.2 The information in the Forward Plan of Executive Decisions provides the Commission with the 
opportunity of considering whether it wishes to seek to influence any of these Executive 
decisions, or to request further information.

3.3 If the Commission wished to examine any of the Executive decisions, consideration would need 
to be given as to how this could be accommodated within the work programme.

3.4 As the Forward Plan is published fortnightly any version of the Forward Plan published after 
dispatch of this agenda will be tabled at the meeting.

4. CONSULTATION

4.1 Details of any consultation on individual decisions are contained within the Forward Plan of 
Executive Decisions.

5. BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS
Used to prepare this report, in accordance with the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

5.1 None.

6. APPENDICES

 Appendix 1 – Forward Plan of  Executive Decisions

153



This page is intentionally left blank

154



APPENDIX A

PETERBOROUGH CITY 
COUNCIL’S FORWARD PLAN 
OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS 

PUBLISHED:  24 DECEMBER 2015

155



APPENDIX A

FORWARD PLAN                                                                                                                                     AB
PART 1 – KEY DECISIONS
In the period commencing 28 clear days after the date of publication of this Plan, Peterborough City Council's Executive intends to take 'key decisions' on the issues set out below 
in Part 1.  Key decisions relate to those executive decisions which are likely to result in the Council spending or saving money in excess of £500,000 and/or have a significant 
impact on two or more wards in Peterborough.

If the decision is to be taken by an individual Cabinet Member, the name of the Cabinet Member is shown against the decision, in addition to details of the Councillor’s portfolio. If 
the decision is to be taken by the Cabinet, this too is shown against the decision and its members are as listed below:
Cllr Holdich (Leader); Cllr Coles; Cllr Elsey; Cllr Fitzgerald (Deputy Leader); Cllr Hiller, Cllr Lamb; Cllr North; Cllr Seaton; Cllr Serluca.

This Plan should be seen as an outline of the proposed decisions for the forthcoming month and it will be updated on a fortnightly basis to reflect new key-decisions.  Each new 
Plan supersedes the previous Plan and items may be carried over into forthcoming Plans.  Any questions on specific issues included on the Plan should be included on the form 
which appears at the back of the Plan and submitted to Gemma George, Democratic Services Manager, Governance Department, Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax 08702 
388039). Alternatively, you can submit your views via e-mail to gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk or by telephone on 01733 452268. For each decision a public report will be 
available from the Governance Team one week before the decision is taken.

PART 2 – NOTICE OF INTENTION TO TAKE DECISION IN PRIVATE
Whilst the majority of the Executive’s business at the Cabinet meetings listed in this Plan will be open to the public and media organisations to attend, there will be some business 
to be considered that contains, for example, confidential, commercially sensitive or personal information.  In these circumstances the meeting may be held in private, and on the 
rare occasion this applies, notice will be given within Part 2 of this document, ‘notice of intention to hold meeting in private’. A further formal notice of the intention to hold the 
meeting, or part of it, in private, will also be given 28 clear days in advance of any private meeting in accordance with The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings 
and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012. 

The Council invites members of the public to attend any of the meetings at which these decisions will be discussed (unless a notice of intention to hold the meeting in private has 
been given).

PART 3 – NOTIFICATION OF NON-KEY DECISIONS
For complete transparency relating to the work of the Executive, this Plan also includes an overview of non-key decisions to be taken by the Cabinet or individual Cabinet Members, 
these decisions are listed at Part 3 and will be updated on a weekly basis.

You are entitled to view any documents listed on the Plan, or obtain extracts from any documents listed or subsequently submitted to the decision maker prior to the decision 
being made, subject to any restrictions on disclosure. There is no charge for viewing the documents, although charges may be made for photocopying or postage.  Documents 
listed on the notice and relevant documents subsequently being submitted can be requested from Gemma George, Democratic Services Manager, Governance Department, 
Town Hall, Bridge Street, PE1 1HG (fax 08702 388038), e-mail to gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk or by telephone on 01733 452268. 

All decisions will be posted on the Council's website: www.peterborough.gov.uk/executivedeisions. If you wish to make comments or representations regarding the 'key decisions' 
outlined in this Plan, please submit them to the Democratic Services Manager using the form attached.  For your information, the contact details for the Council's various service 
departments are incorporated within this Plan.

156

mailto:gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk
mailto:gemma.george@peterborough.gov.uk
http://www.peterborough.gov.uk/executivedeisions


APPENDIX A

PART 1 – FORWARD PLAN OF KEY DECISIONS

KEY DECISIONS FROM 25 JANUARY 2016
KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Skills Strategy - 
KEY/25JAN16/01
For Cabinet to approve 
the Skills Strategy.

Cabinet 8 February 
2016

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Wendi Ogle-Welbourn
Corporate Director 
People and 
Communities
Tel: 01733 863749
Wendi.ogle-
welbourn@peterboroug
h.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Review of Emergency 
Stopping Places – 
KEY/25JAN16/02
For Cabinet to review 
existing and proposed 
emergency stopping 
places.

Cabinet 29 February 
2016

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Belinda Child
Head of Housing and 
Health Improvement
Tel: 01733 863769
Belinda.child@peterbor
ough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

157



APPENDIX A

Extension to the 
Framework Agreement 
for the Supply of Social 
Care Temporary Agency 
Workers – 
KEY/25JAN16/03
For the Cabinet Member 
to approve the extension 
to the framework 
agreement.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

February 
2016

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

James Fordham
Recruitment and 
Retention Officer
Tel: 01733 864581
James.fordham@peter
borough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Provision of Non Social 
Care Temporary Agency 
Workers – 
KEY/25JAN16/04
To approve the provision 
of temporary agency 
workers.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

February
2016

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

James Fordham
Recruitment and 
Retention Officer
Tel: 01733 864581
James.fordham@peter
borough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Commissioning of Care 
and Nursing Homes – 
KEY/25JAN16/05
For the Cabinet Member 
to consider a new 
Contract for the 
commissioning of Care 
and Nursing Homes under 
the Choice Directives LA 
circular 2004, ADASS 
Terms and Conditions.

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Deputy Leader 
and Cabinet 
Member for 
Integrated 
Social Care and 
Health

February 
2016

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Susan Street
Head of Older People 
Commissioning
Tel: 01733 452486
Susan.street@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

158



APPENDIX A

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

PREVIOUSLY ADVERTISED DECISIONS
Delivery of the Council's 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
Sale of Dickens Street 
Car Park - KEY/03JUL/11
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation 
with the Solicitor to the 
Council, Corporate Director 
Resources, the Corporate 
Property Officer and the 
Cabinet Member Resources, 
to negotiate and conclude 
the sale of Dickens Street 
Car Park. 
For Cabinet to consider 
future options for service 
delivery. 

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

January 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Consultation will 
take place with 
the Cabinet 
Member, Ward 
Councillors, 
relevant internal 
departments & 
external 
stakeholders as 
appropriate.

Richard Hodgson
Head of Strategic 
Projects
Tel: 01733 384535
richard.hodgson@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

159



APPENDIX A

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS /  
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Sale of the Herlington 
Centre - 
KEY/21MAR14/03
Delivery of the Council’s 
capital receipts 
programme through the 
sale of the Herlington 
Centre, Orton Malborne.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

January 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Simon Webber
Capital Projects Officer
Tel: 01733 384545
simon.webber@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Formalise Integrated 
Community Equipment 
Service Funding and 
Commissioning 
Arrangements - 
KEY/18APR14/01
To formalise integrated 
community equipment 
service joint funding 
arrangements.

Councillor 
Wayne Fitzgerald
Deputy Leader 
and Cabinet 
Member for 
Integrated Adult 
Social Care and 
Health

January 
2016

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Nick Blake
Head of Commissioning 
for Older People, 
Physical Disabilities and 
Sensory Impairment
Tel: 01733 452406
nick.blake@peterboroug
h.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Award of Contract for 
Build of a Waste Transfer 
Station - KEY/18APR14/02
To award a contract for the 
build of a waste transfer 
station.

Councillor Gavin 
Elsey
Cabinet Member 
for Digital, Waste 
and Street Scene 

January 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Paul Robertson
Waste Project Officer
Tel: 01733 864740
paul.robertson@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Print Managed Services - 
KEY/13JUN14/01
To enable Council officers 
to be able to print, copy and 
scan.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

January 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Vicki Palazon
Financial Services 
Manager – Planning and 
Reporting
Tel: 01733 864104
Vicki.palazon@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

160



APPENDIX A

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Selective Licensing - 
KEY/17OCT14/01
To improve standards and 
management of properties 
in the private rented sector.

Councillor Peter 
Hiller
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing & 
Economic 
Development 

January 
2016

Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Belinda Child
Head of Housing and 
Health Improvement
Tel: 01733 863769
Belinda.child@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Classroom Extension 
and Associated Works 
Heltwate School - 
KEY/06MAR15/01
To authorise the construction 
of an extension at Heltwate 
School and give authority to 
the Executive Director of 
Resources to award the 
construction contract within 
the approved budget.

Councillor John 
Holdich
Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University

January 
2016

Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Alison Chambers
Assets and School 
Place Planning Officer
Tel: 01733 863975
Alison.chambers@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Wirrina Car Park – 
KEY/06MAR15/10
Disposal of Wirrina Car 
Park to Peterborough 
Investment Partnership.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

January 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Richard Hodgson, 
Head of Strategic 
Projects
01733 384535
Richard.hodgson@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

161



APPENDIX A

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHOR

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Real Time Passenger 
Information – 
KEY/10JUL15/02
To approve the expansion 
and maintenance contract.

Councillor Peter 
Hiller
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing & 
Economic 
Development 

January 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and External 
stakeholders.

Amy Pickstone
Senior ITS Officer
Tel: 01733 317481
Amy.pickstone@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Delivery of the Council’s 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
sale of Welland House, 
Dogsthorpe – 
KEY/24JUL15/01
To authorise the sale of 
Welland House, 
Dogsthorpe.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

January 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Simon Webber
Strategic Projects 
Officer
Tel: 01733 384545
Simon.webber@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

162



APPENDIX A

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHOR

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Delivery of the Council’s 
Capital Receipt 
Programme through the 
sale of Pyramid Centre, 
Bretton North – 
KEY/24JUL15/02
To authorise the sale of 
the Pyramid Centre, 
Bretton North.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

January 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Gareth Dawkins
Capital Projects Officer
Tel: 01733 384618
Gareth.dawkins@peter
borough.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an 
exempt annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, information relating 
to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding 
that information).

Sale of Land at Rear of 
Braybrook School, Orton 
Longueville – 
KEY/24JUL15/03
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation 
with the Solicitor to the 
Council, Corporate 
Director Resources, the 
Corporate Property Officer 
and the Cabinet Member 
Resources, to negotiate 
and conclude the sale of 
Land.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

January 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brian Davies
Sales and Acquisitions
Tel: 01733 384547
Brian.davies@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

163



APPENDIX A

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Sale of the Lindens, 
Lincoln Road – 
KEY/24JUL15/04
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation 
with the Solicitor to the 
Council, Corporate 
Director Resources, the 
Corporate Property Officer 
and the Cabinet Member 
Resources, to negotiate 
and conclude the sale.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

January 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brian Davies
Sales and Acquisitions
Tel: 01733 384547
Brian.davies@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Sale of Bretton Court, 
Bretton North – 
KEY/24JUL15/05
To authorise the Chief 
Executive, in consultation 
with the Solicitor to the 
Council, Corporate 
Director Resources, the 
Corporate Property Officer 
and the Cabinet Member 
Resources, to negotiate 
and conclude the sale.

Councillor David 
Seaton
Cabinet Member 
for Resources

January 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brian Davies
Sales and Acquisitions
Tel: 01733 384547
Brian.davies@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

164



APPENDIX A

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Expansion by One Form 
of Entry to Jack Hunt 
Secondary School – 
KEY/07AUG15/02
To approve expansion by 
1 form of entry of Jack 
Hunt Secondary School to 
include award of building 
contracts for the required 
enhancement of facilities 
and any legal changes to 
the schools PFI contract. 

Councillor John 
Holdich
Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University

January 
2016

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Brian Howard
Head of Schools 
Infrastructure
Tel: 01733 863976
Brian.howard@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Changes to the 
Council’s Adult Social 
Care Charging Policy – 
KEY/21AUG15/03
Consultation around 
proposed changes to the 
Council’s charging policy in 
recognition of the statutory 
obligations and powers 
introduced by the Care Act 
2014.

Cabinet 18 January  
2016

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Mark Gedney
Financial Systems 
Manager
Tel: 01733 452335
Mark.gedney@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Draft Housing Strategy – 
KEY/21SEPT15/03
For Cabinet to approve 
the Strategy for public 
consultation.

Cabinet 8 February 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Anne Keogh
Housing and Strategic 
Planning Manager
Anne.keogh1@peterbo
rough.gov.uk
Tel: 01733 863815

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

165



APPENDIX A

166



APPENDIX A

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Council Tax and NNDR – 
KEY/13NOV15/01 
To agree the calculation of 
the Council Tax base for 
2016/17 and the NNDR1 
return.

Cabinet 18 January 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Steven Pilsworth
Service Director 
Financial Services
Tel: 01733 384564
Steven.pilsworth@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Passenger Transport 
Services AMEY – 
KEY/27NOV15/01
To approve the award of 
six routes to Amey under 
the existing contract 
arrangements. 

Councillor John 
Holdich
Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet Member 
for Education, 
Skills and 
University

January 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Sara Thompson
Team Manager, 
Passenger Transport 
Operations
Tel: 01733 317452
Sara.thompson@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an
exempt annexe. By virtue of
paragraph 3, information 
relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any 
particular person
(including the authority 
holding
that information).

167



APPENDIX A

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Intelligent Transport 
Systems Infrastructure – 
KEY/11DEC15/01
To introduce the use of 
Variable Message Signs 
(VMS) on the road 
network to provide real-
time driver information.

Councillor Peter 
Hiller
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

December 
2015 to Mar 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Peter Tebb
Network and Traffic 
Manager
Tel: 01733 453519
Peter.tebb@peterborou
gh.gov.uk 

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an
exempt annexe. By virtue of
paragraph 3, information 
relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any 
particular person
(including the authority 
holding
that information).

Direct Payment Support 
Service – 
KEY/11DEC15/02
To approve the direct 
payment support service.

Councillor 
Fitzgerald
Deputy Leader 
and Cabinet 
Member for 
Integrated Adult 
Social Care and 
Health

May 2016 Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Jenny Beasley
Commissioning 
Manager
Tel: 01733 452482
Jenny.beasley@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an
exempt annexe. By virtue of
paragraph 3, information 
relating to the financial or 
business affairs of any 
particular person
(including the authority 
holding
that information).

168



APPENDIX A

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Offtake Arrangements 
for Power from the 
Energy Recovery 
Facility – 
KEY/25DEC15/01 
To approve putting into 
place arrangements for 
the sale of heat and/or 
electricity from the Energy 
Recovery Facility.

Councillor 
Gavin Elsey
Cabinet Member 
for Digital, 
Waste and 
Street Scene

January 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital 

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Richard Pearn
Waste Partnership 
Manager
Tel: 01733 864739
Richard.pearn@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an 
exempt annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, information relating 
to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding 
that information).

Delegation of Authority 
under the ASB, Crime 
and Policing Act 2014 to 
Registered Social 
Landlords – 
KEY/25DEC15/02
To authorise 
Peterborough City Council 
to designate authority to 
registered social landlords 
to enforce Part 4 Sections 
43-48 of the Anti-social 
Behaviour, Crime and 
Policing Act 2014.

Councillor Nigel 
North
Cabinet Member 
for Communities 
and 
Environment 
Capital

January 
2016

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders 
including social 
landlords through 
the Peterborough 
Registered Social 
Landlord Forum

Laura Kelsey
Anti-Social Behaviour 
Co-ordinator
Tel: 01733 453563
Laura.kelsey@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

169



APPENDIX A

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Extension of 
Expenditure with 
Providers on the 
Homecare Framework – 
KEY/11JAN16/01
To authorise the extension 
of expenditure with 
providers on the 
homecare framework 
agreement, in line with 
current terms and 
conditions.

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Cabinet Member 
for Integrated 
Adult Social 
Care and Health

January 
2016

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Jenny Beasley, 
Commissioning 
Manager,
Tel: 01733 452482
jenny.beasley@peterbo
rough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Peterborough Highway 
Services Contract – 
KEY/11JAN16/02
To award major transport 
schemes to Skanska to 
deliver via the 
Peterborough Highways 
Services Contract.

Councillor Peter 
Hiller
Cabinet Member 
for Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

January 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Amy Petrie
Principal Programme 
and Project Officer
Tel: 01733 452272
Amy.petrie@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

170



APPENDIX A

PART 2 – NOTICE OF INTENTION TO TAKE DECISIONS IN PRIVATE

KEY DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN IN PRIVATE

KEY DECISION 
REQUIRED

DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 

NONE AT THE CURRENT TIME

171



APPENDIX A

PART 3 – NOTIFICATION OF NON-KEY DECISIONS

NON-KEY DECISIONS 

DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Communities Strategy – 
To approve the Council’s 
Communities Strategy.

Cabinet 8 February 
2016

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Ian Phillips
Social Inclusion 
Manager
Tel: 01733 863849
Ian.phillips@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Citizens Advice Bureau
Funding –
To fund Citizens Advice
Bureau £3731 until March
2016 (via DWP grant
funding) to deliver
Personal Budgeting
Support to new UC
claimants requiring
assistance.

Councillor
David Seaton
Cabinet
Member for
Resources

January 
2016

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Ian Phillips
Social Inclusion 
Manager
Tel: 01733 863849
Ian.phillips@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Vivacity Funding –
To fund Vivacity £1278
until March 2016 (via
DWP grant funding) to
provide digital support for
UC claimants to make
benefit claims online at
Central Library.

Councillor
David Seaton
Cabinet
Member for
Resources

January 
2016

Strong and 
Supportive 
Communities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Ian Phillips
Social Inclusion 
Manager
Tel: 01733 863849
Ian.phillips@peterboro
ugh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

172



APPENDIX A

DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Council Tax Support 
Scheme 2016/2017 
Recommendation – 
To recommend the 
Council Tax Support 
scheme to Council.

Cabinet 18 January 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Steven Pilsworth
Service Director 
Financial Services
Tel: 01733 384564
Steven.pilsworth@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Budget Proposals 
Second Tranche 
Consideration – To 
approve the consultation 
on the second tranche of 
Budget Proposals.

Cabinet 8 February 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Steven Pilsworth
Service Director 
Financial Services
Tel: 01733 384564
Steven.pilsworth@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Budget Proposals 
Second Tranche 
Recommendation – 
To recommend the 
second tranche of budget 
proposals to Council.

Cabinet 29 February 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Steven Pilsworth
Service Director 
Financial Services
Tel: 01733 384564
Steven.pilsworth@pete
rborough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Local Transport Plan – 
To recommend approval 
to Council of the fourth 
Local Transport Plan.

Cabinet 18 January 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant Internal 
and External 
Stakeholders

Lewis Banks
Principal Transport 
Planning Officer
Tel: 01733 317465
Lewis.banks@peterbor
ough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

173



APPENDIX A

DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Extension to Sutton 
Conservation Area – For 
the Cabinet Member to 
approve the extension.

Councillor 
Peter Hiller
Cabinet 
Member for 
Growth, 
Planning, 
Housing and 
Economic 
Development

January 
2016

Sustainable 
Growth and 
Environment 
Capital

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Jim Daley
Principal Built 
Environment Officer
Tel: 01733 453522
Jim.daly@peterboroug
h.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

Vivacity Premier Fitness 
Invest to Save Scheme - 
To authorise investment in 
developing Vivacity 
Premier Fitness on an 
invest to save basis

Councillor 
David Seaton
Cabinet 
Member for 
Resources

January 
2016

Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

John Harrison
Corporate Director 
Resources
Tel: 01733 452520
John.harrison@peterbo
rouh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

The decision will include an 
exempt annexe. By virtue of 
paragraph 3, information relating 
to the financial or business 
affairs of any particular person 
(including the authority holding 
that information).

174



APPENDIX A

Extension of Current 
Adult Social Care 
Contracts – To approve 
the extension of Mental 
Health Employment, 
Wellbeing and Recovery 
Services contracts from 1 
October 2015 and 30 Nov 
2016 due to 
reconfiguration of the 
contract.

Councillor 
Wayne 
Fitzgerald
Deputy 
Leader and 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Integrated 
Adult Social 
Care and 
Health

January 
2016

Scrutiny 
Commission 
for Health 
Issues

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Mubarak Darbar
Head of 
Commissioning 
Learning Disabilities
Tel: 01733 452509
Mubarak.darbar@peter
borough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

DECISION REQUIRED DECISION 
MAKER

DATE 
DECISION 
EXPECTED

RELEVANT 
SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE

CONSULTATION CONTACT DETAILS / 
REPORT AUTHORS

DOCUMENTS RELEVANT 
TO THE DECISION 
SUBMITTED TO THE 
DECISION MAKER 
INCLUDING EXEMPT 
APPENDICES AND 
REASONS FOR EXEMPTION

Delegation of Authority -
To delegate authority for 
funding governance 
arrangements for care 
placements for Looked 
After Children to the 
Service Director – 
Safeguarding and 
Children for a period of 12 
months.

Councillor 
Andy Coles
Cabinet 
Member for 
Children’s 
Services

January 
2016

Creating 
Opportunities 
and Tackling 
Inequalities

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders.

Helene Carr
Head of Service, 
Access to Resources 
and Specialist 
Commissioning 
Tel: 01733 863901
Helene.car@peterboro
gh.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

175



APPENDIX A

Personal Budgets in 
Peterborough - 
To agree to adopt 
Peterborough’s Personal 
Budget Policy Statement 
as part of the revised 
statutory duties that apply 
to the Council as part of 
the SEND reforms, under 
the Children and Families 
Act 2014.

Councillor 
John Holdich
Leader of the 
Council and 
Cabinet 
Member for 
Education, 
Skills and 
University

January 
2016

Strong and 
Supportive 
Scrutiny 
Committee

Relevant internal 
and external 
stakeholders

Carrie Gamble
Commissioner
Tel: 01733 863931
Carrie.gamble@peterb
orough.gov.uk

It is not anticipated that there 
will be any documents other 
than the report and relevant 
appendices to be published.

DIRECTORATE RESPONSIBILITIES

RESOURCES DEPARTMENT Executive Director's Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG
Strategic Finance
Internal Audit
Schools Infrastructure (Assets and School Place Planning)
Corporate Property
Waste and Energy
Strategic Client Services (Enterprise Peterborough / Vivacity / SERCO including Customer Services, ICT and Business Support)

PEOPLE AND COMMUNITIES DEPARTMENT Director’s Office at Bayard Place, Broadway, PE1 1FB
Adult Services and Communities (Adult Social Care Operations, Adult Social Care and Quality Assurance, Adult Social Care Commissioning, Early Help – Adults, 
Children and Families, Housing and Health Improvement, Community and Safety Services, Offender Services)
Children’s Services and Safeguarding (Children’s Social Care Operations, Children’s Social Care Quality Assurance, Safeguarding Boards – Adults and 
Children’s, Child Health, Clare Lodge (Operations), Access to Resources)
Education, People Resources and Corporate Property (Special Educational Needs and Inclusion, School Improvement, City College Peterborough, Pupil Referral 
Units, Schools Infrastructure)
Business Management and Commercial Operations (Commissioning, Recruitment and Retention, Clare Lodge (Commercial), Early Years and Quality 

176



APPENDIX A

Improvement)

GOVERNANCE DEPARTMENT Director’s Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG
Legal and Democratic Services 
Human Resources (Business Relations, HR Policy and Rewards, Training and Development, Occupational Health and Workforce Development)
City Services and Communications (Markets and Street Trading, City Centre Management including Events, Regulatory Services, Parking Services, Vivacity 
Contract, CCTV and Out of Hours Calls, Marketing and Communications, Tourism and Bus Station, Resilience)
Performance and Information (Performance Management, Information Governance, Systems Support Team, Coroner’s Office, Freedom of Information)

  GROWTH AND REGENERATION DEPARTMENT Director’s Office Stuart House, St Johns Street, Peterborough, PE1 5DD
Development and Construction (Development Management, Planning Compliance, Building Control)
Sustainable Growth Strategy (Strategic Planning, Housing Strategy and Affordable Housing, Climate Change and Environment Capital, Natural and Built 
Environment)
Opportunity Peterborough
Peterborough Highway Services (Network Management, Highways Maintenance, Street Naming and Numbering, Street Lighting, Design and Adoption of Roads, 
Drainage and Flood Risk Management, Transport Policy and Sustainable Transport, Public Transport)
Peterborough Investment Partnership

PUBLIC HEALTH DEPARTMENT Director’s Office at Town Hall, Bridge Street, Peterborough, PE1 1HG177



AB

PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL’S CABINET 
MEMBERS WOULD LIKE TO HEAR FROM YOU

The Leader of Peterborough City Council is offering everyone a chance to comment, or raise queries 
on the decisions highlighted on the Council’s Forward Plan.

Your comments and queries can be submitted to the Council’s Governance Team using the form 
overleaf, or alternatively by telephone or email.  The Governance team will then liaise with the 
appropriate Cabinet Member and ensure that you receive a response.  Members of the Cabinet, 
together with their areas of responsibility, are listed below:

    Councillor Holdich      Leader of the Council and Cabinet Member for Education, Skills and   

University 

   Councillor Fitzgerald        Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Integrated Adult Social Care 

and Health

Councillor Coles

Councillor Elsey

Cabinet Member for Children’s Services

Cabinet Member for Digital, Waste and Street Scene

Councillor Hiller

Councillor Lamb

Cabinet Member for Growth, Planning, Housing and Economic 

Development

Cabinet Member for Public Health

Councillor North Cabinet Member for Communities and Environment Capital

Councillor Serluca Cabinet Member for City Centre Management, Culture and Tourism

Councillor Seaton Cabinet Member for Resources

178



SUBMIT YOUR COMMENTS OR QUERIES TO 
PETERBOROUGH CITY COUNCIL’S CABINET

Your comment or query: 

Who would you like to respond? (if left blank your comments will be referred to the relevant 
Cabinet Member)

How can we contact you with a response?  
(please include a telephone number, postal and/or e-mail address)

Name     ……………………………………………………………………….

Address ……………………………………………………………………….

  ……………………………………………………………………….

Tel:        ….…………………………………………………….....................

Email:    ……………………………………………………………………….

179



180



      Updated: 2 DECEMBER 2015

SCRUTINY COMMISSION FOR HEALTH ISSUES
WORK PROGRAMME 2015/16

Meeting Date Item Indicative 
Timings

Progress

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical Commissioning 
Group Performance Report

Contact Officer: Jessica Bawden

Carried over from 10 March 2015

Public Health / Adult Social Care: Introduction, Overview and 
Future Work Programme

Contact Officer:  Dr Liz Robin / Adrian Chapman

Carried over from 10 March 2015

End of Consultation Report on a future model for NHS 111 and 
GP Out of  Hours Services

Contact Officer:  Jessica Bawden

Adult Social Care and Public Health – 2014/15 Performance 
Overview Report

Contact Officer:  Tina Hornsby

Carried over from 10 March 2015

24 June 2015
Draft report 5 June

Final report 12 June

Review of 2014/15 and Future Work Programme 2015/16

To review the work undertaken during 2014/15 and to consider the 
future work programme of the Committee.

Contact Officer: Paulina Ford, Senior Democratic Services 
Officer

181



      Updated: 2 DECEMBER 2015

Cambridgeshire And Peterborough Health And Care System 
Transformation Programme

Contact Officer:  Jessica Bawden 

Joint Commissioning

Contact Officer:  Wendi Ogle-Welbourn

Minor Injury and Illness Unit (MIIU)  Relocation Proposals

Contact Officer:  Cathy Mitchell

21 July 2015
Draft Report 2 July

Final Report 9 July

Update on Prime Minister’s Challenge Fund Project for 
Peterborough

Contact Officer:  Cathy Mitchell

Children in Care: Health Outcomes plus Emotional Health and 
Wellbeing Pathway
To discuss jointly with the Creating Opportunities and Tackling 
Inequalities Scrutiny Committee

Contact Officer: Janet Dullaghan

UnitingCare Partnership – Quarterly Report

Contact Officer:  Keith Spencer (via Katrina Saunders)

17 September 
2015
Draft report 28 Aug

Final report 7 Sept

Peterborough Renal Haemodialysis Capacity
Contact Officer: Geraldine Ward, General Manager Renal & 
Transplant UHL

182



      Updated: 2 DECEMBER 2015

Proposal for Non-Emergency Patient Transport Services

Contact Officer: Jessica Bawden

Peterborough Renal Haemodialysis Capacity Update

Contact Officer: Geraldine Ward, General Manager Renal & 
Transplant UHL

Peterborough and Stamford Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust – 
General Overview Of Trust Activity

Contact Officer:  Jane Pigg 

5 November 2015
Draft report 19 Oct

Final report 26 Oct

Cambridgeshire & Peterborough Clinical Commissioning 
Group Performance Report 

Contact Officer:  Sarah Shuttlewood, C&P CCG

Report requested at 24 June 2015 meeting.

1.

26 November 2015
(Joint Meeting of 
the Scrutiny 
Committees and 
Commissions) 

Budget 2016/17 and Medium Term Financial Strategy to 2025/26 
Phase One
To scrutinise the Executive’s proposals for the Budget 2016/17 and 
Medium Term Financial Plan 2025/26.

Contact Officer:  John Harrison/Steven Pilsworth 
2.

183



      Updated: 2 DECEMBER 2015

Cabinet Member for Integrated Adult Social Care and Health 
Portfolio Progress Report including Service Director’s Report

Contact Officer:  Adrian Chapman

Health System Transformation Programme Update

Contact Officer: Fiona Head

Health and Wellbeing Board Draft Strategy

Contact Officer:  Dr Liz  Robin

Adult Social Care Charging Policy

Contact Officer: Adrian Chapman

Peterborough Renal Haemodialysis Capacity Consultation 
Outcome

Contact Officer: Geraldine Ward, General Manager Renal & 
Transplant UHL

13 January 2016
Draft report 24 Dec

Final report 31 Dec

Cambridgeshire and Peterborough CCG Older People and 
Adult Community Services Update 

Contact Officer: Jessica Bawden

(Joint Meeting of 
the Scrutiny 
Committees and 

Budget 2016/17 and Medium Term Financial Strategy to 2025/26 
Phase Two

184



      Updated: 2 DECEMBER 2015

Commissions)
10 February 2016

To scrutinise the Executive’s proposals for the Budget 2016/17 and 
Medium Term Financial Plan 2025/26.

1. Contact Officer:  John Harrison/Steven Pilsworth

Cardiovascular Disease Programme

Contact Officer:

Cabinet Member for Public Health Portfolio Progress Report 

Contact Officer: Liz Robin

Transfer of Commissioning of Health Visitors

Contact Officer: Wendi Ogle-Welbourn

15 March 2016
Draft report 25 Feb

Final report 3 
March

MIIU Draft Consultation 

Contact Officer:  Jess Bawden

Future Meeting Communications Plan for New GP Out of Hours / 111 Service

Contact Officer:  Jessica Bawden

Requested at 24 June meeting

185



T
his page is intentionally left blank

186


	Agenda
	3. Minutes of Meeting Held on 5 November 2015
	5. Combined Report of the Cabinet Member for Integrated Adult Social Care and Health, and the Service Director for Adult Services and Communities
	5. Appendix 1 (i) Combined Report of the Cabinet Member
	5. Appendix 1 (ii) Combined Report of the Cabinet Member
	5. Appendix 1 (iii) Combined Report of the Cabinet Member
	5. Appendix 1 (iv) Combined Report of the Cabinet Member
	5. Appendix 2 Combined Report of the Cabinet Member

	6. Cambridgeshire And Peterborough Health And Care System Transformation Programme
	6. Appendix 1(i) Fact pack - Cambridge Locality
	6. Appendix 1(ii) Fact pack - Hunts Locality
	6. Appendix 1(iii) Fact pack - IoE and Wisbech
	6. Appendix 1(iv) Fact pack - Peterborough  Borderline
	6. Appendix 2 Cambridgeshire And Peterborough Health And Care System Transformation Programme
	6. Appendix 3 Cambridgeshire And Peterborough Health And Care System Transformation Programme

	7. Draft Peterborough Health and Wellbeing Board Strategy
	7. Appendix A Health and Wellbeing Strategy

	 Supplementary Information - Draft Peterborough Health and Wellbeing Board Strategy
	Appendix C Engagement Questionnaire Draft - Peterborough Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy
	Appendix D Engagement Timetable Draft - Peterborough Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy

	8. Adult Social Care Charging Policy Review
	8. Appendix A Adult Social Care Charging Policy Review
	8. Appendix B Adult Social Care Charging Policy Review

	9. Peterborough Renal Haemodialysis Capacity Consultation
	9. Appendix A Peterborough Renal Haemodialysis Capacity Consultation

	10. Older Peoples' and Adult Community Services Contract Transfers to Cambridgeshire and Peterborough Clinical Commissioning Group
	11. Forward Plan of Executive Decisions
	11. Forward Plan of Executive Decisions Appendix - SCHI - 160113

	12. Work Programme 2015/16



